
           

LORAIN CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting Agenda

Monday, October 20, 2025 @ 6:00 p.m.

 

           

1. OPENING OF COUNCIL: Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. ROLL CALL:

3. DISPOSITION OF MINUTES:

a. October 6, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 
4. CORRESPONDENCE AND/OR COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR: None.

5. CORRESPONDENCE FROM DIRECTORS, BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, ETC.: None.

6. CORRESPONDENCE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES:

a. Correspondence received from the Ohio Division of Liquor Control advising of a New, D5
permit application for 180 Place LLC at 1804 E. 28th Street, Lorain, 44055. (6th Ward) 

b. Correspondence received from the Ohio Division of Liquor Control advising of a New, D5, D6
permit application for 180 Place LLC at 1806 E. 28th Street, Lorain, 44055. (6th Ward) 

7. CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE GENERAL PUBLIC:

a. Correspondence received from Victor Halitzka regarding the proposed ordinance; sleeping in
public places.  

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  (The sign-in sheet will be collected prior to commencement of the
meeting)  The two (2) minute per person limit and twenty (20) minute max will be observed.

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS:

a. Finance and Claims Committee. 
10. LEGISLATION -  FIRST READING:

a. ____ Reso. accepting the amounts & rates as determined by the Budget Comm. & auth the
necessary tax levies & certifying them to the County Auditor. 

b. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into contract for the purchase of ten 2026 Ford
Interceptors & one 2026 F-150 with all emergency equipment installed.  

c. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into an agreement with ODNR to accept the
donation of a patrol vessel & accompanying apparatus.  

d. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into a 5-yr lease agmt with Comdoc Inc., for the
replacement & upgrade of the City's printing & multi-function systems. 

e. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into a 5-year agmt with Comdoc, Inc. for the maint.
& servicing of the City's printing & multi-function systems.  

f. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to give consent to the Director of Trans. to perform annual
mowing for SR 2 corridor including ramps & rest areas.  

g. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to waive Utilities & Engineering Depts. fees associated with
the Port's Black River Amphitheater Project.  

h. ____ Ord. ratifying a grant app. to the NOACA for the "TLCI Sunset Pier Park Trailhead" &
auth the S/S Director to apply for & receive, if awarded grant funding.  

i. ____ Ord. repealing Ords. 117-15 & Chapter 1545 of the Codified Ords. "Land Reutilization"

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   Lorain City Council Chamber, 200 West Erie Avenue, Lorain, Ohio, 44052  *  (www.cityoflorain.org) *  - Office:   (440) 204-2050

http://www.cityof


i. ____ Ord. repealing Ords. 117-15 & Chapter 1545 of the Codified Ords. "Land Reutilization"
and est. a new Chapter 1545.  

j. ____ Ord. amending Ord. 111-25, auth the S/S Director to enter into a WPCLF WRRSP
Sponsorship Agreement.  

k. ____ Appropriation. 
11. LEGISLATION -  SECOND READING:

a. ____ Reso. in support of renewal Issues 21 & 22 for Lorain City Schools. 
b. ____ Reso. recognizing October as Polish Heritage Month in the City of Lorain.  
c. ____ Reso. honoring, celebrating and declaring the month of October as Breast Cancer

Awareness Month in the City of Lorain.  
d. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into contract with MMO for the renewal of the City

of Lorain Health Benefits Plan and Stop-Loss Coverage.  
e. ____ Ord. approving the Police Chief, through the mayor, to accept the award from the Ohio

Dept. of Pub Safety - Ohio Traffic Safety Office.  
f. ____ Ord. auth the Police Chief, on behalf of the S/S Director, to accept the grant award

from the Ohio Dept of Pub. Safety - Ohio Traffic Safety Office.  
g. ____ Ord. auth the Police Chief, through the mayor, to accept the award from the Ohio

Dept. of Pub. Safety - Ohio Traffic Safety Office.  
h. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into an agreement for Law Enforcement Liaison

Services with Mark Fetheroff.  
i. ____ Ord. auth & directing the S/S Director to enter into a contract with 5K Commercial

Roofing to replace part of El Centro's Wellness Center roof.  
j. ____ Ord. appropriating a license for the purpose of an ingress & egress for Rotar Industries

LLC., property located at 2630 Colorado Ave.  
k. ____ Ord. amending Ord. 016-25, auth the S/S Director to modify agreement No. 25-015

with Ruhlin Co. for the 611 Colorado Ave. Traffic Signal Improvement Project.  
l. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to advertise & enter into a contract for a 1-year period with

2 optional 1-year extensions for street patching. 
m. ____ Ord. auth the S/S Director to enter into various contracts for the purchase of chemicals

for use in the Utilities Dept, Water & WPC Divisions. 
n. ____ Ord. assessing the cost of abating nuisance by removing litter & deposit of garbage,

rubbish, junk, etc.  
o. ____ Ord. auth the Auditor to pay an invoice submitted by LPD that invokes the Then and

Now Certification Process. 
p. ____ Appropriation. 

12. LEGISLATION  - THIRD READING:

a. ____ Ord. auth & directing the S/S Director to enter contract with Superlative Group, Inc. to
solicit & negotiate naming rights for Campana Park & facilities within the park.  

b. ____ Ord. amending Ch. 509 of the Lorain Codified Ordinances by creating Section 509.19-
"Parent or Guardian Responsibility for Minors". 

c. ____ Ord. amending various sections of Lorain Codified Ordinance Chapter 549- Weapons
and Explosives. 

13. COMMITTEE CALLS:
- Oct. 27th-  5:30pm- Public Hearing to discuss the Silver Hills Preliminary Development Plan.
The Building & Lands Committee will meet following the Public Hearing to further discuss the
Silver Hills Preliminary Development Plan.
- Nov. 3rd-    5:30pm- Public Hearing to discuss Planning Commission's recommendation
regarding Manufactured Homes.  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   Lorain City Council Chamber, 200 West Erie Avenue, Lorain, Ohio, 44052  *  (www.cityoflorain.org) *  - Office:   (440) 204-2050

http://www.cityof


14. MISCELLANEOUS CONCERNS FROM COUNCIL:

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION

16. ADJOURNMENT.

AN EXECUTIVE SESSION, BY PROPER MOTION, WILL BE HELD IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ORC SECTION 121.22: G (3) TO CONFERENCE WITH THE PUBLIC BODY'S

ATTORNEY REGARDING DISPUTES THAT ARE THE SUBJECT OF PENDING
AND/OR IMMINENT COURT ACTION

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   Lorain City Council Chamber, 200 West Erie Avenue, Lorain, Ohio, 44052  *  (www.cityoflorain.org) *  - Office:   (440) 204-2050

http://www.cityof


   
City Council Regular Meeting 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Breanna Dull, Clerk of Council

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
October 6, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

Administration only
October 6, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

Attachments
Minutes 

Form Review
Form Started By: Breanna Dull Started On: 10/16/2025 12:45 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

1

Chaplain Sylvia DuVall led council in the prayer and President Arredondo led the
Pledge of Allegiance and then called the regular meeting to order at 6:02p.m.

ROLL CALL:
PRESENT-  7 Messrs. Dimacchia, Springowski, Henley, Kempton, Nutt, Arroyo, Spellacy.
ABSENT -   4 Messrs. DuVall, Carter, Moon, Thornsberry.

Moved by Mrs. Springowski,  supported by Ms. Kempton,  to excuse  the absent
members. The motion carried unanimously.

REMARKS: PRESIDENT ARREDONDO: FYI  to  the public  and  to  the  rest  of  those  in  the
chamber, we will not be able to conduct business by suspending rules. We need
nine people to suspend the rules, therefore we will have to move them on to the
second or third reading, whichever is there. We have had some illnesses, we also
have Mr.  Thornsberry  is  on  extended  leave,  I  believe  for  a  couple  months,  a
medical procedure, and whoever makes the next motion when we come, what we
did in the past, you can make a motion to suspend… well it is probably in this case,
when we come to legislation 10a all the way through 10p you can make a blanket
motion to move it to a second reading and you do that with also legislation second
reading, you can do that with those there.

 
DISPOSITION OF MINUTES:

a.) September 2, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mr. Dimacchia, to dispense with the
reading  of  the  minutes  and  accept  them  as  written.  The  motion  carried
unanimously.

b.) September 15, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mr. Dimacchia, to dispense with the
reading  of  the  minutes  and  accept  them  as  written.  The  motion  carried
unanimously.

CORRESPONDENCE AND/OR COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR:
a.) Mayor Bradley’s request for Council to approve the appointment of Amanda Wille

to the Sewer and Water Advisory Board effective immediately through October 5,
2029.
Moved  by Mrs.  Springowski,  supported  by Mr. Dimacchia,  to  concur with  the
appointment. The motion carried unanimously.

REMARKS: MAYOR BRADLEY: Amanda Wille is here.
PRESIDENT ARREDONDO: Oh okay, why don’t you introduce her mayor.
MAYOR  BRADLEY:  Amanda  Wille  is  here.  I  had  a  chance  to  look  at  her
credentials. She works for Cuyahoga County, she has a masters degree. She has a
lot of experience with grants and things like that. I think she will be a good member
for the Sewer and Water Advisory Board. No one can replace the former member
who had a lot of knowledge, Mr. McGannon, I don’t know if we could ever find
somebody  like  that,  but  she  certainly,  I  think, will  be  a  very  good member  and
hopefully will speak her mind and be an independent member on that board. Thank
you, Amanda, for agreeing to serve.  
PRESIDENT ARREDONDO: Welcome again and thank you. Once again, all of
these board appointments are volunteers, thank you for being willing to take this
position.
MAYOR BRADLEY: I had several things I wanted to share with all of council this
evening.  First  of  all,  we  had  an  opportunity  to  meet  with  Governor  Dewine’s
Director of Public Safety and staff member from his office, we also had our Chief
of Police and our Captain Thompson were also there, Rey Carrion and myself, I am
not sure if Rick was there or not? No you weren’t there Rick. But in any event, it
was a good meeting, we did have some good discussions and actually made some
contacts while we were meeting regarding helping us with grants and helping us to
help our police with not only resources but also equipment in the future. I think this
is going to be a good partnership, I was glad that they reached out to us and I think
so far they have been helping us with public safety in the City of Lorain, having a



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

2

source like the State of Ohio, the Governor’s Office is really a good thing for us.
We also had a meeting with Catholic Charities regarding ongoing problems with
the St. Elizabeth Center, we actually discussed hiring off duty, two off duty, police
officers to be over there and to help with the policing of the St. Elizabeth Center and
to address some of the issues that have been brought up. Chief Failing has indicated
to Rey Carrion, our Safety/Service Director, that he certainly would support having
officers over there but there would have to be two officers, we wouldn’t want to
have one officer there at a time. St. Elizabeth Center, the Catholic Charities, also
told  us  that  they  didn’t  feel  that  they  had  very  solid  rules  over  there  and  they
understand  that  because  they  don’t  have  very  solid  rules  over  there,  problems
happen. I was glad to hear that they are going to try to improve the rules that they
have for people so that if you don’t follow the rules, you don’t get in, and then our
police will be able to enforce some of the issues that have been happening around
that  center.  I  am  certainly  cognizant  of  what  residents  in  that  area  have  been
complaining about. Lastly, well not the last thing, but I attended the annual meeting
of  the  national…  I  mean  the  Northeast  Ohio  Areawide  Coordinating  Agency,
NOACA, and we were lucky because of the panelists there, Tiffany McClelland was
one of the panelists who actually presented at that meeting and it was nice to see her
talking about Lorain, our Port, and some of the efforts that they are doing regarding
economic development in our community. She was very well received and I think
that she made a very, very good presentation. We also had someone there from the
Great Lakes and Saint Lawrence Cities Initiative, who also presented, and I was
glad to see that Tiffany was able to network with that person and we can hopefully
expect  some  things… some cooperation between  that organization and our Port,
especially as it relates to the issue of dredging of the Black River. They reached out
to help Tiffany on that issue. The other thing I wanted to mention is that Lorain was
also recognized at the annual meeting in there collaborative innovation booklet that
they passed out. They mentioned that Lorain had received federal funding for the
East Erie/6th Street improvements project of $1.5M, they mentioned that the City of
Lorain received $277,139 for the Oakwood Connector/South Lorain library trail;
that  was  through  NOACA.  Also,  $870,807  for  the  asphalt  replacement  with
concrete on Longbrook and Yorktown Roads, which were  long overdue projects
that we needed. They also indicated that they had provided street supplies for paint
to touch up the bike lanes on East Erie and also East 31st Street, and they actually
had a picture in the bulletin of the crews working on that particular project. Lorain
was noticed and represented well at that NOACA annual meeting.

CORRESPONDENCE FROM DIRECTORS, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, ETC.:
a.) Correspondence  received  from  Law  Director  Riley,  the  report  and

recommendation from Special Master Todd Marti from the Ohio Court of Claims
Case #2025-00524PQ, Aaron C. Knapp v. Lorain City Council. Moved by Mr.
Dimacchia,  supported by Mrs. Springowski,  to  receive and  file. Motion carried
unanimously.

b.) Treasurer Soto’s 2025 3rd quarter Income Tax Receipts, covering the time period
between  July  1,  2025  and  September  30,  2025.  Moved  by Mrs.  Springowski,
supported by Mr. Dimacchia, to receive and file. Motion carried unanimously.

REMARKS: COUNCILMEMBER SPRINGOWSKI: I would like to thank Treasurer Soto and
her department for all of the diligent work, but especially about their, once again,
their level of customer service. I do get comments from some of our residents that
appreciate the extra steps that they will take to sit down and explain things and to
work with the residents of the City of Lorain. My thanks to them. They should be
the benchmark for customer service throughout all of our departments.

c.) Planning Commissions approval and recommendation to council for approval of a
proposed ordinance amending ordinance 106-25 and 4-21, Lorain Zoning Code
regarding Manufactured Homes or Trailers. Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported
by Mrs. Springowski, to receive and file. Motion carried unanimously.



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

3

      CORRESPONDENCE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES: None.

CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE GENERAL PUBLIC:
a.) Correspondence received from Betsy Ingram regarding the proposed ordinance,

sleeping in public places. Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mr. Dimacchia, to
receive and file. Motion carried unanimously.

b.)Correspondence received from Anne Yug regarding the proposed ordinance, sleeping
in public places. Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to receive
and file. Motion carried unanimously.

c.) Correspondence received from Suzannah Beil regarding the proposed ordinance,
sleeping in public places. Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mr. Dimacchia, to
receive and file. Motion carried unanimously.

d.)Correspondence received from Mary Lowman regarding the proposed ordinance,
sleeping in public places. Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to
receive and file. Motion carried unanimously.

e.) Correspondence received from West Lorain Power regarding Pipeline Awareness and
Emergency Response Information. Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mr.
Dimacchia, to receive and file. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Clerk Dull announced that there are three members of the public signed up to speak
this evening.

LEE ANN THEOBALD, 2441 Lincoln Dr.: I am requesting City Council, if they
could possibly  intervene.  I have a neighbor,  I know someone mentioned a civil
issue, but Larry Swanger has been out to the residence several times, the dog has…
always  jumps  the fence,  I know of at  least  four or five  times since I have been
documenting  it.  I witnessed  it  attack  the  other  dog by  the  neck  and  apparently
nobody can do anything. Except  civilly,  and  this neighbor  is  costing us money
already and I feel like we are just concerned for our safety of our dogs, ourselves
and others, if we were to intervene in a dog fight, we could be seriously injured.
This is a clear and present danger to our property and personal safety, Ohio Revised
Code  955.22  all  dogs  must  be  confined  to  their  property  or  under  reasonable
control at all times. It jumps the fence continuously. The chain link fence is in the
middle and I have six foot wooden in front now, but we would have to replace her
chain link fence in our backyard to stop it and it doesn’t seem fair to us, because
she just doesn’t care, sort of, that is the type of person the new neighbor is. It goes
on us again, the homeowner, because she can’t control her dog and Larry Swanger,
I am very surprised because he said maybe the other neighbor, Becky at Nebraska
Avenue, 1015, he told her, well you guys should try to be friends, your dog should
try to be friends with Jennifer’s dog, and Jennifer won’t even let her dog go out by
itself anymore because she asked me, ‘are you afraid the dog is going to jump the
fence,’ a while back and I said, ‘yes.’ And low and behold, it just jumped, I came
and walked in, I heard all this barking and it was in her yard, so we are concerned
and not happy with Larry Swanger. You don’t make friends with dogs like that
when you witness an attack like that on their own dogs. I was able to water hose
the dogs apart, but it is a public safety issue, I feel. Like I said, she just doesn’t
care,  the  neighbor  with  the  dogs,  she  has  three  dogs  and…  (The end of these
comments were not captured by the recording.)
PATRICK HORN, 1015 Highland Park Blvd.: (The beginning of these comments
were not captured by the recording.) …years ago and I am just concerned where
that Y is, that traffic going from Walmart in that area, I don’t know if they are going
to put a traffic light there, are they going to put stop signs there, I am just curious
to what the city and ODOT _____ other with that project.
AARON KNAPP, 4220 Talbot Ln.: I am just trying to figure out what a BRIT a
PERC, and a diversity certificate are that you guys are supposed to have by the end
of  your  terms,  but  none  of  you  have  them.  I  feel  like  if maybe  you  had  them,
Councilman Arroyo would know not to antagonize someone with PTSD. Maybe



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

4

you guys should go take those before your terms end, or change the rules that you
want to enforce upon us and read before every single meeting. Maybe you should
follow  those  same  rules. That  is what  that  records  case was  about,  that  is  all  I
wanted was it in writing so you ___ to me twice and you registered it with the state
and with the council, so thank you, have a good night.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:
a.) The Parks and Recreation Committee met on Monday, September 22nd to hear a

2025  Parks  Summer  Programming Recap,  no  action was  taken  as  this was  for
informational purposes only. The committee also discussed a proposed ordinance
authorizing and directing the Safety/Service Director  to enter contracts with the
Superlative Group Inc., to solicit and negotiate naming rights for Campana Park
and  facilities within  the park. Superlative Group provided a presentation  to  the
committee,  and  the  committee  referred  the  ordinance  back  to  council  for
consideration  this  evening.  Moved  by  Mrs.  Henley,  supported  by  Mrs.
Springowski, to concur with the committee report. Motion carried unanimously.

b.) The Police, Fire and Legislative & All of Council Committee met on September
29th  to discuss proposed ordinances regarding the Lorain Codified Ordinance to
create Ch. 509.19- Parent or Guardian Responsibility for Minors and amending Ch.
549- Weapons and Explosives. The committee recommended referring both items
to  Council  for  consideration  and  they  are  items  11  b  &  c  on  this  evening's
agenda. Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to concur with
the committee report. Motion carried unanimously.

LEGISLATION – FIRST READING:

Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mr. Dimacchia, to refer all items 10a
through 10p to a second reading.

AYES-        7 Messrs. Dimacchia, Springowski, Henley, Kempton, Nutt, Arroyo, Spellacy.
NAYS-        0 None. The motion carried unanimously.

Proposed Resolution  a.) A resolution in support of renewal Issues 21 & 22 for Lorain City Schools.

Proposed Resolution b.) A resolution recognizing October as Polish Heritage Month in the City of Lorain.

Proposed Resolution c.) A resolution honoring, celebrating and declaring the month of October as Breast
Cancer Awareness Month in the City of Lorain, Ohio.

Proposed Ordinance  d.) An ordinance authorizing the Director of Public Safety/Service to enter into a
contract with Medical Mutual of Ohio (MMO) for the renewal of the City of Lorain
Health  Benefits  Plan  which  MMO  administers  and  Stop-Loss  Coverage  and
declaring an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  e.) An ordinance approving the Chief of Police, through the Mayor of the City of
Lorain,  to  accept  the  award  from  the Ohio Department  of  Public  Safety  - Ohio
Traffic Safety Office and declaring an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  f.) An ordinance authorizing  the Chief of Police on behalf of  the Safety/Service
Director of the City of Lorain to accept the grant award from the Ohio Department
of Public Safety - Ohio Traffic Safety Office, and declaring an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  g.) An ordinance authorizing the Chief of Police, through the Mayor of the City of
Lorain,  to  accept  the  award  from  the Ohio Department  of  Public  Safety  - Ohio
Traffic Safety Office and declaring an emergency.



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

5

Proposed Ordinance  h.) An ordinance authorizing the Safety/Service Director to enter into an agreement
for Law Enforcement Liaison Services with Mark Fetheroff who is an independent
contractor  for  the Ohio Traffic Safety Office  - Department of Public Safety and
declaring an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  i.) An ordinance authorizing and directing the Safety/Service Director to enter into
a contract with 5K Commercial Roofing to replace part of El Centro De Servicios
Sociales, Inc’s Wellness Center Roof and declaring an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  j.) An ordinance appropriating a license for the purpose of an ingress and egress for
Rotar  Industries  LLC, who  has  executed  a  purchase  agreement  for  the  property
located at 2630 Colorado Avenue from Flipper Boat Storage LLC and authorizing
the  Safety/Service  Director  to  take  all  necessary  steps  to  effectuate  same,  and
declaring it an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  k.) An ordinance amending Ordinance No. 016-25 authorizing the Safety/Service
Director  to  modify  agreement  No.  25-015  with  Ruhlin  Company  for  the  611
Colorado Avenue Traffic Signal Improvement Project and declaring an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  l.) An ordinance authorizing the Safety/Service Director to advertise & enter into a
contract  for  a  one-year  period  with  two  optional  one-year  extensions  for  street
patching within the City of Lorain, State of Ohio.

Proposed Ordinance  m.)  An  ordinance  authorizing  the  Safety/Service Director  to  enter  into  various
contracts for the purchase of chemicals for use in the Utilities Department, Water
and Water Pollution Control Divisions of the City of Lorain, State of Ohio.

Proposed Ordinance  n.) An  ordinance  assessing  the  cost  of  abating  nuisance  by  removing  litter  and
deposit of garbage, rubbish, junk etc. during the current calendar year and declaring
an emergency.

Proposed Ordinance  o.) An ordinance authorizing the Auditor of the City of Lorain, Ohio to pay invoice
submitted  by  the Police Department  that  invokes  the  then  and  now  certification
exception process as per Ohio Revised Code Section 5705.41 and to pay for said
invoices and declaring an emergency.

 
Proposed Ordinance  p.) An ordinance appropriating funds for current expenses and other expenditures

of  the  City  of  Lorain,  State  of  Ohio  as  passed  by Ordinance  #35-25  beginning
January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025 and declaring an emergency.

LEGISLATION – SECOND READING:

Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to refer item a to a third
reading. Motion carried unanimously.

Proposed Ordinance  a.) An ordinance authorizing and directing the Director of Safety/Service to enter
into  a  contract with  the  Superlative Group,  Inc.  to  solicit  and  negotiate  naming
rights for P.C. Campana Park and the different facilities within the park.

Proposed Ordinance  b.) Introduced by Mr. Dimacchia, an ordinance amending Chapter 509 of the Lorain
Codified Ordinances by creating Section 509.19 of the Lorain Codified Ordinances
“Parent or Guardian Responsibility for Minors” and declaring an emergency.
Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to amend Section 1.d.,
replacing public property with public place.

AYES-        7 Messrs. Dimacchia, Springowski, Henley, Kempton, Nutt, Arroyo, Spellacy.
NAYS-        0 None. The ordinance is amended.

Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to refer the matter to a
third reading, as amended.



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

6

AYES-        7 Messrs. Dimacchia, Springowski, Henley, Kempton, Nutt, Arroyo, Spellacy.
NAYS-        0 None. The ordinance is referred to a third reading.

Moved by Mr. Dimacchia, supported by Mrs. Springowski, to refer item c to a third
reading. Motion carried unanimously.

Proposed  Ordinance  c.)  An  ordinance  amending  various  sections  of  Chapter  549  of  the  Codified
Ordinances of the City of Lorain, and declaring an emergency.

LEGISLATION – THIRD READING: None.

COMMITTEE CALLS: 
 Oct. 13th – 5:30pm - The Finance Committee will meet for a quarterly budget
update.

 Oct.  27th  –  5:30pm  –  Public  Hearing  to  discuss  the  Silver  Hills  Preliminary
Development Plan. The Building & Lands Committee will meet following the
Public Hearing to further discuss the Silver Hills Preliminary Development Plan.

 Nov.  3rd  –  5:30pm  –  Public  Hearing  to  discuss  Planning  Commission’s
recommendation regarding Manufactured Homes.

MISCELLANEOUS CONCERNS FROM COUNCIL:

COUNCILMEMBER SPRINGOWSKI: (The beginning of these comments were
not captured by the recording.)  …and bedrooms, and sunrooms. When the person
puts up a privacy fence so the people then proceed to move the security camera
onto the roof of  their house, at  that point  it  is no longer a security camera,  it  is
voyeurism,  and  I  do  believe  there  are  some  regulations  in  the  city  against
voyeurism.  We  need  to  start  addressing  these  issues  because  it  is  adversely
affecting people’s quality of life, when people don’t feel safe in their own home,
when they can’t go to the bathroom because someone has a camera pointed in it.
That is just wrong and they shouldn’t have to go and put reflective film on their
windows or any of that because somebody has decided that they are going to go
out of their way to harass this person. This has been an ongoing thing, yes it is a
contest between… this is a neighborhood spat and that, but now, I feel, and I don’t
know, so I am going to direct it to the Law Department, I feel that in some aspect
they are breaking the law. When you put up a privacy fence, you should have the
expectation of privacy, you shouldn’t have to worry about your neighbors putting
the cameras on the roof to point it into your house.
COUNCILMEMBER DIMACCHIA: To Mayor Bradley, thank you for the report
on Catholic Charities. Real quick, I am assuming that if in the event that they do
hire two off duty police officers, Catholic Charities will be paying 100% for those
two officers?
MAYOR BRADLEY: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER DIMACCHIA:  I do, based on  the one comment  that was
made here, at the public hearing, I would hope that somebody could look into Ms.
Theobald’s issue and see what we can do to stop that from happening because I do
agree, it is a matter of public safety and not a… legally I understand the civil issue,
but again, from a public safety standpoint I think that we could at least look into it.
If  it was a  stray dog  in  somebody’s yard  it would be a problem and we would
handle it differently than what we are handling here and I just… I feel for her and
the  safety  of,  number  one,  her mother who  is  91 years  old,  I  couldn’t  imagine
having that next door to me. Hopefully somebody will look into it.
LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: Duly noted.
MAYOR BRADLEY: I wanted  to  let council know and people  in  the audience
know that the Law Department has been working on beefing up our dog ordinance
for probably the last two months. We want to make sure we get it right, but they
have been trying to beef it up so that… because we have had a lot of complaints



  LORAIN CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING -COUNCIL CHAMBER, LORAIN, OH   October 6, 2025

7

about dogs and people being harassed by dogs, dogs not being on  leashes,  and
running and so  forth. Officer Swanger needs some additional ammunition  from
council to beef up these ordinances so that we cannot have these loopholes that are
currently  in  the  current  ordinance.  I  have  sat  down with  the  Law Department,
reviewed ordinances, we have had some discussions, rewriting, they have sat down
with the Police Department. They are working on it and it should be presented to
council, I would say, in the next couple of meetings once we get past this public
safety stuff.
COUNCILMEMBER ARROYO: I would  like  to,  I guess, ask for an update on
Homewood. I know they have been fixing some curbs on some of the surrounding
streets, I am wondering if they were going to get those other ones risen back there
in the same area. Also, I know we have had a lot of shootings in the area lately, I
know the police have been out and about, I appreciate their services. I know it is
not just them that has to take care of it, it is the citizens that also have to take care
of it and I know there is a lot of things going, so that is why, I know I haven’t said
a lot of stuff on social media besides yes, there has been a shooting, I know there’s
some  things going on. Also,  I would  like  to  thank Officer Rivera,  some of  the
citizens  reached out  to me  to  thank him for  taking care of a stray dog  that was
attacking another dog and he did what he had to do to protect the community, I
appreciate Officer Rivera.

ADJOURNMENT Moved by Mrs. Springowski, supported by Mrs. Henley, to adjourn the meeting.
The motion carried unanimously, the meeting adjourned at 6:33pm.

_________________________________
PRESIDENT OF

COUNCIL

Accepted:



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 6. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Breanna Dull, Clerk of Council

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
Correspondence received from the Ohio Division of Liquor Control advising of a New, D5 permit
application for 180 Place LLC at 1804 E. 28th Street, Lorain, 44055. (6th Ward)

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Authorize the Clerk to notify the board that no complaints have been received. 

(30 day extension request was granted, new response date: 10/25/25

Attachments
Correspondence 

Form Review
Form Started By: Breanna Dull Started On: 08/28/2025 01:09 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 







CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 6. b.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Maggie Partin, Deputy Clerk

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
Correspondence received from the Ohio Division of Liquor Control advising of a New, D5, D6 permit
application for 180 Place LLC at 1806 E. 28th Street, Lorain, 44055. (6th Ward)

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Authorize the Clerk to notify the Board that no complaints have been received. 

(30 day extension request was granted, new response date: 11/6/25)

Attachments
Liq Control 

Form Review
Form Started By: Maggie Partin Started On: 09/11/2025 01:48 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 







CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 7. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Maggie Partin, Deputy Clerk

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
Correspondence received from Victor Halitzka regarding the proposed ordinance; sleeping in public
places. 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Receive and file. 

Attachments
Correspondence 

Form Review
Form Started By: Maggie Partin Started On: 10/16/2025 12:55 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 





CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 9. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Maggie Partin, Deputy Clerk

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The Finance and Claims Committee met on Monday, October 13, 2025 for quarterly budget
discussions. No action was taken as this was for informational purposes only. 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Concur with the Committee Report.

Form Review
Form Started By: Maggie Partin Started On: 10/16/2025 11:08 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Dawn Walther

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET
COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE
COUNTY AUDITOR.  

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
To approve and accept the 2025 tax levies, rates, and amounts as certified by the Lorain County
Budget Commission

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council to consider for passage.

Attachments
Resolution 
Resolution Documentation 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:10 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:59 AM
Form Started By: Dawn Walther Started On: 10/14/2025 11:21 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



Resolution No. 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS
DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND
AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND
CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR.

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Lorain in accordance with the provisions of law has previously
adopted a Tax Budget for the next succeeding fiscal year commencing January 1, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Commission of Lorain County, Ohio, has certified its action thereon to this
Council together with an estimate by the County Auditor of the rate of each tax necessary to be levied by
this Council, and what part thereof is without, and what part within, the ten mill tax limitation:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I. By the Council of the city of Lorain, Lorain County, Ohio, that the amounts and rates,
as determined by the budget Commission in its certification, be and the same are
hereby accepted.

SECTION II. That there be and is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of said City the rate of each tax
necessary to be levied within and without the ten mill limitation as follows:

See Attachment

SECTION III. That the Clerk of Council is hereby directed to complete pages one, three and four of
the attachment and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Lorain County
Auditor.

SECTION IV. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that
resulted in such formal actions, were in meetings open to the public and in compliance
with all legal requirements, including Ohio Revised Code §121.22.

SECTION V. That this Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

Passed: , 2025
President of Council

Attest: , Clerk
Mayor



   The Council of the City of                          LORAIN Lorain

County, Ohio, met in _______________session on the __________day of______________,

2025 , at the office of the

with the following members present:

moved the adoption of the following Resolution:

WHEREAS, This Council in accordance with the provisions of law has previously

      adopted a Tax Budget for the next succeeding fiscal year commencing January 1st, 2026 ; and

WHEREAS, The Budget Commission of Lorain County, Ohio, has certified its action

thereon to this Council together with an estimate by the County Auditor of the rate of each tax necessary

to be levied by this Council, and what part thereof is without, and what part within, the ten mill tax

limitation; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, By the Council of the City of

Lorain County, Ohio, that the amounts and rates, as determined by the Budget

Commission in its certification, be and the same are hereby accepted; and be it further

RESOLVED, That there be and is hereby levied on the tax duplicate of said City

the rate of each tax necessary to be levied within and without the ten mill limitation as 

follows:

Revised Code, Secs. 5705.34, - 35.

LORAIN CITY
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS DETERMINED BY THE
BUDGET COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND

AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR
(CITY COUNCIL)



LORAIN CITY

FUND
Inside 10  Outside 10
Mill Limit    Mill Limit

V VI
General Fund #17  30,955  3.100  

#42 3,258,605  3.360
#43  450,023 1.600  
#44  194,347 2.800  

 #45  1,557 0.030  
 #68  7,480 2.600  
Fireman's Fund  415,575 0.300  
Police Pension Fund  415,575 0.300  
Sinking Bond Fund 1,385,250 1.000

Fire 1,493,288 1.700

 

 

Totals #17  4.700
#42  4.960
#43  3.200
#44  4.400
#45 1.630
#68 4.200

TOTAL 1,493,288 6,159,367  1.700

FUND

Fire
   authorized by voters on 05/04/21 1.700
          for not to exceed 5 years
Beginning 2021 Duplicate Expiring Last Collection 2026

1.700

10 Mill Inside 10 Mill
Limitation Limitation
Column II Column IV

SCHEDULE B
LEVIES OUTSIDE 10 MILL LIMITATION, EXCLUSIVE OF DEBT LEVIES

Maximum Rate
Authorized

to Be Levied

Derived from by Budget Estimate of Tax Rate
Levies Outside Commission to Be Levied

      SCHEDULE A
  SUMMARY OF AMOUNTS REQUIRED FROM GENERAL PROPERTY TAX APPROVED BY BUDGET COMMISSION,

AND COUNTY AUDITOR'S ESTIMATED TAX RATES
Amount to Be Amount Approved County Auditor's



LORAIN CITY

and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Clerk of this Council be and he is hereby directed to certify a copy

of this Resolution to the County Auditor of said County.

seconded the Resolution and the roll being called upon

its adoption the vote resulted as follows:

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no

, yes no



LORAIN CITY

The State of Ohio,  LORAIN County, ss.

I, , Clerk   of   the  Council   of   the   City   of

,  within    and    for   said    County,   and   in   whose

custody   the   Files   and   Records   of  said   Council   are  required  by   the  Laws  of  the  State  of 

Ohio  to  be  kept,  do  hereby  certify  that  the  foregoing  is  taken  and  copied  from  the  original

now   on   file,  that   the   foregoing   has   been  compared   by   me   with  said   original  document,

and   that   the   same   is   a   true   and   correct   copy  thereof.

WITNESS my signature, this day  of 2025

   1. A copy of this Resolution must be certified to the County Auditor within the time prescribed by Sec. 5705.34 R.C., or at such later
date as may be approved by the Board of Tax Appeals.

No.

Adopted 2025

Filed 2025

    By

COUNTY   AUDITOR.

(City Council)

Clerk of Council

County Auditor

Deputy

LEVIES   AND   CERTIFYING  THEM   TO  THE

LORAIN

Clerk of Council

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

LORAIN

LORAIN County, Ohio

RESOLUTION

ACCEPTING   THE   AMOUNTS   AND   RATES   AS
DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION
AND   AUTHORIZING   THE  NECESSARY  TAX



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. b.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Jacob Morris, Captain 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR
THE PURCHASE OF TEN (10) 2026 FORD INTERCEPTORS & ONE (1) 2026 FORD F-150 (VEHICLES &
APPLICABLE BACKROOM SYSTEM COMPONENTS) WITH ALL EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT INSTALLED
THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIO COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM WITHOUT BID, PURSUANT
TO OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 125.04, NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED AND TEN THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($910,000.00) AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
WHEREAS, Lorain City Council approved the ordinance #22-92 in February 1992 and the electorate of
the City of Lorain approved a one-quarter of one percent additional income tax known as the "Police
Levy"; and,
WHEREAS, the Lorain City Auditor has determined that one hundred percent (100%) of the above
funding is available in the Police Levy Special Revenue Fund; and,
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Lorain has determined that the expenditures provided for by this
Ordinance constitute law enforcement purposes as required by Ordinance #22-92; and,
WHEREAS, Statewide Ford has guaranteed 2025 state pricing for the 2026 model year 2026 Ford
Interceptors and Ford F-150 vehicles ordered by November 1, 2025; and,
WHEREAS, Brite Technology Solutions Inc. has guaranteed pricing for the necessary cruiser
technological components for the above vehicles ordered by November 1, 2025; and,
WHEREAS, numerous existing marked police patrol cars have accumulated extraordinary mileage and
are in need of constant maintenance and repair, and will need to be rotated out of service during the
year 2025;

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consider for passage.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $910,000.00 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Police Levy 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments



Ordinance and Exhibits 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 04:06 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 04:10 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/17/2025 09:16 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/17/2025 10:17 AM
Form Started By: Jacob Morris Started On: 10/15/2025 01:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/17/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    







PASSED: _____________________, 2025 

              __________________________________ 

                      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: _____________________, CLERK 

 

 

APPROVED: __________________, 2025        __________________________________ 

                                      MAYOR 

 











































CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. c.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Jack Fleming

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
Ordinance Request to Accept the Donation of a Marine Patrol Vessel and Accompanying
Apparatus.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
Ohio Department of Natural Resources (ODNR) Desires to Donate to The City of Lorain, A Patrol
Vessel, Two Outboard Motors, And A Trailer. In Order to Facilitate the City of Lorain’s Assistance and
Cooperation with ODNR in the Enforcement of Ohio’s Watercraft Laws and Rules and to Provide
Emergency Response to Boating Accidents on the Water.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consider for passage. 

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 08:49 AM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 09:08 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:58 AM
Form Started By: Jack Fleming Started On: 10/14/2025 07:26 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    





ORDINANCE NO. __________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES TO
ACCEPT THE DONATION OF A PATROL VESSEL AND
ACCOMPANYING APPARATUS, AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Natural Resources, Division of Parks and Watercraft
(ODNR) is an agency of the State of Ohio charged with enforcement of Ohio’s watercraft
laws, Ohio Revised Code Chapters 1547 and 1548; and,

WHEREAS, ODNR desires to voluntarily donate to the City of Lorain, a patrol vessel,
two outboard motors, and a trailer, as set forth more fully in the donation agreement marked
Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference (the “Agreement”), in order
to facilitate the City of Lorain’s assistance and cooperation with ODNR in the enforcement
of Ohio’s watercraft laws and rules and to provide emergency response to boating accidents
on the water; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into the Agreement with ODNR to accept the
donation of the above described patrol vessel and accompanying apparatus.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LORAIN, OHIO:

SECTION I: That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into an Agreement
with the Ohio Department of Natural Resources, a copy of which is marked Exhibit A, attached
hereto. The Agreement shall be in substantial form and essence subject to the approval by the Law
Director.

SECTION II.:  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council, and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions, were
in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including § 121.22 of
the Ohio Revised Code; and

SECTION III:  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the
emergency being the immediate need to accept from ODNR the donation of a patrol vessel and
accompanying apparatus to assist and cooperate with ODNR in the enforcement of Ohio’s
watercraft laws and rules and to provide emergency response to boating accidents on the water.
Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage and approval by the Mayor.

PASSED: __________________________, 2025
`

  _________________________________
                                                                           PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _________________________, 2025



 _________________________________
                                                                            CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _______________________, 2025

_________________________________
   MAYOR



 
Page 1 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

DONATION AGREEMENT 
 
This Donation Agreement (“Agreement”) is between the OHIO DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 

RESOURCES (“ODNR”), acting through its DIVISION OF PARKS & WATERCRAFT, with offices located at 
2045 Morse Road, Building A, Columbus, Ohio 43229, and CITY OF LORAIN (“Marine Patrol”) with a 
mailing address of 200 W. Erie Avenue, Lorain, Ohio 44052. 

 
WHEREAS, ODNR is an agency of the State of Ohio with a mission to ensure a balance between 

the wise use and protection of our natural resources for the benefit of all. 
 
WHEREAS, ODNR is charged with enforcement of Ohio’s watercraft laws, Ohio Revised Code 

Chapters 1547 and 1548 and Marine Patrol has assisted and cooperated with ODNR in the enforcement 
of Ohio’s watercraft laws. 

 
WHEREAS, ODNR desires to voluntarily donate to Marine Patrol a patrol vessel, two outboard 

motors, and a trailer in order to facilitate Marine Patrol’s assistance and cooperation with ODNR in the 
enforcement of Ohio’s watercraft laws and rules and to provide emergency response to boating accidents 
on the water. 

 
WHEREAS, Marine Patrol will provide on-water patrols, enforce Ohio boating laws and rules, 

conduct vessel safety inspections, assist boaters in distress, educate boaters and respond to boating-
related emergencies. 

 
WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code (“R.C.”) 1546.10(A)(3) authorizes the Chief of the Division of Parks 

and Watercraft to dispose of surplus equipment by donation. 
 
WHEREAS, ODNR desires to donate the items listed in Exhibit 1 to Marine Patrol to further its 

mission and the complementary goals of the Parties. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. ODNR’s Ownership. ODNR represents that it is the rightful owner of all right, title, and interest in the 

property listed in Exhibit 1 (“Property”). 
 
2. Donation. ODNR hereby voluntarily transfers the Property to Marine Patrol and relinquishes all right, 

title, and interest in the Property to Marine Patrol. A letter to Marine Patrol, Surplus Property Turn-In 
Form, and letter regarding title transfer are attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 

 
3. Acceptance. Marine Patrol has determined that the Property benefits Marine Patrol and accepts the 

Property from ODNR under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
4. Delivery and Possession. Marine Patrol acknowledges that it is currently in possession of the Property 

included in Exhibit 1 pursuant to its Marine Patrol Equipment Loan Cooperative Agreement. Delivery 
shall be considered complete upon the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 
5. Risk of Loss or Damage. Marine Patrol assumes all risks of loss or damage from the Effective Date of 

this Agreement. 



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 2 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

6. Maintenance. Marine Patrol shall assume the cost of all storage, repairs, maintenance, and operation 
of the Marine Equipment and accessories and shall keep the Marine Equipment in safe, proper 
working-order. Marine Patrol shall follow the maintenance program outlined in the Marine 
Equipment owner’s manual. The outward appearance of the Marine Equipment shall also be 
maintained in good and suitable condition. Maintenance costs may be a fundable expense through 
ODNR’s Marine Patrol Assistance Grant Program. 

 
7. Insurance. Marine Patrol assumes responsibility for procuring and maintaining all applicable property 

insurance for the Property. 
 
8. Warranties. The Property is provided “as is, where is.” ODNR makes no express or implied warranty 

as to the condition of the Property or as to the fitness or safety of the Property for a particular purpose 
including the intended purpose. Marine Patrol agrees that no warranty has been expressed or implied 
by ODNR and that Marine Patrol understands that it is being donated “as is.” Marine Patrol hereby 
forever releases ODNR and expressly waives any and all claims against ODNR relating to or arising out 
of this Agreement and the Property. 

 
9. Non-Appropriation. Performance by ODNR under this Agreement may be dependent upon the 

appropriation of funds by the Ohio General Assembly. Therefore, in accordance with R.C. § 126.07, 
ODNR’s performance under this Agreement is contingent on the availability of such lawful 
appropriations by the Ohio General Assembly. If the Ohio General Assembly fails at any time to 
continue funding for ODNR’s performance due hereunder, this Agreement is voidable at the discretion 
of ODNR as of the date that the funding expires, without further obligation of ODNR. 

 
10. Compliance with Laws. Marine Patrol, in the execution of its duties and obligations under this 

Agreement, agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances. 

 
11. Taxes. ODNR is exempt from federal excise taxes and all state and local taxes. 

 
12. Liability. It is understood and agreed that neither party to this Agreement shall be liable for any 

negligent or wrongful acts, either of commission or omission, chargeable to the other, unless 
such liability is imposed by law. Each party to this Agreement must seek its own legal 
representative and bear its own costs, including judgments, in any litigation that may arise from 
this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to be a waiver of the sovereign 
immunity of the State of Ohio or the immunity of any of its employees or agents for any 
purpose.  In no event shall either party be liable to the other party for indirect, consequential, 
incidental, special, liquidated, or punitive damages, or lost profits. 

 
13. Findings for Recovery. Marine Patrol represents and warrants that it is not subject to a finding for 

recovery under R.C. § 9.24, or that it has taken appropriate remedial steps required under R.C. § 9.24 
or otherwise qualifies under that section. Marine Patrol agrees that if this representation or warranty 
is deemed to be false, this Agreement shall be void ab initio as between the parties to this Agreement. 

 
14. Ohio Ethics Law. Marine Patrol certifies that it: (i) has reviewed and understands the Ohio ethics and 

conflict of interest laws as found in Ohio Revised Code Chapter 102 and in Ohio Revised Code Sections 
2921.42 and 2921.43, and (ii) will take no action inconsistent with those laws. Marine Patrol 



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 3 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

understands that failure to comply with Ohio’s ethics and conflict of interest laws is grounds for 
termination of this Agreement and may result in the loss of other contracts or grants with the State 
of Ohio. 

 
15. Ohio Election Law. Marine Patrol affirms that it is compliant with R.C. § 3517.13. 
 
16. Boycotting. Pursuant to R.C. § 9.76, Marine Patrol hereby declares that it is not boycotting any 

jurisdiction with whom the State of Ohio can participate in open trade, including the nation of Israel, 
and will not do so during the term of this Agreement. 

 
17. Qualifications. Marine Patrol represents and warrants that it has all approvals, licenses, or other 

qualifications needed to conduct its activities in Ohio and that all are current. 
 
18. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and interpreted in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Ohio.  To the extent that ODNR is a party to any litigation arising out of, or relating 
in any way to, this Agreement or the performance thereunder, such an action shall be brought only in 
a court of competent jurisdiction in Franklin County, Ohio. 

 
19. Headings. The headings in this Agreement have been inserted for convenient reference only and shall 

not be considered in any questions of interpretation or construction of this Agreement. 
 
20. Waiver. A waiver by any party of any breach or default by the other party under this Agreement shall 

not constitute a continuing waiver by such party of any subsequent act in breach of or in default 
hereunder. 

 
21. Marine Patrol Authority. Marine Patrol represents and warrants that its signatory to this Agreement 

possesses the authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of Marine Patrol. 
 
22. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and independent, and if any such 

provision shall be determined to be unenforceable in whole or in part, the remaining provisions and 
any partially enforceable provisions shall, to the extent enforceable in any jurisdiction, nevertheless 
be binding and enforceable. 

 
23. Electronic Signatures. Any party hereto may deliver a copy of its counterpart signature page to this 

Agreement electronically pursuant to R.C. Chapter 1306. Each party hereto shall be entitled to rely 
upon an electronic signature of any other party delivered in such a manner as if such signature were 
an original. 

 
24. Execution. This Agreement is not binding upon ODNR unless executed in full and is effective as of the 

date of last signature by ODNR (“Effective Date”). 
 
25. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any attachments, contains the entire agreement 

between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall not be modified, 
amended, or supplemented, or any rights herein waived, unless specifically agreed upon in writing by 
the parties hereto. This Agreement supersedes any and all previous agreements, whether written or 
oral, between the parties. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 4 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

Each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated below that party’s signature. 
 
 
 
MARINE PATROL OHIO DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
  
CITY OF LORAIN DIVISION OF PARKS AND WATERCRAFT 
 
 
 
 
By:   By:   
 
Printed Name:   Printed Name:   
 
Title:   Title:   
 
Date:   Date:   
 
 
  



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 5 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

Exhibit 1 
 

ASSETS 
Item # Description Make Year HIN, Serial #, or VIN 

1 26’7” Patrol Vessel Boston Whaler 2004 WCG00459F404 
2 250 HP Outboard Motor Yamaha 2014 6CGU1007384 
3 250 HP Outboard Motor Yamaha 2014 6CHU1001934 
4 Trailer for Patrol Vessel Boat Master 2004 42XBG27374F210869 

  



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 6 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

Exhibit 2 

 



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 7 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

 



Donation Agreement between ODNR 
And City of Lorain 

Legal Contract ID # 2025-1635 
 

 
Page 8 of 8 ODNR Legal Form 

Rev. Aug. 26, 2025 

 



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. d.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Dave Comer, I.T. Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A
FIVE-YEAR LEASE AGREEMENT  WITH COMDOC FOR  REPLACEMENT AND UPGRADE OF
THE CITY’S PRINTING AND MULTI-FUNCTION SYSTEMS, MAINTAINING THOSE DEVICES
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
Lease agreement for printers and mulit-function devices 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Request passage 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: 260,000 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 1010.E350.7100.1000 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
$260,000 is the 5 year total for the lease. Monthly payments will be made.  

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Cover Letter 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Dave Comer 10/15/2025 03:09 PM
Dave Comer - I.T. (Originator) Dave Comer 10/15/2025 03:12 PM
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 08:49 AM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 09:08 AM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/16/2025 09:51 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:58 AM
Form Started By: Dave Comer Started On: 10/14/2025 02:02 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. __________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A FIVE-YEAR LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH COMDOC, INC. FOR THE
REPLACEMENT AND UPGRADE OF THE CITY’S PRINTING
AND MULTI-FUNCTION SYSTEMS, MAINTAINING THOSE
DEVICES AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain has printers and multi-function devices in all City
Departments; and,

WHEREAS, the City solicited and received multiple quotes for the replacement and
upgrade of the City’s printing and multi-function devices for all City of Lorain Departments; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a five-year lease agreement with COMDOC,
Inc. for the replacement and upgrade of printing and multi-function devices for all City of Lorain
Departments; and,

WHEREAS, COMDOC, Inc. is part of the Equalis Group Purchasing Contract, #R10-
1169C, which is part of a national purchasing program that exempts the City from having to
competitively bid for these devices; and,

WHEREAS, funds have been approved by City Council through the budget process.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LORAIN, OHIO:

SECTION I: That the Safety Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into a five-year
agreement with COMDOC, Inc. for the lease of printing and multi-function systems, a copy of
which is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto (the “Agreement”). The Agreement shall be in
substantial form and essence subject to the approval by the Law Director.

SECTION II: That the five-year Agreement shall not exceed 260,000.00 and shall be paid from
paid Information Technology Department Leases 1010.E350.7100.1000:

 
SECTION III.:   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council, and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions, were
in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including § 121.22 of
the Ohio Revised Code; and

SECTION IV:  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the
emergency being the immediate need to provide continued support and          maintenance of the
City of Lorain's existing computer system's without interruption for the efficient operation of
governmental computer systems. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon
passage and approval by the Mayor.



PASSED: __________________________, 2025
`

  _________________________________
                                                                           PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _________________________, 2025

 _________________________________
                                                                            CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _______________________, 2025

_________________________________
   MAYOR































                         Web Site: www.cityoflorain.org

The City of Lorain, Ohio
Information Technology Department

200 West Erie Avenue, 6th Floor        Phone: (440) 204-2004
Lorain, OH 44052-1606                                                        

October 14, 2025

Lorain city Council,

Members of Council,

Attached find two Ordinances for the purchase, lease and maintenance of the city’s printing and multi-
function devices. These are five year agreements, similar to what has been in place for the past five years.

The City received approximately ten proposals for the upgrade and replacement and upgrade of all printing
and multi-function devices covering all City Departments. The decision was made to keep COMDOC as our
partner for printing systems. We have an excellent working relationship with COMDOC and the prices for
maintenance and lease was the best of the proposals we received.

I ask for your passage of the two ordinances and look forward to implementing these systems for the City
Departments.

If you have any questions, please feel free to reach out to me.

David Comer
Information Technology Director
DComer@Cityoflorain.org
(440)204.2095

mailto:DComer@cityoflorain.org


CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. e.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Dave Comer, I.T. Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A
FIVE-YEAR AGREEMENT  WITH COMDOC FOR  REPLACEMENT AND UPGRADE OF THE
CITY’S PRINTING AND MULTI-FUNCTION SYSTEMS, MAINTAINING THOSE DEVICES AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
Upgrading and replacing all the City's printing system, including maintenance costs as attached in
exhibit A 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Recommend passage 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $210,000 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 1010.E350.6300.1200 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Dave Comer 10/15/2025 03:07 PM
Dave Comer - I.T. (Originator) Dave Comer 10/15/2025 03:12 PM
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 08:50 AM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 09:08 AM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/16/2025 09:51 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:58 AM
Form Started By: Dave Comer Started On: 10/14/2025 02:09 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. __________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A FIVE-YEAR AGREEMENT
WITH COMDOC, INC. FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND
SERVICING OF THE CITY’S PRINTING AND MULTI-
FUNCTION SYSTEMS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain has printers and multi-function devices in all City
Departments; and,

WHEREAS, the City solicited and received multiple quotes for the provision of
maintenance and servicing of the City’s printing and multi-function devices for all City of Lorain
Departments; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a five-year contract with COMDOC, Inc. for the
provision of maintenance and servicing of the City’s printing and multi-function devices for all
City of Lorain Departments; and,

WHEREAS, COMDOC, Inc. is part of the Equalis Group Purchasing Contract, #R10-
1169C, which is part of a national purchasing program that exempts the City from having to
competitively bid for these services; and,

WHEREAS, funds have been approved by City Council through the budget process.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LORAIN, OHIO:

SECTION I: That the Safety Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into a five-year
agreement with COMDOC, Inc. for the provision of maintenance and servicing to the City’s
printing and multi-function devices, a copy of which is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto (the
“Agreement”). The Agreement shall be in substantial form and essence subject to the approval by
the Law Director.

SECTION II: That the five-year Agreement shall not exceed $210,000 and shall be paid from
Information Technology Department Maintenance Agreements, 1010.E350.6300.1200:

 
SECTION III.:   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council, and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions, were
in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including § 121.22 of
the Ohio Revised Code; and

SECTION IV:  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the
emergency being the immediate need to provide continued support and         maintenance of the
City of Lorain's existing computer system's without interruption for the efficient operation of
governmental computer systems. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon
passage and approval by the Mayor.



PASSED: __________________________, 2025
`

  _________________________________
                                                                           PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _________________________, 2025

 _________________________________
                                                                            CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _______________________, 2025

_________________________________
   MAYOR































CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. f.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Elva Martes

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO GIVE CONSENT TO THE
DIRECTOR OF TRANSPORTATION TO PERFORM ANNUAL MOWING FOR STATE ROUTE 2 CORRIDOR
INCLUDING RAMPS AND REST AREAS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The State has identified the need for an annual mowing contract for State Route 2 corridor including
ramps and rest areas.  Being in the public interest, the City of Lorain gives consent to the Director of
Transportation to complete said project.  The City of Lorain will bear no financial responsibility of said
project.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consideration for passage.

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Elva Martes 10/16/2025 09:22 AM
Elva Flowers (Originator) Breanna Dull 10/16/2025 09:27 AM
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 03:59 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 04:13 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 04:19 PM
Form Started By: Elva Martes Started On: 10/09/2025 10:49 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO GIVE
CONSENT TO THE DIRECTOR OF TRANSPORTATION TO PERFORM ANNUAL
MOWING FOR STATE ROUTE 2 CORRIDOR INCLUDING RAMPS AND REST
AREAS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the State has identified the need for the described project:
The proposed project is for the annual mowing contract for State Route 2 corridor including
ramps and rest areas.  Specifically for the City, work will be from approximately the 9.172-
mile marker to the 9.670-mile marker of State Route 2, and;

WHEREAS, the mowing contract is for two (2) mowings to occur during the year 2026
between May 1 and October 31, and;

WHEREAS, being in the public interest, the City gives consent to the Director of
Transportation to complete the above-described project, as it is more fully described in
Exhibit A hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I:  That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to give consent to the
Ohio Department of Transportation to complete the annual mowing contract for State
Route 2 corridor, including ramps and rest areas on the conditions that (1) the City of
Lorain bear no financial responsibility for the cost of such mowing and (2) that the City
shall bear one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost for added construction items
requested by the City and not necessary for the improvement as determined by the State
and the Federal Highway Administration.

SECTION II:  That the Safety/Service Director shall and is hereby authorized to fulfill the
City of Lorain’s obligation to provide adequate maintenance for the described Project in
accordance with all applicable state and federal law, provide ample financial provisions, as
necessary for the maintenance of the described project and maintain the right-of-way,
keeping it free of obstructions; and hold said right-of-way inviolate for public highway
purposes.

SECTION III:  That if City owned utilities, within a corporation limited or in a private
easement outside corporation limits, need to be relocated due to this ODOT project, the
City will be reimbursed for any relocation work; ODOT will perform the coordination,
relocation, and reimbursement which shall comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR
645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual.  And, if other public and private utilities need to be
relocated due to this ODOT project, they will not be reimbursed for relocation; with



exceptions due to an easement, etc.

SECTION IV:  That the Safety/Service Director of the City of Lorain is hereby
empowered on behalf of the City of Lorain to enter into contracts with the Director of
Transportation necessary to complete the above-described project, subject to further
approval of Lorain City Council and the Law Director’s Office.

SECTION V:  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting
of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that
resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the public, and in compliance with
all legal requirements, including Section 121.22, Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION VI:  This ordinance is hereby declared to be and emergency measure to
expedite the highway project and to promote highway safety.  Therefore, this ordinance
shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, providing that
it meets the statutory requirements for passage otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force
from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _____________________, 2025

__________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _____________________, CLERK

__________________________________
MAYOR

APPROVED: __________________, 2025
  



 

 

         “EXHIBIT A” 

CONSENT LEGISLATION 
 

Ordinance/Resolution No.   ___________________                                         

PID No.  _ 115625__           

Project Name    D03 MOW FY2026 (B) 
 

The following _____________ enacted by the City of Lorain of   Lorain County, Ohio, 
  (Ordinance/Resolution) 

 hereinafter referred to as the City, in the matter of the stated described project. 

 

SECTION I - Project Description 
 

WHEREAS, the State has identified the need for the described project: 

 

The proposed project is for the annual mowing contract for State Route 2 corridor including ramps 

and rest areas.  Specifically for the City, work will be from approximately the 9.172-mile marker to 

the 9.670-mile marker of State Route 2.   

 

The mowing contract is for two (2) mowings to occur during the year 2026 between May 1 and 

October 31. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Lorain of Lorain County, Ohio. 

 

SECTION II - Consent Statement 
 

Being in the public interest, the City gives consent to the Director of Transportation to complete the above 

described project. 

 

SECTION III - Cooperation Statement 
 

The City shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above described project as follows:  
 

 1) The City gives consent for the above improvement, 
 

 2) No funds are required from the City except that the City agrees to assume and bear one 

hundred percent (100%) of the total cost for added construction items requested by the City 

and not necessary for the improvement as determined by the State and the Federal Highway 

Administration. 
 

SECTION IV - Maintenance 
 

Upon completion of the described Project, and unless otherwise agreed, the City shall: 

 

1) Provide adequate maintenance for the described Project in accordance with all  

     applicable state and federal law; 

 

2) Provide ample financial provisions, as necessary, for the maintenance of the described  

     project; 
 

3) Maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of obstructions; and hold said right-of- 



 

 

     way inviolate for public highway purposes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PID No.  _ 115625_           

Project Name    D03 MOW FY2026 (B) 

 

SECTION V – Utilities and Right-of-Way Statement 

 

If City owned utilities, within a corporation limit or in a private easement outside corporation limits, need to 

be relocated due to this ODOT project, the City will be reimbursed for any relocation work; ODOT will 

perform the coordination, relocation, and reimbursement which shall comply with the current provisions of 

23 CFR 645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual. 

 

If other public and private utilities need to be relocated due to this ODOT project they will not be reimbursed 

for relocation; with exceptions due to an easement, etc. 

 

SECTION VI - Authority to Sign 

 

The __________________of said City of Lorain is hereby empowered on behalf 
  (Contractual Agent) 

 

of the City of Lorain to enter into contracts with the Director of Transportation  
 

necessary to complete the above described project. 

 

     Passed: _____________________, 202___. 
            (Date) 

 

Attested: _____________________________     ______________________________________ 
               (Clerk)           (Officer of City- title) 
 

Attested: _____________________________     ______________________________________ 
               (Title)          (Mayor) 

 

This _____________ is hereby declared to be an emergency measure to expedite the highway 
         (Ordinance/Resolution) 

project and to promote highway safety. Following appropriate legislative action, it shall take 
 

effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval, otherwise it shall take effect 
 

and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law. 



 

 

 PID No.  _ 115625_           

Project Name    D03 MOW FY2026 (B) 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COPY 

STATE OF OHIO 

City of Lorain of    Lorain County, Ohio 

 

 

I, __________________, as Clerk of the City of Lorain of Lorain County, Ohio,  

 

Do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of _____________ adopted by 
                            (Ordinance/Resolution) 

the legislative Authority of the said City of Lorain  on this ____ day of  _____, 202__,  
 

that the publication of such _____________  has been made and certified of record according to 
            (Ordinance/Resolution) 

law;  that no proceedings looking to a referendum upon such _____________ have been taken; 
    (Ordinance/Resolution) 

and that such _____________  and certificate of publication thereof are of record in 
              (Ordinance/Resolution) 

_____________, Page _________. 
(Ordinance/Resolution) 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my official  

seal, if applicable, this ____ day of  ________, 202__, 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

 (SEAL)            Clerk Signature 

           (If Applicable)      City of Lorain of Lorain County, Ohio. 
             

 

 

 The foregoing is accepted as a basis for proceeding with the project herein described. 

 

For the    City of Lorain  of   Lorain County, Ohio 

 

Attest: ____________________ _________________________________, Date _________ 
                Contractual Officer 



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. g.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Elva Martes

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO WAIVE UTILITIES AND
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THE LORAIN PORT AUTHORITY’S BLACK
RIVER LANDING AMPHITHEATER PROJECT WITHIN THE CITY OF LORAIN AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.
 

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The City of Lorain recognizes the importance of the Lorain Port Authority's Black River Landing
Amphitheater Project and desires to waive the Utilities and Engineering Departments Fees in
connection with said project.  The estimated amount of these fees is $13,228.60.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consideration for Passage?

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N/A 
Estimated Total Expenditure: N/A 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: N/A 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): N/A 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
Estimated to be $13,228.60 fees/revenue waived. 

Attachments
Ordinance 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 08:46 AM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 08:47 AM
JKoziura Elva Martes 10/16/2025 09:19 AM
Elva Flowers (Originator) Breanna Dull 10/16/2025 09:26 AM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/16/2025 09:35 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:59 AM
Form Started By: Elva Martes Started On: 10/10/2025 11:19 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO:__________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO WAIVE
UTILITIES AND ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THE
LORAIN PORT AUTHORITY’S BLACK RIVER LANDING AMPHITHEATER
PROJECT WITHIN THE CITY OF LORAIN AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain recognizes the importance of the Lorain Port Authority’s
Black River Landing Amphitheater Project and desires to waive the Utilities and
Engineering Department Fees in connection with said project; and,

WHEREAS, the estimated amount of these fees is $13,228.60.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION 1:  That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to waive fees and
charges required by codified ordinances 911.600, 911.405, 911.524, 911.418, 911.501
913.025, 913.250, 913.253, 913.255, 913.270, 913.273, 1529.15(c) and fees associated
with ordinance 42-04, in connection with the Lorain Port Authority’s Black River Landing
Amphitheater Project within the City of Lorain.

 
SECTION 2:  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting
of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that
resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the public, and in compliance with
all legal requirements, including Section 121.22, Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 3:  That this ordinance shall be declared an emergency due to the necessity to
meet the construction timeline of said project and to provide for the health safety and
welfare of the citizens of Lorain in order to complete the amphitheater project in a timely
manner. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by
the Mayor, providing that it meets statutory requirements for passage otherwise, it shall take effect
and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _____________________, 2025

__________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _____________________, CLERK

__________________________________
MAYOR



APPROVED: __________________, 2025



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. h.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Kathryn Golden

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE NORTHEAST OHIO AREA-WIDE
COORDINATING AGENCY FOR THE CITY’S “TLCI SUNSET PIER PARK TRAILHEAD” AND AUTHORIZING
THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY/SERVICE OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, OHIO, TO FILE, RECEIVE, AND
EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY PAPERWORK TO APPLY FOR AND RECEIVE, IF AWARDED GRANT FUNDING.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The United States Congress has set aside monies for Transportation for Livable Communities Projects
through the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency (NOACA). The City of Lorain can apply for
these monies and be selected for funding by NOACA. The Transportation for Livable Communities
(TLCI) Lorain – Sunset Pier Park Trailhead is a transportation activity eligible to receive federal funding.
The Transportation for Livable Communities (TLCI) Lorain – Sunset Pier Park Trailhead has an
estimated cost not to exceed $1,200,000.00. The City of Lorain acknowledges that the grant
regulations imposed upon it any cost of the project in excess of $500,000. In the event the project
costs exceed $500,000, the City of Lorain will pay such excess cost from various grant or City funds the
Auditor deems appropriate.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consideration and passage

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $1,200,000 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Various as determined by Auditor 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): $500,000 Grant - If Funded - Anticipated in

2028 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Ordinance - TLCI Application 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 04:15 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 04:18 PM



JKoziura 10/17/2025 10:09 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/17/2025 10:17 AM
Form Started By: Kathryn Golden Started On: 10/15/2025 02:51 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/17/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.  ___________

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE NORTHEAST
OHIO AREA-WIDE COORDINATING AGENCY FOR THE CITY’S “TLCI
SUNSET PIER PARK TRAILHEAD” AND AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF
PUBLIC SAFETY/SERVICE OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, OHIO, TO FILE,
RECEIVE, AND EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY PAPERWORK TO APPLY FOR
AND RECEIVE, IF AWARDED GRANT FUNDING.

WHEREAS, the United States Congress has set aside monies for Transportation for
Livable Communities Projects through the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency
(NOACA); and,

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain can apply for these monies and be selected for funding by
NOACA; and,

WHEREAS, the Transportation for Livable Communities (TLCI) Lorain – Sunset Pier
Park Trailhead is a transportation activity eligible to receive federal funding; and,

WHEREAS, the Transportation for Livable Communities (TLCI) Lorain – Sunset Pier
Park Trailhead has an estimated cost not to exceed $1,200,000.00; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain acknowledges that the grant regulations imposed upon it
any cost of the project in excess of $500,000 and,

WHEREAS, in the event the project costs exceed $500,000, the City of Lorain will pay
such excess cost from various grant or City funds the Auditor deems appropriate.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I: This ordinance ratifies a grant application to the for the City’s “Transportation
for Livable Communities (TLCI) Lorain – Sunset Pier Park Trailhead” and authorizes the
Director of Safety/Service to file, receive, and execute all necessary paperwork to apply for
and receive, if awarded, this grant funding.

SECTION II: The total cost of the Transportation for Livable Communities (TLCI) Lorain
– Sunset Pier Park Trailhead project is estimated to be $1,200,00.00, and any construction
cost over and above the maximum amount provided by NOACA, shall be paid from various
grant or City funds the Auditor deems appropriate.

SECTION III: That, City of Lorain shall carry out the aforementioned project and
administer this grant in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, and all
terms of the NOACA, if awarded.

SECTION IV: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were conducted in an open meeting
of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that



resulted in such formal action were conducted in meetings open to the public in compliance
with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION V: That this Ordinance shall, after passage by Council and approval by the
Mayor, take effect, and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:   _____________________, 2025 _____________________________
     PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST:  _____________________, CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: , 2025  ____________________________
MAYOR



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. i.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Matt Kusznir, Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCES 117-15 AND CHAPTER 1545 OF THE CODIFIED
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN “LAND REUTILIZATION” AND ESTABLISHING A NEW
CHAPTER 1545 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN “LAND REUTILIZATION”

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
WHEREAS, the City of Lorain’s Building, Housing & Planning Department and Safety/Service
Department has reviewed Chapter 1545 and is requesting changes to the Codified Ordinances; and,

WHEREAS, if adopted the Ordinance will enable the Building, Housing & Planning Department to
streamline the disposition of underutilized infill lots in the City of Lorain. 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consideration and passage. 

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Track Changes 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 04:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 04:14 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 04:19 PM
Form Started By: Matt Kusznir Started On: 10/15/2025 02:36 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. __________

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCES 117-15 AND
CHAPTER 1545 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF LORAIN “LAND REUTILIZATION” AND
ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 1545 OF THE
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN
“LAND REUTILIZATION”

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain’s Building, Housing & Planning Department and
Safety/Service Department has reviewed Chapter 1545 and is requesting changes to the Codified
Ordinances; and,

WHEREAS, if adopted the Ordinance will enable the Building, Housing & Planning
Department to streamline the disposition of underutilized infill lots in the City of Lorain.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I: That Ordinance 117-15, and Chapter 1545 of the Codified Ordinances of the City
of Lorain, “Land Reutilization,” a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference as Exhibit A, are hereby repealed.

SECTION II: That there is hereby established a new Chapter 1545 of the Codified Ordinances of
the City of Lorain, “Land Reutilization,” a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference as Exhibit B.

SECTION III: That, it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that results in such formal actions
were conducted in meeting open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including
Section 121.22 of Ohio Revised Code.

PASSED:__________________________, 2025 ____________________________________
           PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: __________________________, CLERK

APPROVED:_______________________, 2025    ____________________________________
                                                                                                             MAYOR



CHAPTER 1545  Land Reutilization 

1545.01 PURPOSE. 

(a) The City of Lorain adopts and implements the procedures set forth in Ohio R.C. Chapter

5722 in order to develop a process to facilitate the effective reutilization of nonproductive

land situated in the boundaries of the City of Lorain and owned by the City of Lorain.

The procedures set forth in O.R.C. Chapter 5722 are adopted and implemented by the

City of Lorain as there exists sufficient and substantial nonproductive land owned by the

City of Lorain within the boundaries of the City of Lorain which is of such nature and

extent as to necessitate the implementation of a Land Reutilization Program to advance

either the return of such nonproductive land to tax revenue generating status or the

devotion thereof to public use.

(b) The Director of Building, Housing and Planning shall administer the Land Reutilization

Program established pursuant to subsection (a) hereof and Ohio R.C. Chapter 5722. If

lands required of such Land Reutilization Program are sold, they shall be sold as follows:

(1) The purchaser shall apply in writing to the Director of Building, Housing and

Planning indicating which lot(s) they wish to purchase denoted by the land parcel

number and indicating the proposed use for redevelopment of the property. The

purchase price shall not be less than fair market value which has been determined

to be $8.00 per front foot regardless of the size or location of the lot. Corner lots

shall be charged for the front footage on the address side of the property.

(2) The conveyance from the City shall contain the covenant and agreement that the

purchaser shall comply with the propsed use for redevelopment. If the purchaser

fails to comply, the property and all improvements thereon may immediately

revert to the City at no cost after ten days written notification by certified mail to

the purchaser, if City Council approves;

(3) It shall further be a condition of the conveyance from the City that the purchaser

shall agree in writing to keep the property in their name for a minimum of five (5)

years and to maintain the property in accordance with all applicable Health,

Building and Property Maintenance Codes of the City. This condition may be

waived upon the written authorization of the Director of Safety-Service.

(4) No lot shall be sold to any person who is delinquent of his/her/its real estate taxes

and/or municipal income taxes; nor in violation of any Zoning, Building, Health

or Property Maintenance Codes of the City. In addition, no property shall be sold

to any person who is more than sixty (60) days delinquent on any City utility bill

or' in arrears on payments to the Municipality in any capacity;

(5) The conveyances of property sold or transferred pursuant to this section shall

contain the covenant and condition that if the property is sold within five years or

at any time the purchaser violates any of the existing Health, Building or Property

Maintenance Codes, upon ten (10) days written notification by certified mail to

the purchaser, if the violations are not corrected within thirty days, the lot and all

Exhibit A



improvements thereon may immediately revert back to the City, if City Council 

approves; 

(6) The Director of Safety/Service is authorized to execute and deliver all deeds or

other instruments of conveyances necessary to dispose of land acquired though

the City's Land Reutilization Program;

(7) The Director of Building, Housing and Planning shall compile and maintain a

written inventory of all properties held by and/or obtained under the Land

Reutilization Program and establish and maintain records and accounts reflecting

all transactions, expenditures and revenues relating to the Land Reutilization

Program;

(c) In order to enhance the effectiveness of the Land Reutilization Program, the Director of

Building, Housing and Planning may accept, as gifts on behalf of the City, real property,

which shall be held, administered and disposed of in the same manner as are lands

acquired pursuant to this Section and Ohio R.C. Chapter 5722, if City Council approves.

Any and all real property offered and/ or accepted must be free of any and all

encumbrances.

1545.02  APPROPRIATION OF FEES COLLECTED. 

   Any and all fees collected shall be paid into the Treasury of the City and shall in turn be 

certified by the City Auditor and appropriated by City Council for the administration of this 

section, and towards activities and areas eligible under the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development Programs which include, but are not limited to the Community 

Development Block Grant and HOME Investment Partnership programs. 



CHAPTER 1545  Land Reutilization 

1545.01 PURPOSE. 

(a) The City of Lorain adopts and implements the procedures set forth in Ohio R.C. Chapter

5722 in order to develop a process to facilitate the effective reutilization of nonproductive

land situated in the boundaries of the City of Lorain and owned by the City of Lorain.

The procedures set forth in O.R.C. Chapter 5722 are adopted and implemented by the

City of Lorain as there exists sufficient and substantial nonproductive land owned by the

City of Lorain within the boundaries of the City of Lorain which is of such nature and

extent as to necessitate the implementation of a Land Reutilization Program to advance

either the return of such nonproductive land to tax revenue generating status or the

devotion thereof to public use.

(b) The Director of Building, Housing and Planning shall administer the Land Reutilization

Program established pursuant to subsection (a) hereof and Ohio R.C. Chapter 5722. If

lands required of such Land Reutilization Program are sold, they shall be sold as follows:

(1) The purchaser shall apply in writing to the Director of Building, Housing and

Planning indicating which lot(s) they wish to purchase denoted by the land parcel

number and indicating the proposed use for redevelopment of the property. The

purchase price shall not be less than fair market value which has been determined

to be $8.00 per front foot regardless of the size or location of the lot. Corner lots

shall be charged for the front footage on the address side of the property.

(2) The conveyance from the City shall contain the covenant and agreement that the

purchaser shall comply with the propsed use for redevelopment. If the purchaser

fails to comply, the property and all improvements thereon may immediately

revert to the City at no cost after ten days written notification by certified mail to

the purchaser, if City Council approves;

(3) It shall further be a condition of the conveyance from the City that the purchaser

shall agree in writing to keep the property in their name for a minimum of five (5)

years and to maintain the property in accordance with all applicable Health,

Building and Property Maintenance Codes of the City. This condition may be

waived upon the written authorization of the Director of Safety-Service.

(4) No lot shall be sold to any person who is delinquent of his/her/its real estate taxes

and/or municipal income taxes; nor in violation of any Zoning, Building, Health

or Property Maintenance Codes of the City. In addition, no property shall be sold

to any person who is more than sixty (60) days delinquent on any City utility bill

or' in arrears on payments to the Municipality in any capacity;

(5) The conveyances of property sold or transferred pursuant to this section shall

contain the covenant and condition that if the property is sold within five years or

at any time the purchaser violates any of the existing Health, Building or Property

Maintenance Codes, upon ten (10) days written notification by certified mail to

the purchaser, if the violations are not corrected within thirty days, the lot and all

Exhibit  B



improvements thereon may immediately revert back to the City, if City Council 

approves; 

(6) The Director of Safety/Service is authorized to execute and deliver all deeds or

other instruments of conveyances necessary to dispose of land acquired though

the City's Land Reutilization Program;

(7) The Director of Building, Housing and Planning shall compile and maintain a

written inventory of all properties held by and/or obtained under the Land

Reutilization Program and establish and maintain records and accounts reflecting

all transactions, expenditures and revenues relating to the Land Reutilization

Program;

(c) In order to enhance the effectiveness of the Land Reutilization Program, the Director of

Building, Housing and Planning may accept, as gifts on behalf of the City, real property,

which shall be held, administered and disposed of in the same manner as are lands

acquired pursuant to this Section and Ohio R.C. Chapter 5722, if City Council approves.

Any and all real property offered and/ or accepted must be free of any and all

encumbrances.

1545.02  APPROPRIATION OF FEES COLLECTED. 

   Any and all fees collected shall be paid into the Treasury of the City and shall in turn be 

certified by the City Auditor and appropriated by City Council for the administration of this 

section, and towards activities and areas eligible under the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development Programs which include, but are not limited to the Community 

Development Block Grant and HOME Investment Partnership programs. 



CHAPTER 1545  Land Reutilization

1545.01 PURPOSE.

(a) The City of Lorain adopts and implements the procedures set forth in Ohio R.C. Chapter
5722 in order to develop a process to facilitate the effective reutilization of nonproductive
land situated in the boundaries of the City of Lorain and owned by the City of Lorain.
The procedures set forth in O.R.C. Chapter 5722 are adopted and implemented by the
City of Lorain as there exists sufficient and substantial nonproductive land owned by the
City of Lorain within the boundaries of the City of Lorain which is of such nature and
extent as to necessitate the implementation of a Land Reutilization Program to advance
either the return of such nonproductive land to tax revenue generating status or the
devotion thereof to public use.

(b) The Director of Building, Housing and Planning shall administer the Land Reutilization
Program established pursuant to subsection (a) hereof and Ohio R.C. Chapter 5722. If
lands required of such Land Reutilization Program are sold, they shall be sold as follows:

(1) The purchaser shall apply in writing to the Director of Building, Housing and
Planning indicating which lot(s) they wish to purchase denoted by the land parcel
number and indicating the proposed use for redevelopment of the property. The
purchase price shall not be less than fair market value which has been determined
to be $8.00 per front foot regardless of the size or location of the lot. Corner lots
shall be charged for the front footage on the address side of the property.

(2) The conveyance from the City shall contain the covenant and agreement that the
purchaser shall comply with the propsed use for redevelopment. If the purchaser
fails to comply, the property and all improvements thereon may immediately
revert to the City at no cost after ten days written notification by certified mail to
the purchaser, if City Council approves;

(3) It shall further be a condition of the conveyance from the City that the purchaser
shall agree in writing to keep the property in their name for a minimum of five (5)
years and to maintain the property in accordance with all applicable Health,
Building and Property Maintenance Codes of the City. This condition may be
waived upon the written authorization of the Director of Safety-Service.

(4) No lot shall be sold to any person who is delinquent of his/her/its real estate taxes
and/or municipal income taxes; nor in violation of any Zoning, Building, Health
or Property Maintenance Codes of the City. In addition, no property shall be sold
to any person who is more than sixty (60) days delinquent on any City utility bill
or' in arrears on payments to the Municipality in any capacity;

(5) The conveyances of property sold or transferred pursuant to this section shall
contain the covenant and condition that if the property is sold within five years or
at any time the purchaser violates any of the existing Health, Building or Property
Maintenance Codes, upon ten (10) days written notification by certified mail to
the purchaser, if the violations are not corrected within thirty days, the lot and all



improvements thereon may immediately revert back to the City, if City Council
approves;

(7) The Director of Safety/Service is authorized to execute and deliver all deeds or
other instruments of conveyances necessary to dispose of land acquired though
the City's Land Reutilization Program;

(8) The Director of Building, Housing and Planning shall compile and maintain a
written inventory of all properties held by and/or obtained under the Land
Reutilization Program and establish and maintain records and accounts reflecting
all transactions, expenditures and revenues relating to the Land Reutilization
Program;

(c) In order to enhance the effectiveness of the Land Reutilization Program, the Director of
Building, Housing and Planning may accept, as gifts on behalf of the City, real property,
which shall be held, administered and disposed of in the same manner as are lands
acquired pursuant to this Section and Ohio R.C. Chapter 5722, if City Council approves.
Any and all real property offered and/ or accepted must be free of any and all
encumbrances.

1545.02  APPROPRIATION OF FEES COLLECTED.

   Any and all fees collected shall be paid into the Treasury of the City and shall in turn be
certified by the City Auditor and appropriated by City Council for the administration of this
section, and towards activities and areas eligible under the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development Programs which include, but are not limited to the Community
Development Block Grant and HOME Investment Partnership programs.



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. j.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Joe Carbonaro, Utilities Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 111-25, AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN OHIO WATER POLLUTION CONTROL LOAN FUND WATER
RESOURCE RESTORATION SPONSOR PROGRAM SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
WHEREAS, Ordinance 111-25 was previously passed by City Council on September 2, 2025 with
Jaeger Road Pump Station as the project for the City; and
 
WHEREAS, the Ohio EPA has indicated that the City needs to use the Pearl and Tacoma Pump Station
Improvements Project in lieu of the Jaeger Road Pump Station Project; and
 
WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has created the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund ("WPCLF") pursuant
to O.R.C. 6111.036 to provide financial assistance for water resources protection and improvement
actions; and
WHEREAS, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency ("Ohio EPA") has created the Water Resource
Restoration Sponsor Program ("WRRSP") within the WPCLF for the effective perpetual protection and
maintenance of Ohio's high-quality aquatic ecosystem resources; and
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lorain has previously determined that the Pearl and Tacoma Pump Stations are
in need of improvements and expanded capacity; and
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lorain, Utilities Department, has applied for WPCLF funding for the
construction of the Pearl and Tacoma Pump Station Improvements; and
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Utilities Department recognizes and supports the conservation and
enhancement of the natural resources to be performed by the Singer Lake Bog Expansion Project.
 
WHEREAS, the Cleveland Museum of Natural History has proposed acquiring and protecting valuable
water resources through the Singer Lake Bog Expansion Project for a sponsorship amount not to
exceed $537,000; and
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lorian Utilities Department intends to participate in the WRRSP to assist the
Singer Lake Bog Expansion Project up to the aforementioned sponsorship amount.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Passage



Attachments
Amended Ordinance 
Agreement 
Original Ordinance 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Joe Carbonaro 10/16/2025 01:34 PM
Carbonaro (Originator) Joe Carbonaro 10/16/2025 01:36 PM
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/16/2025 03:59 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/16/2025 04:11 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 04:19 PM
Form Started By: Joe Carbonaro Started On: 10/09/2025 05:49 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. _____
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 111-25, AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN OHIO WATER POLLUTION CONTROL LOAN FUND WATER
RESOURCE RESTORATION SPONSOR PROGRAM SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT.

WHEREAS, Ordinance 111-25 was previously passed by City Council on September 2, 2025 with Jaeger Road Pump
Station as the project for the City; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio EPA has indicated that the City needs to use the Pearl and Tacoma Pump Station Improvements
Project in lieu of the Jaeger Road Pump Station Project; and

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has created the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund ("WPCLF") pursuant to O.R.C.
6111.036 to provide financial assistance for water resources protection and improvement actions; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency ("Ohio EPA") has created the Water Resource Restoration
Sponsor Program ("WRRSP") within the WPCLF for the effective perpetual protection and maintenance of Ohio's high-
quality aquatic ecosystem resources; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain has previously determined that the Pearl and Tacoma Pump Stations are in need of
improvements and expanded capacity; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain, Utilities Department, has applied for WPCLF funding for the construction of the Pearl
and Tacoma Pump Station Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Utilities Department recognizes and supports the conservation and enhancement of
the natural resources to be performed by the Singer Lake Bog Expansion Project.

WHEREAS, the Cleveland Museum of Natural History has proposed acquiring and protecting valuable water
resources through the Singer Lake Bog Expansion Project for a sponsorship amount not to exceed $537,000; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Utilities Department intends to participate in the WRRSP to assist the Singer Lake
Bog Expansion Project up to the aforementioned sponsorship amount.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF
OHIO:

SECTION I: That, the Safety/Service Director, is hereby authorized as approved to form by the Law Director of the
City of Lorain, to enter into an agreement for the purpose of sponsorship of the Singer Lake Bog Expansion Project.

SECTION II: That, if approved, the Director of Safety/Service is hereby authorized to execute any and all
documentation that may be required by the WPCLF and WRRSP to administer a Cooperative Agreement for the
purpose stated therein.

SECTION III: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the
passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council; and that all deliberations of this Council
and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the public and in compliance
with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22, Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION IV: That this ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.



PASSED: _______________, 2025 __________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ______________________, CLERK

__________________________
MAYOR

APPROVED: ____________, 2025



OHIO WATER POLLUTION CONTROL LOAN FUND
WATER RESOURCE RESTORATION SPONSOR PROGRAM

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT
by and between

Cleveland Museum of Natural History and the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities Department
for the

SINGER LAKE BOG EXPANSION PROTECTION PROJECT WR391489-0020

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has created the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund
(“WPCLF”) pursuant to O.R.C. 6111.036 to provide financial assistance for water resource
protection and improvement actions; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (“Ohio EPA”) has created the
Water Resource Restoration Sponsor Program (“WRRSP”) within the WPCLF for the effective
perpetual protection and maintenance of Ohio’s high-quality aquatic ecosystem resources; and

WHEREAS, an applicant applying to the WPCLF for financing of a water quality
improvement project may also sponsor a qualifying WRRSP project to be undertaken by itself,
or by an entity with the ability to implement the WRRSP project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities Department (“Sponsor”) has applied for
funding from the WPCLF for project, Pearl & Tacoma Pump Stations Improvements, and has
also requested to sponsor the Singer Lake Bog Expansion WRRSP project WR391489-0020
(Project”) as part of that WPCLF loan; and

WHEREAS, the Cleveland Museum of Natural History (“Implementer”) has agreed to
undertake the implementation of the WRRSP Project which is further described in the Ohio EPA
-approved final Restoration and Protection Plan (“Plan”);

WHEREAS, the Sponsor and the Implementer have the common purpose of completing
the WRRSP Project in accordance with the Plan to protect and improve water resources within
the State of Ohio; and

WHEREAS, the Implementer will be a party to the environmental covenant (“Covenant”)
to be developed under O.R.C. Sections 5301.80 – 5301.92 to document the activity and use
limitations imposed upon the property associated with the WRRSP Project as a condition of
WPCLF assistance.

THEREFORE, the Sponsor and the Implementer agree to be bound by the terms and
conditions of this WRRSP Sponsorship Agreement.



Water Resource Restoration Sponsor Program Project WR________
Sponsorship Agreement between Cleveland Museum of Natural History and the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities
Department
Page 2 of 6

SECTION I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Pursuant to the intent of the WRRSP, the Sponsor and the Implementer agree that
the essence of this agreement is for the parties to carry out their respective responsibilities in
perpetuity for the planning, implementation, management, preservation, and maintenance of the
WRRSP Project and its associated water resources in accordance with the Plan and the
Covenant.

B. The parties acknowledge that a failure to implement the terms of this Agreement,
the Plan, or the Covenant may be determined by the Ohio EPA to be an instance of default by the
Sponsor on its WPCLF Loan Agreement.  The Sponsor and the Implementer further
acknowledge that remedies provided under the WPCLF Loan Agreement may be invoked by the
Ohio EPA against the Sponsor for unresolved instances of default.  The Implementer
acknowledges that the Ohio EPA shall seek to resolve any failure to conform to the provisions of
the Covenant or failure to implement the Plan first by seeking remedy directly from the
Implementer before taking action against the Sponsor.

C. The parties acknowledge that, if the Ohio EPA determines that the Implementer
has failed to conform to the provisions of the Covenant or to implement the Plan it may declare
such failure an event of default and shall provide the Implementer and Sponsor with written
notice of such event of default.  If the Implementer fails to cure such default in a timely manner,
the Sponsor shall have the right to take all steps necessary to cure the default in order to avoid
the Ohio EPA’s invoking remedies against the Sponsor for unresolved instances of default under
the WPCLF Loan Agreement, up to the total cost of the WRRSP Project financed by the WPCLF
and any interest discount applied for the remainder of the term of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION II. WRRSP PAYMENT REQUESTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

All requests for disbursement of funds for eligible expenses to implement the WRRSP
Project shall be submitted on the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund WRRSP Disbursement
Request form provided by the Ohio EPA.  The Implementer and the Sponsor agree to review all
disbursement requests to ensure that they are appropriate expenses within the scope of the
WRRSP Project.

Disbursement requests shall first be reviewed and approved by the Implementer, which
shall then submit them to the Sponsor.  The Sponsor shall review and approve the disbursement
requests and submit them to the Ohio EPA, Division of Environmental and Financial Assistance,
with a completed copy of the accompanying disbursement request form.  The Ohio EPA will
review and approve disbursement requests for eligibility and reasonableness, based on
conformance with the items identified in Exhibit 1A of the WPCLF Loan Agreement between
the Sponsor and the Ohio EPA, which is attached to and made part of this Agreement as Exhibit
1A.  Upon Ohio EPA’s approval of the disbursement requests, the Ohio Water Development
Authority is authorized to disburse funds directly to the Implementer or an escrow agent
designated by the Sponsor.



Water Resource Restoration Sponsor Program Project WR________
Sponsorship Agreement between Cleveland Museum of Natural History and the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities
Department
Page 3 of 6

SECTION III. WRRSP PROJECT SCHEDULE

The Implementer agrees that it shall not begin implementation of the WRRSP Project
prior to the completion of all necessary approvals by the Ohio EPA and the execution of the
WPCLF Loan Agreement by all parties, or alternatively, prior to the receipt of approval from the
Ohio EPA to do so.  All actions to implement the WRRSP Project that are called for under the
loan agreement or in the Plan shall be completed by the Performance Certification Date
identified on Exhibit 1 of the Sponsor’s WPCLF Loan Agreement.

SECTION IV. OBLIGATION TO PROTECT AND MAINTAIN THE WRRSP
PROJECT

The Sponsor and Implementer recognize the value of the area associated with the
WRRSP Project as an aquatic ecosystem resource, as well as its value as a scenic, natural, and
aesthetic resource.  Upon completion, the WRRSP Project will contribute to the physical,
biological, and chemical integrity of the water quality of the Singer Lake Bog.  These and other
conservation values associated with the WRRSP Project have been documented in the Plan as
approved by the Ohio EPA and included in the Covenant.

The parties agree that the Plan and the Covenant constitute the basis for subsequent actions by
the Implementer under this Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference.  Without
limitation, the Plan is intended to serve as an objective information baseline for monitoring
perpetual conformance with the Covenant.  The Sponsor and the Implementer agree that the
perpetual protection and maintenance of the WRRSP Project shall be carried out in accordance
with the responsibilities identified in the Plan and the Covenant.

SECTION V. INDEPENDENCE OF PARTIES

The Sponsor and the Implementer are independent parties and neither of the parties shall
be considered an agent for the other party.

SECTION VI. TERMINATION

A. The Sponsor and the Implementer shall work together under this Agreement to
complete the WRRSP Project in accordance with the Plan.  However, the Sponsor and the
Implementer specifically retain the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason with written
notice to the other party not less than five (5) days prior to the date that the Sponsor enters into
the WPCLF Loan Agreement.

B. If the Ohio EPA does not award WPCLF assistance for the WRRSP Project, either
the Sponsor or the Implementer may terminate this Agreement.



Water Resource Restoration Sponsor Program Project WR________
Sponsorship Agreement between Cleveland Museum of Natural History and the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities
Department
Page 4 of 6

SECTION VII. DEFAULT

In the event of default by any party under this Agreement, the non-defaulting party will
have all remedies available to it at law or in equity, including the right of termination, injunctive
relief, and the right to specific performance.  No party shall be deemed to be in default of this
Agreement unless and until the other party has provided written notice to the defaulting party
specifying the default and (a) in the case of a monetary default, the defaulting party fails to cure
the default within fifteen (15) days of notice; or (b) in the case of any other type of default, the
defaulting party fails to cure the default within thirty (30) days of notice, or fails to commence
and diligently prosecute such cure to completion if such cure cannot, with reasonable diligence,
be completed with such thirty-day (30) period.

SECTION VIII. NOTICE

Any document or communication required by this Agreement shall be submitted to:

Sponsor
President and CEO
Cleveland Museum of Natural History
1 Wade Oval Drive
Cleveland, Ohio 44106

Implementer
Director of Utilities
The City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities Department
1106 First Street
Lorain, Ohio 44052

Ohio EPA
Chief
Ohio EPA DEFA
P.O. Box 1049
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1049

SECTION IX. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
In performing their obligations hereunder, the parties hereto will comply with all

applicable federal, state, and municipal laws.

(Remainder of page intentionally blank.)



Water Resource Restoration Sponsor Program Project WR________
Sponsorship Agreement between Cleveland Museum of Natural History and the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities
Department
Page 5 of 6

IT IS SO AGREED:

The City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities Department
(Sponsor)

By: _______________________________

Name: Joseph A. Carbonaro

Title: Director of Utilities

Date:  _______________________________

Approved as to Form

                                                                           

           Cleveland Museum of Natural History
           (Implementer)

By:  _______________________________

Name: Sonia Winner

Title: President and CEO

Date:  _______________________________

Approved as to Form

_____________________________________



Water Resource Restoration Sponsor Program Project WR________
Sponsorship Agreement between Cleveland Museum of Natural History and the City of Lorain, Ohio Utilities
Department
Page 6 of 6

      























CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 10. k.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Dawn Walther

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR CURRENT EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO AS PASSED BY ORDINANCE
#35-25 BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2025, AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
 

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
Appropriation for permanent budget.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council to consider for passage.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available In Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimate of Total Expenditure: 1,067,371 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Various 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Appropriation 
Appropriation Attachment 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/15/2025 10:06 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/16/2025 10:10 AM
Form Started By: Dawn Walther Started On: 10/15/2025 02:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/16/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



  ORDINANCE NO.  _______________

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR CURRENT EXPENSES AND
OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO AS PASSED
BY ORDINANCE #35-25 BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2025, AND ENDING DECEMBER
31, 2025 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I.   That the following amount be appropriated from the following funds to provide
for the current expenses and other expenditures in the City of Lorain, State of Ohio, beginning
January 1, 2025, and ending December 31, 2025:

General Fund
Fund Balance $1,000,000

Heritage TIF Fund
Fund Balance $      7,100

Deposits Held Fund
Fund Balance $     50,000

Police Levy Fund
Fund Balance $     10,271

SECTION II. That the following amounts be appropriated to the following funds:

General Fund
Transfer Out – Capital Improvement Fund $1,000,000

Heritage TIF Fund
Transfer Out – G.O. Bond Retirement Fund $       7,100

Deposits Held Fund
Trust & Agency Distribution $     50,000

Police Levy Fund
Transfer Out – Compensated Absences Reserve Fund $       4,125
Transfer Out – Payroll Reserve Fund $       6,146

SECTION III. That this Ordinance is passed by virtue of the provisions of Section 5705.40 Ohio
Revised Code, all provisions of which have been complied with.

SECTION IV. That it is found and determined that all formal actions relating to the passage of
this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of
this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open
to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22, Ohio
Revised Code.



SECTION V. This ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of which is the
immediate need to provide funding to meet contractual obligations. Therefore, this Ordinance
shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, provided it receives
the statutory requirements for passage, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:_____________________ , 2025
President of Council

ATTEST:______________________, 2025
                Clerk of Council Mayor

APPROVED: , 2025







CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Maggie Partin, Deputy Clerk

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RENEWAL ISSUES 21 & 22 FOR LORAIN CITY SCHOOLS

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
 
WHEREAS, Lorain City Schools provide safe, secure school buildings, high-quality teaching, student
support, and excellent educational opportunities from preschool through graduation; and
 
WHEREAS, Renewal Issues 21 & 22 continue existing funding that makes these services possible; and
 
WHEREAS, these levies are renewals only, not a tax increase, and represent no new cost to Lorain
taxpayers; and
 
WHEREAS, the continued success of Lorain students directly impacts the strength, stability, and
future of the City of Lorain;

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council consider for passage

Attachments
Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 09:46 AM
Form Started By: Maggie Partin Started On: 10/02/2025 09:16 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



RESOLUTION NO._______

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RENEWAL
ISSUES 21 & 22 FOR LORAIN CITY SCHOOLS

WHEREAS, Lorain City Schools provide safe, secure school buildings, high-quality teaching,
student support, and excellent educational opportunities from preschool through
graduation; and

WHEREAS, Renewal Issues 21 & 22 continue existing funding that makes these services
possible; and

WHEREAS, these levies are renewals only, not a tax increase, and represent no new cost to
Lorain taxpayers; and

WHEREAS, the continued success of Lorain students directly impacts the strength, stability,
and future of the City of Lorain;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, OHIO:

SECTION I. This Council strongly endorses and supports the passage of Renewal Levies,
Issues 21 & 22 for Lorain City Schools at the November General Election.

SECTION II. Council emphasizes that Issues 21 & 22 are simply the renewal of existing
funding, not new money, ensuring that current programs and services continue
without raising taxes.

SECTION III. The Clerk of Council shall forward a copy of this Resolution to the Lorain
City Schools Board of Education and make it available to the public.

SECTION IV. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this resolution were adopted in an open
meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its
committees that resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the
public, in compliance with all legal requirements including ORC Section 121.22.

SECTION  V. This Resolution shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law.

Approved: ____________, 2025    __________________________
                                           President of Council

 _________________________        ________________________
                            Clerk of Council                 Mayor



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. b.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Maggie Partin, Deputy Clerk

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING OCTOBER AS POLISH HERITAGE MONTH IN CITY OF LORAIN  

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
WHEREAS,   Polish Americans have long played a vital role in shaping the social, cultural, and
economic fabric of the United States, bringing with them proud traditions, enduring values, and a
strong work ethic that continue to enrich our communities; and  
WHEREAS,   the month of October has been nationally designated as Polish Heritage Month, offering
a dedicated time to honor and celebrate the deep-rooted history, vibrant culture, and countless
contributions of Polish Americans, especially those who have helped build and strengthen the City of
Lorain; and
WHEREAS, generations of Polish immigrants and their descendants have helped foster growth and
opportunity in Lorain, leaving a lasting legacy in fields such as education, public service, industry, and
the arts; and
WHEREAS, recognizing and honoring the diverse cultural heritage of our residents—such as the
contributions of the Polish American community—helps uphold the inclusive and multicultural identity of
Lorain, the International City.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council consider

Attachments
Resolution 

Form Review
Form Started By: Maggie Partin Started On: 10/01/2025 09:29 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



RESOLUTION ______

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING
OCTOBER AS POLISH HERITAGE 
MONTH IN THE CITY OF LORAIN

WHEREAS, Polish Americans have long played a vital role in shaping the social, cultural, and
economic fabric of the United States, bringing with them proud traditions, enduring
values, and a strong work ethic that continue to enrich our communities; and

WHEREAS, the month of October has been nationally designated as Polish Heritage Month, offering a
dedicated time to honor and celebrate the deep-rooted history, vibrant culture, and
countless contributions of Polish Americans, especially those who have helped build and
strengthen the City of Lorain; and

WHEREAS, generations of Polish immigrants and their descendants have helped foster growth and
opportunity in Lorain, leaving a lasting legacy in fields such as education, public service,
industry, and the arts; and

WHEREAS, recognizing and honoring the diverse cultural heritage of our residents—such as the
contributions of the Polish American community—helps uphold the inclusive and
multicultural identity of Lorain, the International City.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION   I. That the Lorain City Council hereby proclaims October 2025 as Polish Heritage
Month in the City of Lorain and encourages all residents to reflect on, learn
about, and take part in celebrating the heritage, achievements, and enduring
spirit of Polish Americans.

SECTION II. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this resolution were adopted in open meetings of
this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees
that resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in
compliance with legal requirements, including O.R.C. Section 121.22.

SECTION III. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed
by law.

Passed: _________________,2025 _______________________________
 President of Council

       

Attest: ____________________      ______________________________
                  Clerk of Council Mayor

              



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. c.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Maggie Partin, Deputy Clerk

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
A RESOLUTION HONORING, CELBRATING AND DECLARING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER AS BREAST
CANCER AWARENESS MONTH IN THE CITY OF LORAIN, OHIO

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
WHEREAS,   breast cancer continues to affect countless families across the nation and here in our
own community in Lorain, touching the lives of our mothers, daughters, sisters, friends, and neighbors;
and; and 
WHEREAS,  Breast Cancer Awareness Month, first established in 1985, serves as a national movement
to increase awareness, encourage early detection through screening, and support ongoing research for
a cure; and
WHEREAS,  numerous national and local organizations, including the American Cancer Society and
Susan G. Komen for the Cure, as well as healthcare providers and community groups right here in
Lorain County, play a vital role in promoting awareness, offering support services, and funding
lifesaving research; and
WHEREAS,   breast cancer remains a leading cause of cancer-related deaths among women, with
over 43,000 lives lost each year in the United States, underscoring the importance of regular
screenings, timely diagnosis, and access to quality care; and
WHEREAS, the residents of Lorain have long demonstrated a deep commitment to community health
and compassion for those in need, and by supporting Breast Cancer Awareness Month, we reaffirm our
dedication to the well-being of all who call our city home; and
WHEREAS,  through education, advocacy, early detection, and community-based initiatives, we can
reduce the impact of breast cancer and honor the courage of those who have battled the disease,
including many right here in the City of Lorain.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council consider

Attachments
Resolution 

Form Review
Form Started By: Maggie Partin Started On: 10/01/2025 09:38 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



Resolution No.   ________
A RESOLUTION HONORING,

CELBRATING AND DECLARING THE
MONTH OF OCTOBER AS BREAST

CANCER AWARENESS MONTH IN THE
CITY OF LORAIN, OHIO

WHEREAS, breast  cancer  continues  to  affect  countless  families  across  the  nation  and  here  in  our  own
community in Lorain, touching the lives of our mothers, daughters, sisters, friends, and neighbors;
and; and 

WHEREAS,    Breast Cancer Awareness Month,  first  established  in  1985,  serves  as  a  national movement  to
increase awareness, encourage early detection through screening, and support ongoing research for
a cure; and

WHEREAS,  numerous national and local organizations, including the American Cancer Society and Susan G.
Komen for the Cure, as well as healthcare providers and community groups right here in Lorain
County, play a vital role in promoting awareness, offering support services, and funding lifesaving
research; and

WHEREAS,   breast cancer remains a leading cause of cancer-related deaths among women, with over 43,000
lives lost each year in the United States, underscoring the importance of regular screenings, timely
diagnosis, and access to quality care; and

WHEREAS,  the  residents  of  Lorain  have  long  demonstrated  a  deep  commitment  to  community  health  and
compassion for those in need, and by supporting Breast Cancer Awareness Month, we reaffirm our
dedication to the well-being of all who call our city home; and

WHEREAS,  through education, advocacy, early detection, and community-based initiatives, we can reduce the
impact of breast cancer and honor the courage of those who have battled the disease, including
many right here in the City of Lorain.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:
 SECTION I.   That Lorain City Council, on behalf of all the residents of the City of Lorain, hereby recognizes,

celebrates and declares the month of October as “Breast Cancer Awareness Month” in the City
of Lorain, Ohio.

SECTION II That Councilwoman Mary Springowski, along with all of Lorain City Council, urges citizens,
local businesses, schools, health professionals, nonprofit organizations, and faith-based groups
to participate in local events and initiatives that raise awareness, promote early detection, and
provide support to those affected by breast cancer in our community.

SECTION III.  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to
the  passage  of  this  resolution  were  adopted  in  open  meetings  of  this  Council  and  that  all
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions were
in meetings open  to  the public,  all  in  compliance with  legal  requirements,  including O.R.C.
Section 121.22.

SECTION IV. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

Passed:__________________, 2025    ___________________________
                         President of Council

     Attest:___________________, Clerk               __________________________
   Mayor



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. d.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Lori Kokoski, HR Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY/SERVICE TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH MEDICAL MUTUAL OF OHIO FOR THE RENEWAL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN'S HEALTH
BENEFITS PLAN WHICH MMO ADMINISTERS AND STOP-LOSS COVERAGE AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
PROVIDE FOR THE CONTINUED HEALTH CARE BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
CONSIDERATION FOR PASSAGE

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Yes 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $1,000,000 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 7020.I702.6300.1500 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): 0 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
This is the contract for 2025 

Attachments
ORDINANCE 
Addendum 
Stop Loss 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/01/2025 04:29 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 08:23 AM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/02/2025 01:59 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 09:46 AM
Form Started By: Lori Kokoski Started On: 09/23/2025 02:28 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.  __________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY/SERVICE
TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH MEDICAL MUTUAL OF OHIO (MMO)
FOR THE RENEWAL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN HEALTH BENEFITS PLAN WHICH 
MMO ADMINISTERS AND STOP-LOSS COVERAGE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

Whereas, the current contract for the City of Lorain Employees Health Benefit Plan expired on
December 31, 2024 and MMO has proposed to renew its agreement with the City of Lorain effective
January 1, 2025; and,

Whereas, the Administration has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to enter
into a renewal agreement with MMO for the continuation of health benefits for the City of Lorain
Employees;  and,

Whereas, the terms of the renewal proposal directed to certain financial obligations of the
parties are set forth in Exhibit A which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference;  and,

Whereas, the benefits to be provided to the eligible employees of the City of Lorain and covered
employee dependents pursuant to the proposed contract with MMO are summarily set forth in Exhibit B
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I. That the Director of Public Safety/Service is hereby authorized to enter into an
agreement with Medical Mutual of Ohio (MMO) for the administration of the Lorain Health Benefits
Plan and Stop Loss Coverage from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025 in accordance with the
terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached hereto and included herein as if fully
rewritten.

SECTION II. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that any
and all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of
the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION III. That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the emergency
being the immediate need to renew the Lorain Health Benefits Plan and Stop Loss Coverage as the
current contract expired effective December 31, 2024.  Failure to renew the Lorain Health Benefits Plan
and Stop Loss Coverage could result in extraordinary expense to the City for payment of health care
expenses incurred by eligible city employees and their covered dependents during a period when the
Plan is not in effect.  Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately



upon its’ passage and approval by the mayor providing it receives the statutory requirements for
passage, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: __________________, 2025 ____________________________________
    PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ___________________, CLERK ____________________________________
  MAYOR

APPROVED: __________________, 2025



































































































CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. e.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Jack Fleming

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
Ordinance Request To Accept A Grant Award From The Ohio Department Of Public Safety- Ohio
Traffic Safety Office.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The City of Lorain, Lorain Police Department has been awarded $83,053.48 from the Ohio Department
of Public Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office for Project Title: Dedicated Traffic Enforcement Program
(DTEP).

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consider for passage. 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $81,053.48 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Grant Funding 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): $81,053.48 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
Funding will be on a reimbursement basis.  

Attachments
Ordinance 
Award Document 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 10:07 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Jack Fleming Started On: 10/01/2025 07:59 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



    ORDINANCE NO.  ____________

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE CHIEF OF POLICE,
THROUGH THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, TO
ACCEPT THE AWARD FROM THE OHIO DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC SAFETY- OHIO TRAFFIC SAFETY OFFICE
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Police Department has been awarded a grant from
the Ohio Department of Public Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office in the amount of $81,053.48;
and,
 

WHEREAS, this Grant is funded in accordance with the Federal Guidelines, Standard
Federal Grant conditions and Program Directives, the grantee hereby agrees to be bound by and
adhere to all assurances, certifications, special conditions and limitations as are set forth within
the award letter.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO;

SECTION I.   That the Chief of Police, through the Mayor, is authorized to accept the award of
$83,053.48 from the Ohio Department of Public Sagety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office for
Project Title: Dedicated Traffic Enforcement Program (DTEP), Award Number: DTEP-2026-
Lorain Police Department-00002 which shall be performed in compliance with the requirements
as set forth by the Ohio Department of Public Safety and the Ohio Traffic Safety Office, Policies
and Procedures.

SECTION II.   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of the Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including
Section 121.22, of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION III.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the
emergency being the immediate need to accept the award due to the required deadline for
acceptance and return of award condition documents to continue to provide for the health,
welfare and safety of the citizens of Lorain. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect
immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, providing it receives the statutory
requirements for passage, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

PASSED: ______________________, 2024  ___________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ______________________, CLERK

APPROVED: ___________________, 2024 ___________________________________
MAYOR



 

 
FFY 2026 Grant Information 

 

Congratulations! Your Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2026 grant proposal has been approved! 

The full PDF of the grant can be accessed on the GRANTS Plus online grant management system by clicking the “Management Tools” 
link and selecting “Create Full PDF Version.” The GRANTS Plus System/PDF version, this letter and attached certificate comprise the 
entire executed agreement for this grant. Any concerns regarding modifications to your initial proposal must be addressed and resolved 
prior to the expenditure of grant funds. 

Before proceeding with this agreement, a representative from your agency must complete the Pre-Claim online. Directions for 
completing the Pre-Claim begin on page 60 of the Grantee Manual located under the “My Training Materials” link in GRANTS Plus. 

The OTSO representative assigned to this grant is Bama Davis and can be contacted at (614) 466-3250 or brdavis@dps.ohio.gov. 

 

Please note the following SPECIAL CONDITIONS for FFY 2026: 

• All FFY2026 grant requirements (Terms and Conditions, due dates, and individual grant requirements) will be enforced, and sub-
recipients must complete the approved work plans (e.g., events, blitz enforcement hours, meetings, etc.). Failure to follow grant 
requirements could result in being placed in Sub-recipient on Notice status. 

The staff of the OTSO looks forward to working with you to reduce traffic related fatal and serious injury crashes in Ohio. 

Sincerely, 

Emily Davidson 
Emily Davidson, Director 
Ohio Traffic Safety Office 

 

 

 

Agency: Lorain Police Department 
Grant Number: DTEP-2026-Lorain Police Department-00002 



TRAFFIC SAFETY GRANT AWARD 

PRESENTED TO: 
Lorain Police Department 

FFY2026 Grant #: DTEP-2026-Lorain Police Department-00002 
UEI Number: FF77VMMYHRT3 
Agency of Record: Lorain, City of   

Funding of this agreement is dependent upon the availability of federal funds as appropriated and obligated by the US Department of 
Transportation/National Highway Traffic Safety Administration for FFY2026. Should any change in federal funding adversely affect the Ohio Traffic 
Safety Office’s (OTSO) ability to implement an approved agreement, the OTSO reserves the right to revise or terminate any approved grant in writing. 
The OTSO reserves the right to limit grant amounts at any time based on performance and/or available funding.                                     

Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) 

Description Amount FAIN Number 

20.600 State and Community Highway Safety $81,053.48 69A3752330SUP4020OH0 

     Authorized to Proceed Date: October 1, 2025  Agreement Termination Date: September 30, 2026 

All Expenditure Reports (reimbursement claims and activity reports) for the grant must be accessed and submitted online through the GRANTS Plus 
system. The only costs eligible for reimbursement under this agreement are approved costs incurred within these dates. 
 

Note: All sub-recipients must follow the Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200. This agreement is to be funded under the federal grant program that 
begins October 1, 2025. 

Emily Davidson                          . 
 Director, Ohio Traffic Safety Office 
         

 



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. f.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Jack Fleming

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
Ordinance Request To Accept A Grant Award From The Ohio Department Of Public Safety- Ohio Traffic
Safety Office.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The City of Lorain Police Department has been awarded a grant from the Ohio Department of Public
Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office in the amount of $56,611.96 for the Impaired Driving Enforcement
Program (IDEP), Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP).  

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consider for passage. 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $56,611.96 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Grant Funding 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): $56,611.96 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
The funding source is a reimbursable grant.  

Attachments
Ordinance 
Award Document 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 10:05 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Jack Fleming Started On: 10/01/2025 07:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.  ____________________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE ON BEHALF OF THE
SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR OF THE CITY OF LORAIN TO ACCEPT THE
GRANT AWARD FROM THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY- OHIO
TRAFFIC SAFETY OFFICE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Police Department has been awarded a grant from the
Ohio Department of Public Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office in the amount of $56,611.96.
 

WHEREAS, this Grant is funded in accordance with the Federal Guidelines, Standard
Federal Grant conditions and Program Directives, the grantee hereby agrees to be bound by and
adhere to all assurances, certifications, special conditions and limitations as are set forth within
the award letter.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO;

SECTION I.   That the Chief of Police, on behalf of the Safety/Service Director, is authorized to
accept the award of a grant in the amount of $56,611.96 from the Ohio Department of Public
Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office for Project Title: Impaired Driving Enforcement Program
(IDEP), Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP).  Award Number: IDEP/STEP-2026-
Lorain Police Department-00058 which shall be administered in compliance with the
requirements as set forth by the Ohio Department of Public Safety and the Ohio Traffic Safety
Office, Policies and Procedures.

SECTION II.   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of the Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including
Section 121.22, of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION III.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the basis being the
immediate need to accept the grant funds for continuity in the Lorain Traffic Safety programs.
This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor,
providing it receives the statutory requirements for passage, otherwise it shall take effect and be
in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.



PASSED: ______________________, 2025  ___________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ______________________, 2025 ___________________________________
CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: ___________________, 2025 ___________________________________
MAYOR



 

 
FFY 2026 Grant Information 

 

Congratulations! Your Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2026 grant proposal has been approved! 

The full PDF of the grant can be accessed on the GRANTS Plus online grant management system by clicking the “Management Tools” 
link and selecting “Create Full PDF Version.” The GRANTS Plus System/PDF version, this letter and attached certificate comprise the 
entire executed agreement for this grant. Any concerns regarding modifications to your initial proposal must be addressed and resolved 
prior to the expenditure of grant funds. 

Before proceeding with this agreement, a representative from your agency must complete the Pre-Claim online. Directions for 
completing the Pre-Claim begin on page 60 of the Grantee Manual located under the “My Training Materials” link in GRANTS Plus. 

The OTSO representative assigned to this grant is Bama Davis and can be contacted at (614) 466-3250 or brdavis@dps.ohio.gov. 

 

Please note the following SPECIAL CONDITIONS for FFY 2026: 

• All FFY2026 grant requirements (Terms and Conditions, due dates, and individual grant requirements) will be enforced, and sub-
recipients must complete the approved work plans (e.g., events, blitz enforcement hours, meetings, etc.). Failure to follow grant 
requirements could result in being placed in Sub-recipient on Notice status. 

The staff of the OTSO looks forward to working with you to reduce traffic related fatal and serious injury crashes in Ohio. 

Sincerely, 

Emily Davidson 
Emily Davidson, Director 
Ohio Traffic Safety Office 

 

 

 

Agency: Lorain Police Department 
Grant Number: IDEP/STEP-2026-Lorain Police Department-00058 



TRAFFIC SAFETY GRANT AWARD 

PRESENTED TO: 
Lorain Police Department 

FFY2026 Grant #: IDEP/STEP-2026-Lorain Police Department-00058 
UEI Number: FF77VMMYHRT3 
Agency of Record: Lorain, City of   

Funding of this agreement is dependent upon the availability of federal funds as appropriated and obligated by the US Department of Transportation 
for FFY2026. Should any change in federal funding adversely affect the Ohio Traffic Safety Office’s (OTSO) ability to implement an approved agreement, 
the OTSO reserves the right to revise or terminate any approved grant in writing. The OTSO reserves the right to limit grant amounts at any time based 
on performance and/or available funding.                                     
Program Catalog of Federal Domestic 

Assistance (CFDA) 
Description Amount FAIN Number 

IDEP 20.608 Repeat Offenders for Driving While 
Intoxicated $27,555.98 

69A37523300001640OHA 
69A37524300001640OHA 
69A37525300001640OHA 

STEP 20.600 State and Community Highway Safety $29,055.98 69A37524300004020OH0 
69A37525300004020OH0 

     Authorized to Proceed Date: October 1, 2025  Agreement Termination Date: September 30, 2026 

All Expenditure Reports (reimbursement claims and activity reports) for the grant must be accessed and submitted online through the GRANTS Plus 
system. The only costs eligible for reimbursement under this agreement are approved costs incurred within these dates. 
 

Note: All sub-recipients must follow the Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200. This agreement is to be funded under the federal grant program that 
begins October 1, 2025. 

Emily Davidson                          . 
 Director, Ohio Traffic Safety Office 
         



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. g.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Jack Fleming

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
Ordinance Request To Accept A Grant Award From The Ohio Department Of Public
Safety-Ohio Traffic Safety Office.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The City of Lorain, Lorain Police Department has been awarded $96,000.00 from the Ohio
Department of Public Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office for Project Title:Law Enforcement
Liaison.  

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consider for passage. 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $96,000.00 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 1010.S400.6300.3411 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): $96,000.00 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
This will be a reimbursement grant.  

Attachments
Ordinance 
Award Document 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 10:08 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Jack Fleming Started On: 10/01/2025 08:34 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.  _______________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE,
THROUGH THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, TO
ACCEPT THE AWARD FROM THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
SAFETY-OHIO TRAFFIC SAFETY OFFICE AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Police Department has been awarded a grant from the
Ohio Department of Public Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office in the amount of $96,000.00; and,
 

WHEREAS, this Grant is funded in accordance with the Federal Guidelines, Standard
Federal Grant conditions and Program Directives, the grantee hereby agrees to be bound by and
adhere to all assurances, certifications, special conditions and limitations as are set forth within
the award letter.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO;

SECTION I.   That the Chief of Police, through the Mayor, is authorized to accept the award of,
Project Title: General Grant-Law Enforcement Liaison.  FFY 2026 Grant # LEL/TSRP-2026-
Lorain Police Department-00006, in compliance with the requirements as set forth by the Ohio
Department of Public Safety and the Ohio Traffic Safety Office, Policies and Procedures.

SECTION II.   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of the Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including
Section 121.22, of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION III.  This ordinance is hereby declared an emergency, the nature of the emergency
being the continued provision of safety services for the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens
of Lorain. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage by Council
and approval by the Mayor, providing it receives the statutory requirements for passage,
otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: ______________________, 2025        _________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ______________________, CLERK
______________________________
      MAYOR

APPROVED; ___________________, 2025



 

 
FFY 2026 Grant Information 

 

Congratulations! Your Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2026 grant proposal has been approved! 

The full PDF of the grant can be accessed on the GRANTS Plus online grant management system by clicking the “Management Tools” 
link and selecting “Create Full PDF Version.” The GRANTS Plus System/PDF version, this letter and attached certificate comprise the 
entire executed agreement for this grant. Any concerns regarding modifications to your initial proposal must be addressed and resolved 
prior to the expenditure of grant funds. 

Before proceeding with this agreement, a representative from your agency must complete the Pre-Claim online. Directions for 
completing the Pre-Claim begin on page 60 of the Grantee Manual located under the “My Training Materials” link in GRANTS Plus. 

The OTSO representative assigned to this grant is Jennifer Caplinger and can be contacted at (614) 466-3250 or 
jecaplinger@dps.ohio.gov. 

 

Please note the following SPECIAL CONDITIONS for FFY 2026: 

• All FFY2026 grant requirements (Terms and Conditions, due dates, and individual grant requirements) will be enforced, and sub-
recipients must complete the approved work plans (e.g., events, blitz enforcement hours, meetings, etc.). Failure to follow grant 
requirements could result in being placed in Sub-recipient on Notice status. 

The staff of the OTSO looks forward to working with you to reduce traffic related fatal and serious injury crashes in Ohio. 

Sincerely, 

Emily Davidson 
Emily Davidson, Director 
Ohio Traffic Safety Office 

 

 

 

Agency: Lorain Police Department 
Grant Number: LEL/TSRP-2026-Lorain Police Department-00006 



TRAFFIC SAFETY GRANT AWARD 

PRESENTED TO: 
Lorain Police Department 

FFY2026 Grant #: LEL/TSRP-2026-Lorain Police Department-00006 
UEI Number: FF77VMMYHRT3 
Agency of Record: Lorain, City of   

Funding of this agreement is dependent upon the availability of federal funds as appropriated and obligated by the US Department of 
Transportation/National Highway Traffic Safety Administration for FFY2026. Should any change in federal funding adversely affect the Ohio Traffic 
Safety Office’s (OTSO) ability to implement an approved agreement, the OTSO reserves the right to revise or terminate any approved grant in writing. 
The OTSO reserves the right to limit grant amounts at any time based on performance and/or available funding.                                     

Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) 

Description Amount FAIN Number 

20.600 State and Community Highway Safety $96,000.00 69A37524300004020OH0 
69A37525300004020OH0 

     Authorized to Proceed Date: October 1, 2025  Agreement Termination Date: September 30, 2026 

All Expenditure Reports (reimbursement claims and activity reports) for the grant must be accessed and submitted online through the GRANTS Plus 
system. The only costs eligible for reimbursement under this agreement are approved costs incurred within these dates. 
 

Note: All sub-recipients must follow the Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200. This agreement is to be funded under the federal grant program that 
begins October 1, 2025. 

Emily Davidson                          . 
 Director, Ohio Traffic Safety Office 
         



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. h.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Jack Fleming

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
Ordinance Request To Authorizing The Safety/Service Director To Enter Into An Agreement For Law
Enforcement Liaison Services.  
 

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The Lorain Police Department Has Been Awarded A Grant For Law Enforcement Liaison Services From
The Ohio Traffic Safety Office. This Request Is To Authorize The Safety/Service Director To Enter Into
An Agreement With Mark Fetheroff Who Is The Independent Contractor For The Ohio Traffic Safety
Office-Department Of Public Safety, As Outlined In The Awarded Grant 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consider for passage. 

Attachments
Ordinance 
Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 09:46 AM
Form Started By: Jack Fleming Started On: 10/01/2025 09:00 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    





ORDINANCE NO.  ____________________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER
INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT LIAISON SERVICES WITH
MARK FETHEROFF WHO IS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR FOR THE OHIO
TRAFFIC SAFETY OFFICE- DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain has been awarded a grant from the Ohio Department of Public
Safety, Ohio Traffic Safety Office in the amount of $96,000.00, for reimbursement for the
services provided by Mark Fetheroff.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I.   That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement
with Mark Fetheroff for the Law Enforcement Liaison Services as outlined in the awarded grant
funding, Project Title: General Grant-Law Enforcement Liaison.  FFY 2026 Grant # LEL/TSRP-
2026-Lorain Police Department-00006, which shall comply with the requirements as set forth by
the Ohio Department of Public Safety and the Ohio Traffic Safety Office, Policies and
Procedures. A copy of the agreement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto, and made a part
hereof and subject to approval by the Lorain Law Director.

SECTION II. That the funds to pay for the contracts shall be come from Account Number
1010.S400.6300.3411.

SECTION III.   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of the Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including
Section 121.22, of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION IV.  This ordinance is hereby declared an emergency, the nature of the emergency
being the continued provision of safety services for the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens
of Lorain. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage by Council
and approval by the mayor, providing it receives the statutory requirements for passage,
otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: ______________________, 2025 _______________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _________________________CLERK

APPROVED; ___________________, 2025 _______________________________________
MAYOR



CITY OF LORAIN–LORAIN POLICE DEPARTMENT

LAW ENFORCMENT LIAISON SUB-CONTRACTOR
CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

Page  of 
Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement

1 7

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and among the City of Lorain (the "City") with its offices
located at 200 West Erie Ave, Lorain, Ohio 44052, and the Safety/Service Director for the City of
Lorain, as authorized by Lorain City Council Ordinance No   @@ and Mark Fetheroff
(northeastohiolel@gmail.com)  (the "Sub­Contractor"), having an address of   10735 Cottage Hill
Lane Chardon, Ohio 44024.

The parties hereby agree to the following terms and conditions:

1. TERM: This Agreement is effective October 1, 2025 through September 30, 2026. The parties
may cancel at any time upon providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other
parties.

2. STATEMENT OF WORK:

A. The Sub­Contractor shall perform and complete the work and activities described in the
Scope of Work, labeled as Exhibit 1, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference ("Services"). The Sub­Contractor shall perform the Services in a manner that is
satisfactory to the Safety Service Director and the City. The Sub­Contractor shall furnish
at its own cost its own materials, tools, equipment, and other supplies necessary to complete
the Services under this Agreement.

B. The Sub­Contractor shall determine the hours required to perform the Services under this
Agreement and retains discretion over its schedule when performing Services. The
Services must be completed in an efficient, satisfactory and timely manner.

C. The Sub­Contractor is an independent contractor and is not under the direction and control
of the City or the Safety/Service Director. The Sub­Contractor agrees to comply with all
applicable federal, state, and local laws in performing the Services under this Agreement.
The Sub­Contractor is responsible for the payment of all taxes, including payroll taxes. The
Sub­Contractor is not an employee or agent of the City or the Safety/Service Director and
will not receive any employee benefits or employee compensation.

3. COMPENSATION:

A. The total amount of this Agreement will not exceed $96,000.00 which is being fully funded
by a grant from the Ohio Traffic Safety Office (OTSO), Ohio Department of Public Safety
(ODPS) as more fully described in Section 3(C) herein.

B. The Sub­Contractor will submit proper invoices and documentation within 30 days of its
performance of the Services under this Agreement. Upon actual receipt of proper invoices
and the satisfactory completion of the Services referenced in the invoices, the City will

mailto:northeastohiolel@gmail.com


 
Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement

Page 2 of 7

make payment within 30 days to the Sub­contractor. The Sub­Contractor shall include on  all
invoices the proper tax identification or social security number, purchase order number, and
total cost of Services; and submit an original to:

Lorain Police Department
Attn: Jack Fleming
100 W. Erie Ave
Lorain, Ohio 44052

C. All reimbursements shall be approved by the Ohio Traffic Safety Office ("OTSO") ­ Traffic
Section, Ohio Department of Public Safety ("ODPS"), PRIOR to the City reimbursing the
Sub­Contractor for its expenses.

The Sub­Contractor will be reimbursed for the following, from 10/1/25 through 09/30/26:

a. $50.00 per hour flat rate (no overtime­all time worked is at flat rate) for
the performance of the Services, for hours not to exceed 1920hrs, for an
amount not to exceed $96,000.00 total.

b. Other cost pre­approved by OTSO and a Request to Purchase (RTP) will be
submitted and approved before any other cost will be reimbursed.

4. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY REQUIREMENTS AND COMPLIANCE:
The Sub­ Contractor represents and warrants it has all necessary licenses required to perform the
Services. In addition, the Sub­Contractor agrees that in the hiring of employees for the
performance of Services under this Agreement, the Sub­Contractor, its subcontractors, or any
person acting on Subcontractor's or its subcontractor's behalf, shall not discriminate against any
citizen of the state in the employment of a person qualified and available to perform the work to
which the employment relates by reason of race, creed, sex, disability, military status as defined
in section 4112.01 of the Ohio Revised Code, color, gender identity as defined in the Codified
Ordinances of the County of Lorain and sexual orientation as defined in the Codified Ordinances
of the County of Lorain. The Sub­Contractor agrees that the Sub­Contractor, its subcontractors,
or any person on the Subcontractor’s behalf, shall not discriminate in any manner, against or
intimidate any employee hired for the performance of work under this Agreement on account of
race, creed, sex, disability, military status as defined in section 4112.01 of  the  Ohio Revised
Code, color, gender identity as defined in the Codified Ordinances of the County of Lorain and
sexual orientation as defined in the Codified Ordinances of the County of Lorain. The Sub­
Contractor certifies it does not maintain and it will not permit its employees from performing
services at any segregated facilities. The Sub­Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws, orders, rules, and regulations. (Ohio Revised Code Section 125.11
l ).

5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Sub­Contractor shall not have any interest, direct or
indirect, which is incompatible or in conflict with the carrying out of the terms of this
Agreement.

6. RESPONSIBILITY OF CLAIMS: The Sub­Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and
hold harmless the City of Lorain, the Safety/Service Director and OTSO/ODPS from any and
all claims, liabilities, negligence and expenses of any kind including but not limited to personal



 
Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement

Page 3 of 7

injury or property damage arising from or related to this Agreement and from claims for wages
or overtime compensation due the Sub­Contractor or any of its employees or agents in
rendering Services under this Agreement, including payment of all costs in defense of any
claim made under the Fair Labor Standards Act or any other federal or state law. In no event
shall the City, the Safety/Service Director and the OTSO/ODPS be liable for indirect,
consequential, incidental, special, or punitive damages, or lost profits.

7. CHANGE OR MODIFICATION: This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement
between the parties and any changes or modifications of this Agreement shall be made and
agreed to in writing. Any violations or breach of the terms stated herein, by the Sub­ contractor,
shall provide the City or OTSO/ODPS with the option of canceling this Agreement in its
entirety, or withholding payment until such time as the violation or breach is remedied. Such
option shall in no way limit or exclude any other remedies available to the City.

8. SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION:

A. If the parties fail to perform in a satisfactory manner any of the requirements of this
Agreement, or is in violation of a specific provision of this Agreement, then the non­
breaching party may suspend or terminate this Agreement if the breaching party fails to
cure its non­performance or violation with ten (10) business days following delivery of
written notice of the breach. In the case of late payment by the City however, Section
126.30 of the Ohio Revised Code applies, and the Sub­Contractor may not suspend or
terminate this Agreement unless the payment is more than sixty (60) days past due.

B. Upon receipt of notice of suspension or termination by the City, the Safety/Service
Director or the OTSO/ODPS, the Sub­Contractor shall cease work on the suspended or
terminated activities, suspend or terminate the sub­contractors relating to the suspended or
terminated activities, take all necessary or appropriate steps to limit disbursement and
minimize cost, and, if requested by the City or Safety/Service Director, furnish a report, as
of the date of receipt of notice of suspension or termination describing the status of all work
under this Agreement, including results and conclusions accomplished, and such other
matters as the City or Safety/Service Director may require.

C. In the event of suspension or termination by the City, the Safety/Service Director or the
OTSO/ODPS, the Sub­Contractor shall be entitled to compensation from the OTSO/ODPS
upon



 
Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement

Page 4 of 7

submission of a proper invoice to the City for the work performed prior to receipt of notice
of termination or suspension which shall be calculated by the City according to Paragraph
3, "Compensation" less any funds previously paid. In the event of suspension or termination
by the City or the Safety/Service Director, any payments made by the City in which
Services have not been rendered by the Sub­contractor shall be prorated and returned to the
City. The City and the Safety Service Director shall not be liable for any further claims. The
Sub­Contractor is being paid solely by the OTSO/ODPS funds and the City or the Safety
Service Director are not liable for any payment under this Agreement. The sole source of
payment to the Sub­Contractor pursuant to this Agreement is from available OTSO/ODPS
funds.

9. REPORTS AND RECORDS. The Sub­Contractor shall maintain and provide to the City
upon demand the following records and reports: Accounting and fiscal records adequate to
enable the City and/or the State of Ohio to audit and otherwise verify claims for reimbursement,
and other records and reports as required by the City to enable it to comply with local, state and
federal statutes and regulations. The Sub­Contractor shall maintain all records related to this
Agreement for three (3) years after the City makes final payment hereunder and all other
pending matters are closed. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving
the records have been started before the expiration of the three (3) year period, the Sub­
contractor shall retain the records until completion of the action and all issues that arise from it
or until the end of the three year period, whichever is later.

10. NON-ASSIGNMENT. The Sub­contractor agrees to perform personally all Services and
agrees not to assign (including by operation of law or otherwise) or delegate the performance
of its duties under this Agreement without prior written consent from the City and the
Safety/Service Director. Any assignments, delegations or substitution attempted without the
previous written consent of the City and the Safety/Service Director will effect, at the option of
the City, a cancellation of all the City’s and the Safety Service Director’s obligations under this
Agreement.

11. JURISDICTION. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Ohio without regard
to conflict of laws principles. Any litigation arising under this Agreement must be litigated in
the Lorain Municipal Court or the Lorain County Court of Common Pleas, and the Sub­
Contractor submits itself to the jurisdiction and venue of those courts.

12. OTSO Terms and Conditions for All Grants, labeled as Exhibit 2

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement and all documents incorporated herein by
reference constitutes the entire agreement and supersedes any prior agreement between the
parties.

(End of text. Execution on following page.)



 
Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement

Page 5 of 7

Intending to be legally bound, the parties hereby execute this Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­
Contractor Contractual Agreement.

SUBCONTRACTOR
_____________________________________________________________, as an individual
Printed Name: Mark Fetheroff   Date: __________________

Safety/Service Director, City of Lorain
_______________________________________________
Printed Name: Rey Carrion   Date: _________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
_______________________________________________
Printed Name: Date: __________________
City of Lorain Law Department

EXHIBIT 1

Scope of Work

The goal of the Law Enforcement Liaison  (LEL)  Program  is to enhance all aspects of the
OTSO's relationship with Ohio's law enforcement agencies,  ensure OTSO's safety  messages
are promoted  within all of Ohio's diverse communities and ensure assets allocated are
accounted for and used in accordance to the OTSO's guidelines.

Under the guidance of the OTSO Commander, or their designee, the LEL Contractor Shall:

1. Serve as the law enforcement liaison to law enforcement departments in OTSO designated
region of  the state that will assist the OTSO in achieving  traffic safety goals and objectives;

2. Develop traffic safety action plans for each county of responsibility, including underserved
and Limited Eng1ish Proficient (LEP) populations, within a designated region to include
goals, objectives, method(s) of program Implementation and evaluations. The plan shall be
Specific. Measurable, Action Oriented, Realistic and Time­lined;

3. Develop working relationship with local law enforcement agency public information
officers or community liaison officer to obtain more community Involvement in OTSO
traffic safety projects and programs;

4. Serve as a team member to other OTSO staff and advocates;



Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement                                                                        6 of 7

5. Provide technical assistance to the OTSO and local law enforcement agencies;
6. Conduct and/or coordinate specialized training (e.g., mobilization,  sobriety checkpoint.

SFST, DRE, ARJDE, etc.);
7. Implement, monitor, and develop specialized programs upon request (I.e., seat belt campaign,

alcohol campaign. etc.);
8. Attend, coordinate, plan and participate in events designated by the OTSO;
9. Recommend new and Innovative law enforcement projects and initiatives and how they

may be implemented in Ohio;
10. Attend state and national meetings, training and conferences as directed by
OTSO; 11.Serve on boards, commissions and committees upon OTSO's request:
12.Continuously monitor programs and electronically submit an update report as
requested;

13. Call and facilitate meetings;
14. Serve as a media spokesperson as designated by the OTSO;
15.Provide weekly activity reports in manner prescribed by the OTSO Commander or their

designee:
16.Assist with the compilation and submission of data for state and federal reports:
17. Attend an OTSO approved conference/workshop;
18.Scheduling appointments with OTSO's partnering agencies;
19.Traveling to predetermined agencies for the inspections, verifications or  allocations of

assets;
20. Visual inspections and verifications of OTSO assets;
21.Recording asset information in manner prescribed by the OTSO Commander or their

designee;
22. Retrieving of unused or unwanted OTSO assets;
23.Allocating OTSO assets under the direction of Commander or their designee;
24.Assist the OTSO with other duties as assigned;
25. Submit a detailed Invoice monthly to be approved by the OTSO Commander or their

designee.
Scope of Work

The Contractor will be reimbursed $50.00 per hour flat rate (no overtime ­ all time worked is at
flat rate).

All travel expenses including but not limited to: vehicle, fuel, lodging and per diem are the sole
responsibility of the Contractor.

Statement of Work: The Contractor shall undertake the work and activities described In the
Scope of Work attached. The services provided are under the auspices of the Ohio Department of
Public Safety (ODPS), Ohio Traffic Safety Office (OTSO). In performing the services hereunder,
Contractor shall furnish their own materials, tools, equipment and other supplies necessary to
complete the work and provide the services under this agreement, unless stated elsewhere herein.

Contractor shall determine the hours required to perform the services and retains discretion over
their schedule to perform the services.

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws in performing the
work under this agreement. Contractor accepts full responsibility for payment of all taxes,
including but not limited to local Income taxes, and Contractor agrees that the State of Ohio shall
not be liable for any taxes under this agreement.



7 of 7

Compensation; All reimbursements shall be pre­approved by the ODPS/OTSO.

Contractor will submit a detailed invoice and documentation on a monthly basis for performance of
services, which are due to ODPS/OTSO by the 10th of each month.

Contractor understands and agrees that compensation and reimbursement payments to be made to
contractor under this agreement are subject to Federal Funding. Should any change in federal
funding adversely affect ODPS/OTSO's ability to complete the fiscal year's activities,
ODPS/OTSO has the right to revise or terminate the agreement in writing.

Either Contractor or ODPS/OTSO may terminate this agreement for any reason by giving the
other party 30 days written notice. If the agreement is canceled under this provision,
ODPS/OTSO shall reimburse the Contractor for approved work completed and documented to
that date. Upon termination all data results, reports and other materials developed by the
Contractor will  become the property of  ODPS/OTSO. All of the equipment, materials and/or
supplies provided to the Contractor for use under this agreement must be returned to
ODPS/OTSO upon request within 30 days of said notice.

Law Enforcement Liaison Sub­Contractor Contractual Agreement



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. i.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Hannah Kiraly, Program Manager 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SAFETY / SERVICE DIRECTOR TO
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 5K COMMERCIAL ROOFING TO REPLACE PART OF EL
CENTRO DE SERVICIOS SOCIALES, INC.’S WELLNESS CENTER ROOF AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
El Centro de Servicios Sociales, Inc. received a Public Facility Improvement Grant through the City of
Lorain’s Community Development Block Grant program to improve its Wellness Center. The facility’s
roof has been found to require partial replacement due to leaks that have significantly disrupted
services and programs. This Ordinance authorizes the City of Lorain to fund the partial roof
replacement, ensuring that El Centro can continue providing business development and other
programming for Lorain residents.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Waive the three-reading rule and consider for passage. 

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: 114,842.35 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 2260.R226.7110.6700.1500 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): 0 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Ordinance 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
M. Kusznir Matt Kusznir 10/01/2025 09:12 AM
Kiraly (Originator) Hannah Kiraly 10/01/2025 09:16 AM
M. Kusznir Matt Kusznir 10/01/2025 09:21 AM
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 10:03 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM



P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Hannah Kiraly Started On: 09/30/2025 03:45 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO._________

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain desires to replace part of the roof at El Centro de Servicios Sociales,
Inc.’s Wellness Center located at 1825 E 28th St, Lorain, OH 44055; and,

WHEREAS, a part of the 2023 Fiscal Year Community Development Block Grant Funds Public Facility
Improvement Application process, El Centro de Servicios Sociales, Inc. was awarded a grant to cover the
replacement of part of the roof at the Wellness Center; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain solicited bids in the replacement of specific items at El Centro de
Servicios Sociales, Inc.’s Wellness Center and determined the lowest and best bidder, namely 5K
Commercial Roofing; and,

WHEREAS, the total project cost including contingency is $114,842.35; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain recognizes the immediate need to replace part of the roof at the Wellness
Center to ensure the safety and wellbeing of Lorain, Ohio residents utilizing the facility.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY YHE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, OHIO:

SECTION I: That the Safety/Service Director of the City of Lorain, Ohio is hereby authorized to enter
into a contract with 5K Commercial Roofing for the replacement of part of the roof at El Centro de
Servicios Sociales, Inc.’s Wellness Center in an amount not to exceed $114,842.35.

SECTION II: That Community Development Block Grant Funds will be provided for payment in an
amount not to exceed $114,842.35. The account number is 2260.R226.7110.6700.1500 Facility
Improvement.

SECTION III: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions, were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Ohio Revised Code
121.22.

SECTION IV: Therefore, this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency being the necessity to
have work commence on the project and completed within a timely manner. Therefore, this Ordinance
shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approved by the Mayor providing that
it meets the statutory requirements for passage; otherwise, it shall be in force from and after the earliest
date allowed by law.

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE
SAFETY / SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH 5K COMMERCIAL ROOFING TO
REPLACE PART OF EL CENTRO DE SERVICIOS
SOCIALES, INC.’S WELLNESS CENTER ROOF AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.



PASSED: _______________________, 2025 ________________________________

President of Council

ATTEST:_________________________, Clerk of Council

APPROVED: ______________________, 2025 ________________________________

            Mayor



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. j.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Matt Kusznir, Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING A LICENSE FOR THE  PURPOSE OF AN INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR
ROTAR INDUSTRIES LLC, WHO HAS EXECUTED A PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 2630 COLORADO AVENUE FROM FLIPPER BOAT STORAGE LLC AND AUTHORIZING THE
SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO EFFECTUATE SAME, AND
DECLARING IT AN EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
WHEREAS, Rotar Industries LLC, requires a second point of access for its proposed business; and 
WHEREAS, the City owns a parcel of land that is adjacent to where an additional point of ingress and
egress could be granted to provide access to River Industrial Park Drive; and
WHEREAS, the additional point of ingress and egress will alleviate additional traffic concerns on
Colorado Avenue from the proposed development; and
WHEREAS, Rotar Industries’ operations are contingent upon this second point of access.
 

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consideration and passage

Attachments
Ordinance 
Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 09:46 AM
Form Started By: Matt Kusznir Started On: 10/01/2025 04:02 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING A LICENSE FOR THE
PURPOSE OF AN INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR ROTAR
INDUSTRIES LLC, WHO HAS EXECUTED A PURCHASE
AGREEMENT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2630
COLORADO AVENUE FROM FLIPPER BOAT STORAGE LLC
AND AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO
TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO EFFECTUATE SAME, AND
DECLARING IT AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Rotar Industries LLC, requires a second point of access for its proposed business; and

WHEREAS, the City owns a parcel of land that is adjacent to where an additional point of ingress and
egress could be granted to provide access to River Industrial Park Drive; and

WHEREAS, the additional point of ingress and egress will alleviate additional traffic concerns on
Colorado Avenue from the proposed development; and

WHEREAS, Rotar Industries’ operations are contingent upon this second point of access.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN,
STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION 1:  That the Safety/Service Director is authorized to take all necessary steps to effectuate
and/or enforce the appropriation of a license for the purpose of an ingress and egress for Rotar Industries
who has executed a purchase agreement for the property located at 2630 Colorado Avenue.

SECTION 2:  It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating
to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 3:  That this Ordinance is declared to be an emergency, the nature of which is the immediate
need to appropriate a license for an ingress and egress for the aforesaid real estate at the earliest possible
time in order to facilitate Rotar Industries’ development, all in order to provide for the health, safety and
welfare of the citizens of Lorain.  Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage
and approval by the Mayor, providing it receives the statutory requirements for passage; otherwise, it
shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _____________________, 2025
__________________________________

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _____________________, CLERK
__________________________________

MAYOR

APPROVED: __________________, 2025



LICENSE
FOR

ROTAR INDUSTRIES LLC

STATE OF OHIO )
)SS

COUNTY OF LORAIN )

That I/we, _______________________________________; for valuable consideration received
to their full satisfaction, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by these presents, do/does
hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to the Rotar Industries LLC, the GRANTEE, hereinafter
known as “Grantee” its successors and assigns, for the consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and
other valuable considerations, license for the construction and maintenance of ingress and egress
at any time by the GRANTEE, their heirs successors, or assigns, at their discretion.  The License
granted in this instrument concern or will be on and through the said GRANTOR’S land located
in the City of Lorain, County of Lorain and State of Ohio, and is bounded and described as
follows:

PERMANENT INGRESS/EGRESS LICENSE
THROUGH LANDS OF City of Lorain,

Permanent Parcel #0300055121032 and being further described in Exhibit A:

Said License granted on, over, and through the real property described herein shall be a free right
to ingress and egress over and across the said GRANTOR’S real property, insofar as such right
of ingress and egress is necessary to the proper use of land and any other rights as so granted
herein for the Grantee, their agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors and their respective
employees.

The benefits and obligations of this license shall run with the land as described herein and shall
bind the respective parties hereto, their heirs, successors, legal representatives and assigns.

This license is granted subject to the following covenants, terms and conditions, and the Grantee
by acceptance of this grant of easement, or through the exercise of any of the rights mentioned
hereto for and hereunder, shall be deemed to have accepted and agreed to all of said covenants,
terms, and conditions:

1.The Grantee, its successors and assigns, and its agents, servants, representatives, and
employees shall not interfere with the safe and continuous operations of the GRANTOR
on the above described premises after construction, except for the purposes so granted to
the Grantee.

2.The Grantee agree that all work upon the aforementioned license shall be so conducted and
performed so as to avoid all unnecessary interference with the operation of said
GRANTOR upon said premises.

3.The Grantee, its successors and assigns, and its agents, servants, representatives, and
employees is expressly authorized to enter from time to time upon said licensed land, and
if necessary upon the adjoining lands of the GRANTOR for the purpose of ingress and
egress to and from said parcel and for reasons of performing work in connection with all
of said license’ purposes.

4.The Grantee agree to maintain ingress and egress to said GRANTOR’S property while work is
in progress on said easement.

5.The Grantee agrees that subsequent to exercising any of their rights mentioned herein that it
will restore the property insofar as is reasonably possible to the same condition existing
prior to such construction activities.

6.The Grantee is fully aware that the terms of this document are revocable at any time by the
Grantor its successors and assigns and all interest in said land by the Grantee its
successors and assigns is void.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this License on this _____Day of
___________________, 2025.

WITNESSED BY GRANTOR(S)

_______________________________ ______________________________
  Rey Carrion
  Safety/Service Director, City of Lorain

_______________________________

STATE OF OHIO )
) SS

COUNTY OF LORAIN )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above
named Rey Carrion who acknowledged that I/we did sign the foregoing instrument and the same
is   my/our own free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at
__________________, Ohio, this _________ day of _____________________, 2025.

 

                SEAL __________________________________
 Notary Public
____________________________________
Commission Expires



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Rotar Industries LLC, sets its hand and corporate seal:

Signed in the presence of:

____________________________________  GRANTEE
 WITNESS

____________________________________           ___________________________________
 WITNESS Jason Kucharski

Rotar Industries LLC

 This ________ day of __________, 2025.

STATE OF OHIO )
)SS

COUNTY OF LORAIN )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the  Rotar
Industries LLC by and through, Jason Kucharski, who acknowledged that he did sign the
forgoing instrument, and that the same is the free act and deed of said Rotar Industries LLC.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at
_____________________, Ohio, this ______ day of ____________________, 2025.

___________________________________
SEAL   Notary Public

____________________________________
Commission expires

This instrument prepared by:

Lorain City Engineers Office
Dale Vandersommen
200 West Erie Avenue, Fourth Floor
Lorain, Ohio  44052



EXHIBIT A



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. k.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Elva Martes

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 016-25 AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE
DIRECTOR TO MODIFY AGREEMENT NO. 25-015 WITH RUHLIN COMPANY FOR THE 611
COLORADO AVENUE TRAFFIC SIGNAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The intersection at 611 Colorado Avenue requires further improvements to its stormwater drainage
system and roadway base, it has been determined that the extra work is estimated to cost
$111,080.00.  ODOT portion $98,110.00 / City of Lorain portion $12,970.00.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Consideration for Passage.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: $111,080.00 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 4010.C401.6300.5601 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): $98,110.00 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
Additional Work $111,080.00 ODOT portion $98,110.00 / City portion $12,970.00
New Total Project Cost not to exceed $1,038,991.81 

Attachments
Ordinance 
Scope of Work 
Change Order 1 
Proposal 
ORC 5517.03 Closing Highways 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:16 PM



JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 10:10 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Elva Martes Started On: 10/01/2025 09:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 016-25
AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO
MODIFY AGREEMENT NO. 25-015 WITH RUHLIN COMPANY
FOR THE 611 COLORADO AVENUE TRAFFIC SIGNAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, as authorized by Ordinance 016-25, the City of Lorain entered into
Agreement 25-015 with The Ruhlin Company, the Lowest and Best Bidder, for the 611
Colorado Ave Traffic Signal Improvement Project; and,

WHEREAS, The intersection at 611 Colorado Avenue requires further improvements to its
stormwater drainage system and roadway base to ensure long-term durability.
Additionally, Iowa Avenue needs extra stabilization work to maintain the integrity of the
existing roadway throughout the winter months prior to removal and replacement with
2026 OPWC local roadway rehabilitation; and,

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the extra work can be completed for an additional
$111,080.00; ODOT will pay up to $98,110.00, local match is the remainder at $12,970.00;
and,

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the City Engineer’s Office that the project has encountered
issues stopping the work and therefore the City Improvement fund may be used to cover
the local match to carry out the additional work. An appropriation will be made by the city
auditors office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I.  That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to enter into an
addendum to Agreement 25-015 for the 611 Colorado Ave Traffic Signal Improvement
Project to increase the scope of the work and to pay an amount not to exceed $111,080 for
said additional work.

  
SECTION II.  That funding for the project may be increased by an amount not to exceed
$111,080; the increase of cost shall be paid from City Improvement Fund
4010.C401.6300.5601.The total project cost shall not exceed $1,038,991.81.

SECTION III.  The City Auditor shall allocate the additional funds as deemed proper.



SECTION IV. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting
of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that
resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the public, and in compliance with
all legal requirements, including Section 121.22, Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION V.   That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the
emergency being the timely execution of the project for the safety and welfare of the
citizens of Lorain. Therefore, this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage
and approval by the mayor providing it meets the statutory requirements for passage,
otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by
law.

PASSED: _____________________, 2025

__________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _____________________, CLERK

__________________________________
MAYOR

APPROVED: __________________, 2025
  



Background:

1. CO#1 focuses on stormwater improvements and a cost savings for concrete instead
of asphalt pavement (attached)

a. Cost: $16,605 = $21,765.06 minus no asphalt or tack coating savings(-
$5,160)

b. Change order is attached with explanation of necessity
2. Iowa Ave maintenance request (Iowa Ave proposal attached)

a. Cost: $62,505
b. This roadway was planned to be the detour route for the project. However,

condition was rechecked prior to the start of work and it was decided to
create an alternate detour. Unfortunately, as this roadway is near the Holcim
Lafarge docks, trucks and local traffic continued to use it after the project
began. We are asking to remove the roadway and install aggregate to
overwinter the road. Iowa Ave will be paved as part of the City of Lorain’s
2026 roadway improvement program.

i. We are requesting this item due to ORC 5517.03.
c. Photos can be provided if required. Both before the project and current

status.
3. Force account

a. Cost: $19,000
b. Moving manhole related to positive flow issue
c. Moving foundation several times at the ne corner of the project due to heavy

utilities congestion
d. Miovision temporary construction installation (email attached with LPA

coordinator from July)

ODOT has agreed to pay for 90% of this work with the city paying the remaining 10%.











LOR-611-4.30

Sharon Center,  OH  44274

P.O. Box 190

The Ruhlin Company

Kevin Grabosky

330-419-8855

330-239-1828

Contact:

Phone:

Fax:

Job Name: Iowa Ave
Date of Plans:Quote To: City of Lorain

Phone: Revision Date:
Fax:

AMOUNTITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE

PAVEMENT REMOVED, AS PER PLAN SY1,285.00         1 23.50 30,197.50

CURB REMOVED FT855.00         4 9.00 7,695.00

SUBGRADE COMPACTION SY1,285.00        10 2.50 3,212.50

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SY1,285.00        14 2.00 2,570.00

8" #1 & #2 STONE CY300.00       108 106.00 31,800.00

GRAND TOTAL $75,475.00

Page 1 of 1





















CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. l.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Joe Carbonaro, Utilities Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ADVERTISE & ENTER
INTO A CONTRACT FOR A ONE-YEAR PERIOD WITH TWO OPTIONAL ONE-YEAR
EXTENSIONS FOR STREET PATCHING WITHIN THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
WHEREAS, the current contract is set to expire on December 31, 2025; and
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Utilities Department makes numerous and various planned and
unplanned repairs to water, sewer, and storm sewer lines throughout the City; and
 
WHEREAS, roadways, driveways, and sidewalks become damaged during infrastructure repairs and
must be repaired to meet Engineering Standards for the health and safety of vehicular and pedestrian
traffic; and
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to enter into a contract prior to January 1, 2026.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Passage

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N 
Estimated Total Expenditure: 1,000,000 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Budget 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
Funds will be budgeted in 2026 through the listed GL accounts. 

Attachments
Ordinance 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:11 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:15 PM



JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 09:57 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Joe Carbonaro Started On: 09/24/2025 02:06 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE
DIRECTOR TO ADVERTISE & ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
FOR A ONE-YEAR PERIOD WITH TWO OPTIONAL ONE-YEAR
EXTENSIONS FOR STREET PATCHING WITHIN THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO.

WHEREAS, the current contract is set to expire on December 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain Utilities Department makes numerous and various planned and
unplanned repairs to water, sewer, and storm sewer lines throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, roadways, driveways, and sidewalks become damaged during infrastructure repairs and
must be repaired to meet Engineering Standards for the health and safety of vehicular and pedestrian
traffic; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to enter into a contract prior to January 1, 2026.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LORAIN,
STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I.     That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to advertise for bids and enter into
a contract for a one (1) year period with two (2) optional one (1) year extensions for the furnishing of
labor and materials for the patching of streets and sidewalks within the City of Lorain after sanitary,
storm, and water repair work has been completed.

SECTION II. That the cost of the labor and material for the repairs completed shall be taken from the
following Accounts:
Water Works (Water Distribution) 6020.P602.6190.6700.2500 – Not to Exceed $500,000
Water Pollution Control (Sanitary Sewer) 6130.P613.6460.6700.2500 – Not to Exceed $250,000
General Sewer (Storm) 4030.C403.6700.2500 – Not to Exceed $250,000

The total amount of the contract shall not exceed $1,000,000 per year.

SECTION V.   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all
deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions were in
meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of
the Ohio Revised Code.



PASSED: _________________, 2025
          _________________________________

                                                                                 PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _________________, CLERK

 __________________________________
                        MAYOR

APPROVED: ______________, 2025



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. m.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Joe Carbonaro, Utilities Director

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO VARIOUS
CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF CHEMICALS FOR USE IN THE UTILITIES
DEPARTMENT, WATER AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL DIVISIONS OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
To enter into contracts with various vendors for various chemicals to be used in the operation and
maintenance of the wastewater and water treatment plants.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Passage

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): N 
Estimated Total Expenditure: 1,275,000 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Budget 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
Funds will be budgeted in the 2026. 

Attachments
Ordinance 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:15 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 09:58 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Joe Carbonaro Started On: 09/24/2025 02:12 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SAFETY/SERVICE DIRECTOR TO
ENTER INTO VARIOUS CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF
CHEMICALS FOR USE IN THE UTILITIES DEPARTMENT, WATER AND
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL DIVISIONS OF THE CITY OF LORAIN,
STATE OF OHIO.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I That the Safety/Service Director is hereby authorized to advertise and
enter into contract(s) for the purchase of the following items for use in
the Utilities Department, Water and Water Pollution Control Divisions
in an estimated amount of not to exceed $1,275,000, based on 2025
awarded/expensed costs and projected price fluctuation(s):

Each Year Approximately:

            375 Tons dry weight Sulfate of Aluminum (Liquid)
                          60 Tons Liquid Chlorine in one (1) ton cylinders
                          50 Tons Powdered Activated Carbon (PAC)
                          25 Tons Sodium Fluorosilicate
                     4,000 Pounds Potassium Permanganate
                        155 Tons Ferric Chloride
                 125,000 Gallons Ferrous Chloride
                   13,500 Gallons Sodium Bisulfite Solution
                   20,000 Gallons (at least 50%) Caustic Soda
                   8,250 Gallons Liquid Polymer
                   10,000 Gallons 35% Orthophosphate

       38,000 Gallons Sodium Hypochlorite Solution
         660 Gallons Polyacrylamide

                     220 Gallons Cationic Polymer

The above is in accordance with specifications that require NSF approval as a minimum,
that will be on file in the Engineering Department and subject to the approval of the
Board of Control of said City as required by law.

SECTION II   That bids submitted are for a one (1) year contract period.

SECTION III That all one (1) year contracts for the purchase of chemicals needed by
the Utilities Department for calendar year 2026 shall have a termination
date of 12/31/2026.



SECTION IV  That the costs each calendar year shall be taken from the following
Water Fund and Water Pollution Control Fund Accounts:

6020.P602.6440.6400.3200 – Purification Operations – Chemical Supplies
6130.P613.6310.6400.3200 – Plant Operations – Chemical Supplies
6130.P613.6420.6400.3200 – PQM Plant – Chemical Supplies

SECTION V   That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting
of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that
resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open to the public and in compliance
with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

PASSED: _________________, 2025
          _________________________________

                                                                                 PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _________________, CLERK

 __________________________________
                        MAYOR

APPROVED: ______________, 2025



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. n.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Tim Shinsky

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
An ordinance assessing the cost of abating nuisance by removing litter and deposit of garbage,
rubbish, junk, etc... during current calendar year.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
We wish to assess the cost of abating garbage, rubbish, junk, etc... at the properties listed in exhibit A,
attached.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
We recommend council consider passage of ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: 1421.88 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 1010.G100.4050.1000 Outside Source 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Garcia Lori Garcia 09/25/2025 09:22 AM
Carrion Rey Carrion 10/02/2025 05:12 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 10/02/2025 05:15 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/03/2025 09:59 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 10:12 AM
Form Started By: Tim Shinsky Started On: 09/25/2025 08:31 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



                           ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ASSESSING THE COST OF ABATING
NUISANCE BY REMOVING  LITTER AND DEPOSIT OF GARBAGE,
RUBBISH, JUNK ETC.  DURING THE CURRENT CALENDAR YEAR
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, It is the duty of the owner and, if different, the lessee, agent or tenant
having charge of real property to inspect and insure that litter, garbage,
rubbish, junk, etc. is collected and removed from said property and that
said property is safe and does not create a health or safety condition for
others: and

WHEREAS, the need exists to abate the property nuisances and to assess these
properties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I.  This council finds that the Director of Public Safety/ Service has
abated  certain nuisances after notifying the owners of the property on which
said nuisances originated, and has reported the cost of such abatement, all in the
manner provided by law, as follows per attached Exhibit A is fully incorporated
herein:

SECTION II.  The amounts shown are hereby assessed upon the properties
shown and such assessments shall be certified for collection upon the current
Calendar collection year duplicate in the same manner as general taxes. All
funds collected shall be deposited into Special Assessment Account
1010.G100.4050.1000 upon receipt. 

  SECTION III. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of     this
Council concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance adopted in an
open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of
any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open
to the public and in compliance with all legal  requirements, including section
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION IV. That this Ordinance is hereby declared to  be an emergency the
nature of the emergency being the immediate need to provide for normal
operating and capital expenditures to assess the properties, and  in order to
render services to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the City. Therefore,
this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by
the Mayor, providing it receives the statutory requirements for passage,
otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

          



          
PASSED:______________________, 2025     ______________________

      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: _______________________, CLERK
___________________________

  MAYOR

APPROVED: _____________________, 2025



EXHIBIT A

HOMEOWNER of RECORD Permanent    Parcel
#

Removal
Cost Admin Total PROPERTY ADDRESS DATE

CLEANED

TPG Lorain LLC 0201005120002 $173.96 $300.00 $473.96 911 W 9th 7/12/2025
SFR3 AIC LLC 0202026116013 $173.96 $300.00 $473.96 937 Brownell 7/12/2025
Hero Homes Property Owner A LLC 0300098107011 $173.96 $300.00 $473.96 2909 Denver Ave 7/12/2025

Total $1,421.88

ORIGINATOR:
Tim Shinsky
tim_shinsky@cityoflorain.org

mailto:linda_oconnor@cityoflorain.org


CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. o.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Dawn Walther

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, OHIO TO PAY
INVOICE SUBMITTED BY THE POLICE DEPARTMENT THAT INVOKES THE THEN AND NOW
CERTIFICATION EXCEPTION PROCESS AS PER OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 5705.41
AND TO PAY FOR SAID INVOICES AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
Invoice date was before purchase order was obtained.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council to consider for passage.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available In Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimate of Total Expenditure: 4,920.92 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 2590.S400 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Then and Now Ordinance 
Then and Now documentation 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 09/18/2025 11:01 AM
P. Riley Patrick Riley 09/29/2025 01:33 PM
Form Started By: Dawn Walther Started On: 09/18/2025 10:44 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO.  ____________
           

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE AUDITOR OF THE CITY
OF LORAIN, OHIO TO PAY INVOICE SUBMITTED BY THE
POLICE DEPARTMENT THAT INVOKES THE THEN AND NOW
CERTIFICATION EXCEPTION PROCESS AS PER OHIO
REVISED CODE SECTION 5705.41 AND TO PAY FOR SAID
INVOICES AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code section 5705.41 requires the Auditor of the City of
Lorain to certify that funds have been appropriated and are available to pay invoices as a result of
a purchase order or contract subject to certain exceptions which are not otherwise applicable herein:
and

WHEREAS, the Police Department has submitted an invoice which total $4,920.92 and
money was available then and is available NOW; and

WHEREAS, the Auditor of the City Of Lorain has certified, using the Then and Now
Certification exception pursuant to ORC section 5705.41(D)(1), that the appropriate funds were
available THEN and the appropriate funds are available NOW; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain, Ohio deems it necessary to pay these invoices for services
rendered or material received;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I. That the Auditor of the City of Lorain is hereby authorized to pay the
invoice along with the attached THEN and NOW certificate, in the amount
$4,920.92 and remit said payment to the appropriate vendor.

SECTION II. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in
an open meeting of the Council, and that all deliberations of this Council
and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions, were in
meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements,
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION III. That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of the
emergency being the immediate need to pay the invoices submitted for services rendered or
material received by the City of Lorain and to protect the credit of the City in order to continue to
receive products and services from vendors.  Therefore, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in
force from and immediately after its passage and approval of the Mayor, providing it meets the
statutory requirements for passage, otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:  , 2025
President of Council

ATTESTED:  , 2025 __________________________
Clerk of Council

APPROVED:  , 2025
Mayor









CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 11. p.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Dawn Walther

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR CURRENT EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO AS PASSED BY ORDINANCE
#35-25 BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2025, AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
 

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
Appropriation for permanent budget.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
Lorain City Council to consider for passage.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available In Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimate of Total Expenditure: 446,993 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: Various 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.):
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):

Attachments
Appropriation 
Appropriation Attachment 
Appropriation Attachment 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 10/02/2025 01:59 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 10/03/2025 09:46 AM
Form Started By: Dawn Walther Started On: 09/30/2025 03:22 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

  



   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



  ORDINANCE NO.  _______________

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR CURRENT EXPENSES AND
OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO AS PASSED
BY ORDINANCE #35-25 BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2025, AND ENDING DECEMBER
31, 2025 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I.   That the following amount be appropriated from the following funds to provide
for the current expenses and other expenditures in the City of Lorain, State of Ohio, beginning
January 1, 2025, and ending December 31, 2025:

General Fund
Reimbursement Revenue $       4,003
Fund Balance $     23,000

Heritage TIF Fund
TIF Revenue $     12,900

G.O. Bond Retirement Fund
Riverfront TIF Revenue $       2,690

UDAG Fund
Fund Balance $     26,000

Capital Improvements Fund
Fund Balance $     13,000
Transfer In – General Sewer Fund $   182,700

General Sewer Fund
Pellet Terminal Expense $   182,700

SECTION II. That the following amounts be appropriated to the following funds:

General Fund
Other Services – Property Taxes $       4,003
Clerk of Courts Postage $     10,000
Economic Development Contractual Services $     13,000

Heritage TIF Fund
Compensation Agreements $     12,900

G.O. Bond Retirement Fund
Riverfront TIF – County Tax Settlement Fees $       2,690

UDAG Fund
Contractual Services $     26,000



Capital Improvements
City Improvements $     13,000
US EPA Grant Expense $   182,700

General Sewer Fund
Transfer Out – Capital Improvements Fund $   182,700

SECTION III. That this Ordinance is passed by virtue of the provisions of Section 5705.40 Ohio
Revised Code, all provisions of which have been complied with.

SECTION IV. That it is found and determined that all formal actions relating to the passage of
this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of
this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open
to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22, Ohio
Revised Code.

SECTION V. This ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the nature of which is the
immediate need to provide funding to meet contractual obligations. Therefore, this Ordinance
shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor, provided it receives
the statutory requirements for passage, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:_____________________ , 2025
President of Council

ATTEST:______________________, 2025
                Clerk of Council Mayor

APPROVED: , 2025































































CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 12. a.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Linda OConnor

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE DIRECTOR OF SAFETY/SERVICE TO ENTER
INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE SUPERLATIVE GROUP, INC. TO SOLICIT AND NEGOTIATE NAMING
RIGHTS FOR P.C. CAMPANA PARK AND THE DIFFERENT FACILITIES WITHIN THE PARK.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:
The City of Lorain has the opportunity to benefit financially through the  naming rights to PC Campana
Park.  The Superlative Group has a successful history of securing substantial sponsorships for facility
naming rights for numerous organizations. We expect to benefit from their expertise.

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
We recommend Council consider passage of ths ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available in Current Year Budget (Y/N): Y 
Estimated Total Expenditure: 69,500.00 
List of Funding Source and/or Account Number: 1010.B200.4160.6300.1500 
Estimate of Incoming Revenue (fees, grants, etc.): To Be Determined 
Financing Requirements (Bonds, Loans, Lease, etc.):
The figure above includes $24,500.00 for Phase I of the agreement.
If Phase II of the agreement is approved by the city, it will include a fee of $3,750.00 per month, for
a period of up to 12 months, or until a sponsorship agreement for naming rights is secured.  Total
amount of Phase II will not exceed $45,000.00. 

Attachments
Campana Naming Rights ordinance 
Campana agreement/Exhibit Ait 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Garcia Lori Garcia 08/25/2025 01:59 PM
Carrion Linda OConnor 08/25/2025 02:45 PM
Linda O'Connor (Originator) Linda OConnor 08/25/2025 02:48 PM
Garcia Lori Garcia 08/25/2025 02:49 PM
Carrion Linda OConnor 08/25/2025 02:57 PM



Linda O'Connor (Originator) Linda OConnor 08/25/2025 03:01 PM
Garcia Lori Garcia 08/25/2025 03:02 PM
Carrion Rey Carrion 08/26/2025 05:54 PM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 08/26/2025 07:15 PM
JKoziura Joseph Koziura 08/26/2025 07:18 PM
P. Riley Michele Beko 08/28/2025 09:02 AM
Form Started By: Linda OConnor Started On: 08/01/2025 12:38 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO._______________

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE DIRECTOR OF
SAFETY/SERVICE TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE
SUPERLATIVE GROUP, INC. TO SOLICIT AND NEGOTIATE NAMING
RIGHTS FOR P.C. CAMPANA PARK AND THE DIFFERENT FACILITIES
WITHIN THE PARK.

WHEREAS, City of Lorain wishes to offer the opportunity for a business entity to
benefit from a valuable advertising opportunity through the sponsorship naming rights
of P.C. Campana Park, including all fields and facilities within the park, in order to
enhance the monetary resources necessary to maintain the facility following the
completion of major renovations, for the continued benefit of the residents of the City of
Lorain; and

WHEREAS, City of Lorain would like to engage the services of the Superlative
Group, Inc. attached as exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS,
the agreement is broken down into 3 phases, with costs of all phases to be paid

out of account 1010.B200.4160.6300.1500 Campana Park Contractual Services; and

           WHEREAS, Phase 1, Asset Valuation Services, will have a fee of Twenty-Four
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($24,500.00), to be paid when the agreement is executed;
and

           WHEREAS, Phase II, if approved by the city to proceed, shall include a fee of Three
Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($3,750.00) per month, not to exceed 12 months
in duration; and

           WHEREAS, Phase III, upon execution of a sponsorship agreement for the naming
rights, shall include a commission fee of seventeen and one-half percent (17.5%) of the
total sponsorship amount, payable annually upon the City’s receipt of the sponsorship
payment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I. The Director of Safety/Service is hereby authorized and directed to
enter into a Professional Service agreement with Superlative Group,



Inc. to obtain a sponsorship agreement at P.C. Campana Park, for a
total cost not to exceed $69,500.00 and 17.5% commission on the
profit of the final sponsorship agreement.

SECTION II. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were
adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations
of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal
action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with
all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

SECTION IV. That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency, the
nature of which is the immediate need to start Phase I so that we can
secure a sponsorship prior to the 2026 season at the park.   Therefore,
this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and
approval by the Mayor, providing it receives the statutory
requirements for passage; otherwise, it shall take effect and be in
force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: ______________________, 2025        ____________________________________
   PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ______________________, CLERK       

APPROVED: ___________________, 2025        ____________________________________
                                                                                                      MAYOR

















































CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 12. b.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Michele Beko, Law Office Admin

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 509 OF THE LORAIN CODIFIED ORDINANCES BY CREATING
SECTION 509.19 OF THE LORAIN CODIFIED ORDINANCES - "PARENT OR GUARDIAN RESPONSIBILITY
FOR MINORS" AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
WITH THE INCREASE IN JUVENILE CRIME THROUGHOUT THE CITY OF LORAIN IT IS NECESSARY TO
TAKE ACTION TO HOLD THE PARENTS OR GUARDIANS OF THESE JUVENILES ACCOUNTABLE FOR
THE ACTIONS OF UNSUPERVISED JUVENILES

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
RECOMMENDATION FOR PASSAGE

Attachments
Ordinance- Amended 10/6/25 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
P. Riley Michele Beko 08/28/2025 09:21 AM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 08/28/2025 10:41 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 08/28/2025 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Michele Beko Started On: 08/28/2025 09:07 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. ________________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 509 OF
THE LORAIN CODIFIED ORDINANCES BY

  CREATING SECTION 509.19 OF THE LORAIN CODIFIED
ORDINANCES —“PARENT OR GUARDIAN RESPONSIBILITY

FOR MINORS” AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

Whereas, there is an increase in juvenile crime being committed throughout the City of
Lorain; and

Whereas, it is necessary to take action and hold the parents or guardians of these
juveniles accountable for the actions of unsupervised juveniles; and

Whereas, parents and legal guardians have a fundamental role in supervising and guiding
the behavior of minors, and it is in the public interest to support and reinforce this responsibility
through reasonable local regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I:  509.19 PARENT OR GUARDIAN RESPONSIBILITY FOR MINORS.

(a) As used in this section:
(1) “Minor” means an individual who is under the age of eighteen (18) years.
(2) “Parent” means any natural parent or any adult person over the age of twenty-one (21) or

who is responsible for the care, custody, and control of a minor child.
(3) “Legal Guardian” means a person, other than a parent, to whom legal custody of the

juvenile has been given by court order or who is acting in place of the parent or is
responsible for the care and welfare of the juvenile.

(4) “Public Place” means any place to which the public has access, including but not limited
to a public street, road, throughfare, sidewalk, bridge, plaza, park, recreation or shopping
area, public transportation facility, vehicle used for public transportation, parking lot, or
any other public building, structure, or area.

(5) “Supervision” is the exercise of control over a minor child, knowing the whereabouts of
the minor child, knowing with whom he or she associates and in what activities he or she
may engage in which could affect or offend the public peace, safety, and morals.

(b) No parent, legal guardian, or other adult person having the care or custody of a minor
child under eighteen (18) years of age, by any act or word, or the failure to act or by the
lack of supervision and control over said minor, shall encourage, contribute, toward,
cause or tend to cause said child to commit any violation of the Lorain Codified
Ordinances, the Ohio Revised Code, or the laws and Ordinances of the City of Lorain.

(c) No parent, legal guardian, or other adult person having custody or care of any minor child
under the age of eighteen (18) shall assist, abet, allow, permit, or encourage said minor to



violate any section of the Lorain Codified Ordinances, the Ohio Revised Code, or the
laws and Ordinances of the City of Lorain, Ohio by failing to act or by lack of
supervision and control over said child.

(d) The fact that a child under the age of eighteen (18) years is apprehended while on any
public property place during hours of curfew shall be prima facie evidence of a violation
of this section on the part of the parents, legal guardian, or other person having custody or
care of said minor.

(e) Any person who violates any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor
of the first degree.

SECTION II:  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and
that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action
were in meeting open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including
Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION III:  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, the nature
of the emergency being the immediate need to expand the responsibility requirements  and
accountability for the increase of juvenile crime throughout the City of Lorain, to provide for the
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City of Lorain. Therefore, this ordinance shall
take effect immediately upon its passage and approval by the mayor, provided that it meets the
statutory requirements for passage; otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after
the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: ____________________, 2025          _________________________________
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST: ______________________, CLERK

      ____________________________
APPROVED: ______________________, 2025                                 MAYOR

Amended 10/6/25



CITY OF LORAIN

   
City Council Regular Meeting 12. c.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2025  
Submitted by: Michele Beko, Law Office Admin

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION OR LEGISLATION TITLE
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 549 WEAPONS AND EXPLOSIVES OF
THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LORAIN AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
 TO COMBAT THE ONSLAUGHT OF WEAPON OFFENSES BY INCREASING THE PENALTIES FOR
WEAPON-RELATED OFFENSES FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE CITIZENS OF THE CITY OF LORAIN

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:
CONSIDERATION FOR PASSAGE 

Attachments
ORDINANCE 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
P. Riley Michele Beko 08/28/2025 09:43 AM
Mayor Bradley Jack Bradley 08/28/2025 10:41 AM
P. Riley Michele Beko 08/28/2025 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Michele Beko Started On: 08/28/2025 09:24 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/07/2025 

   VOTE ON PASSAGE
  AYE NAY   AYE NAY

Springowski     Nutt    
Dimacchia     Moon    
DuVall     Arroyo    
Henley     Spellacy    
Kempton     Thornsberry    
Carter     Arredondo    



ORDINANCE NO. ______

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 549
OF  THE  CODIFIED  ORDINANCES  OF  THE  CITY  OF  LORAIN,  AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Lorain experiences high rates of weapon-related offenses within
its territorial jurisdiction; and,

WHEREAS, to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the City of Lorain citizenry and
its visitors, the Lorain City Council desires to combat the onslaught of weapon offenses by
increasing the penalties of certain Lorain Codified Ordinances related to weapon offenses; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code § 715.67, Ohio municipalities are
authorized to enact penalties for the violation of their ordinances that do not exceed
misdemeanors; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LORAIN, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION I. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.02 Carrying
Concealed Weapons currently reads as follows:

549.02 CARRYING CONCEALED WEAPONS.

   (a)   No person shall knowingly carry or have, concealed on the person’s person or concealed
ready at hand, any of the following:
      (1)   A deadly weapon other than a handgun;
      (2)   A handgun other than a dangerous ordnance;
      (3)   A dangerous ordnance.
   (b)   No person who has been issued a concealed handgun license, shall do any of the following:
      (1)   If  the  person  is  stopped  for  a  law  enforcement  purpose  and  is  carrying  a  concealed
handgun, before or at the time a law enforcement officer asks if the person is carrying a concealed
handgun, knowingly fail to disclose that the person then is carrying a concealed handgun, provided
that it is not a violation of this section if the person fails to disclose that fact to an officer during
the stop and the person already has notified another officer of that fact during the same stop;
      (2)   If  the  person  is  stopped  for  a  law  enforcement  purpose  and  is  carrying  a  concealed
handgun,  knowingly  fail  to  keep  the  person’s  hands  in  plain  sight  at  any  time  after  any  law
enforcement officer begins approaching the person while stopped and before the law enforcement
officer leaves, unless the failure is pursuant to and in accordance with directions given by a law
enforcement officer;
      (3)   If  the  person  is  stopped  for  a  law  enforcement  purpose  and  is  carrying  a  concealed
handgun, knowingly disregard or fail  to comply with any lawful order of any law enforcement
officer given while the person is stopped, including, but not limited to, a specific order to the person
to keep the person’s hands in plain sight.
   (c)   (1)   This section does not apply to any of the following:



         A.   An officer, agent or employee or this or any other state or the United States, or to a law
enforcement officer, who is authorized to carry concealed weapons or dangerous ordnance, or is
authorized to carry handguns and is acting within the scope of the officer’s, agent’s or employee’s
duties;
         B.   Any person who is employed in this State, who is authorized to carry concealed weapons
or dangerous ordnance or is authorized to carry handguns, and who is subject to and in compliance
with  the  requirements of Ohio R.C. 109.801 unless  the  appointing  authority of  the person has
expressly specified that the exemption provided in subsection (c)(1)B. hereof does not apply to the
person.
         C.   A  person’s  transportation  or  storage  of  a firearm,  other  than  a firearm described  in
divisions  (G)  to  (M)  of  Ohio  R.C.  2923.11  in  a  motor  vehicle  for  any  lawful  purpose  if
the firearm is not on the actor’s person;
         D.   A person’s storage or possession of a firearm, other than a firearm described in divisions
(G) to (M) of Ohio R.C. 2923.11 in the actor’s own home for any lawful purpose.
      (2)   Subsection  (a)(2)  of  this  section  does  not  apply  to  any person who  has  been  issued  a
concealed  handgun  license  that  is  valid  at  the  time  of  the  alleged  carrying  or  possession  of  a
handgun or who, at the time of the alleged carrying or possession of a handgun, is an active duty
member of the armed forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification card
and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the training
requirements described in Ohio R.C. 2923.125(G)(1), unless the person knowingly is in a place
described in Ohio R.C. 2923.126(B).
   
   (d)   It is an affirmative defense to a charge under subsection (a)(1) of this section of carrying or
having control of a weapon other than a handgun and other than a dangerous ordnance, that the
actor was not otherwise prohibited by law from having the weapon, and that any of the following
applies:
      (1)   The weapon was carried or kept ready at hand by the actor for defensive purposes, while
the actor was engaged in or was going to or from the actor’s lawful business or occupation, which
business or occupation was of a character or was necessarily carried on in a manner or at a time or
place  as  to  render  the  actor particularly  susceptible  to  criminal  attack,  such as would  justify  a
prudent person in going armed.
      (2)   The weapon was carried or kept ready at hand by the actor for defensive purposes, while
the actor was engaged in a lawful activity and had reasonable cause to fear a criminal attack upon
the actor, a member of  the actor’s family, or  the actor’s home, such as would  justify a prudent
person in going armed.
      (3)   The weapon was carried or kept ready at hand by the actor for any lawful purpose and
while in the actor’s own home.
   (e)   (1)   No person who is charged with a violation of this section shall be required to obtain a
concealed handgun license as a condition for the dismissal of the charge.
      (2)   If a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to, or has pleaded guilty to a
violation of subsection (b)(1) of this section as it existed prior to June 13, 2022, the person may
file  an  application  under  Ohio  R.C.  2953.35  requesting  the  expungement  of  the  record  of
conviction.
   (f)   (1)   Whoever  violates  this  section  is  guilty  of  carrying  concealed  weapons.  Except  as
otherwise provided in  this subsection or subsections (f)(2), (5) and (6) of  this section, carrying
concealed weapons  in  violation  of  subsection  (a)  of  this  section  is  a misdemeanor  of  the  first



degree. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection or subsections (f)(2), (5) and (6) of this
section,  if  the  offender  previously  has  been  convicted  of  a  violation  of  this  section  or  of  any
offense of  violence,  if  the weapon  involved  is  a firearm that  is  either  loaded  or  for which  the
offender has ammunition ready at hand, or if the weapon involved is dangerous ordnance, carrying
concealed weapons in violation of subsection (a) of this section is a felony and shall be prosecuted
under appropriate State law. Except as otherwise provided in subsections (f)(2), (5) and (6) of this
section,  if  the  weapon  involved  is  a firearm and  the  violation  of  this  section  is  committed  at
premises for which a D permit has been issued under Chapter 4303, of the Revised Code or if the
offense is committed aboard an aircraft, or with purpose to carry a concealed weapon aboard an
aircraft, regardless of the weapon involved, carrying concealed weapons in violation of subsection
(a) of this section is a felony and shall be prosecuted under appropriate State law.
      (2)   A person shall not be arrested for a violation of subsection (a)(2) of this section solely
because the person does not promptly produce a valid concealed handgun license. If a person is
arrested for a violation of subsection (a)(2) of this section and is convicted of or pleads guilty to
the violation, the offender shall be punished as follows:
         A.   The offender shall be guilty of a minor misdemeanor if both of the following apply:
            1.   Within  ten days  after  the  arrest,  the offender presents  a  concealed handgun  license,
which license was valid at the time of the arrest to the law enforcement agency that employs the
arresting officer.
            2.   At the time of the arrest, the offender was not knowingly in a place described in division
(B) of Ohio R.C. 2923.126.
         B.   The offender shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be fined five hundred dollars
($500.00) if all of the following apply:
            1.   The offender previously had been issued a concealed handgun license and that license
expired within the two years immediately preceding the arrest.
            2.   Within  forty-five  days  after  the  arrest,  the  offender  presents  any  type  of  concealed
handgun  license  to  the  law  enforcement  agency  that  employed  the  arresting  officer,  and  the
offender waives in writing the offender’s right to a speedy trial on the charge of the violation that
is provided in Ohio R.C. 2945.71.
            3.   At the time of the commission of the offense, the offender was not knowingly in a place
described in division (B) of Ohio R.C. 2923.126.
         C.   If subsections (f)(2)A. and B. and (f)(5) of this section do not apply, the offender shall
be punished under subsection (f)(1) or (6) of this section.
      (3)   Carrying  concealed  weapons  in  violation  of  subsection  (b)(1)  of  this  section  is  a
misdemeanor of the second degree.
      (4)   Carrying  concealed  weapons  in  violation  of  subsection  (b)(2)  or  (b)(3)  hereof  is  a
misdemeanor of the first degree. If the offender has previously been convicted or pleaded guilty to
a violation of subsection (b)(2) or (b)(3) hereof or a substantially equivalent municipal ordinance,
carrying concealed weapons is a felony and shall be prosecuted under appropriate state  law. In
addition  to any other penalty or sanction  imposed for a violation of subsection (b)(2) or  (b)(3)
hereof,  the  offender’s  concealed  handgun  license  shall  be  suspended  pursuant  to  Ohio  R.C.
2923.128(A)(2).
      (5)   If a person being arrested for a violation of subsection (a)(2) of this section is an active
duty member of the armed forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification
card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the
training requirements described in division (G)(1) of Ohio R.C. 2923.125, and if at the time of the



violation the person was not knowingly in a place described in division (B) of Ohio R.C. 2923.126,
the officer shall not arrest the person for a violation of that division. If the person is not able to
promptly produce a valid military identification card and documentation of successful completion
of firearms training that meets or exceeds the training requirements described in division (G)(1) of
Ohio R.C. 2923.125 and  if  the person  is not  in a place described  in division  (B) of Ohio R.C.
2923.126, the officer shall issue a citation and the offender shall be assessed a civil penalty of not
more than five hundred dollars ($500.00). The citation shall be automatically dismissed and the
civil penalty shall not be assessed if both of the following apply:
         A.   Within ten days after the issuance of the citation, the offender presents a valid military
identification card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or
exceeds the training requirements described in division (G)(1) of Ohio R.C. 2923.125, which were
both valid at the time of the issuance of the citation to the law enforcement agency that employs
the citing officer.
         B.   At  the  time  of  the  citation,  the  offender  was  not  knowingly  in  a  place  described  in
division (B) of Ohio R.C. 2923.126.
      (6)   If a person being arrested for a violation of subsection (a)(2) of this section is knowingly
in a place described in division (B)(5) of Ohio R.C. 2923.126, and is not authorized to carry a
handgun or have a handgun concealed on the person’s person or concealed ready at hand under
that division, the penalty shall be as follows:
         A.   Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, if the person produces a valid concealed
handgun license within ten days after the arrest and has not previously been convicted or pleaded
guilty  to  a  violation  of  subsection  (a)(2)  of  this  section,  the  person  is  guilty  of  a  minor
misdemeanor;
         B.   Except  as  otherwise  provided  in  this  subsection,  if  the  person  has  previously  been
convicted of or pleaded guilty to a violation of subsection (a)(2) of this section, the person is guilty
of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree;
         C.   Except  as  otherwise  provided  in  this  subsection,  if  the  person  has  previously  been
convicted of or pleaded guilty to two violations of subsection (a)(2) of this section, the person is
guilty of a misdemeanor of the third degree;
         D.   Except  as  otherwise  provided  in  this  subsection,  if  the  person  has  previously  been
convicted of or pleaded guilty to three or more violations of subsection (a)(2) of this section, or
convicted of or pleaded guilty to any offense of violence, if the weapon involved is a firearm that
is either loaded or for which the offender has ammunition ready at hand, or if the weapon involved
is a dangerous ordnance, the person is guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree.
   (g)   If  a  law  enforcement  officer  stops  a  person  to  question  the  person  regarding  a  possible
violation of this section, for a traffic stop, or for any other law enforcement purpose, if the person
surrenders a firearm to  the officer, either voluntarily or pursuant  to a  request or demand of  the
officer, and if the officer does not charge the person with a violation of this section or arrest the
person for any offense, the person is not otherwise prohibited by law from possessing the firearm,
and  the firearm is  not  contraband,  the  officer  shall  return  the firearm to  the  person  at  the
termination of the stop. If a court orders a law enforcement officer to return a firearm to a person
pursuant to the requirement set forth in this subsection, division (B) of Ohio R.C. 2923.163 applies.
   (h)   For purposes of  this  section,  “deadly weapon” or  “weapon” does not  include any knife,
razor, or cutting instrument if the instrument was not used as a weapon.

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:



549.02 CARRYING CONCEALED WEAPONS.

(A) No person shall knowingly carry or have, concealed on the person's person or concealed
ready at hand, any of the following:

(1) A deadly weapon other than a handgun;

(2) A handgun other than a dangerous ordnance;

(3) A dangerous ordnance.

(B) No person who has been issued a concealed handgun license shall do any of the following:

(1) If the person is stopped for a law enforcement purpose and is carrying a concealed handgun,
before or at the time a law enforcement officer asks if the person is carrying a concealed
handgun, knowingly fail to disclose that the person then is carrying a concealed handgun,
provided that it is not a violation of this division if the person fails to disclose that fact to an
officer during the stop and the person already has notified another officer of that fact during the
same stop;

(2) If the person is stopped for a law enforcement purpose and is carrying a concealed handgun,
knowingly fail to keep the person's hands in plain sight at any time after any law enforcement
officer begins approaching the person while stopped and before the law enforcement officer
leaves, unless the failure is pursuant to and in accordance with directions given by a law
enforcement officer;

(3) If the person is stopped for a law enforcement purpose, if the person is carrying a concealed
handgun, and if the person is approached by any law enforcement officer while stopped,
knowingly remove or attempt to remove the loaded handgun from the holster, pocket, or other
place in which the person is carrying it, knowingly grasp or hold the loaded handgun, or
knowingly have contact with the loaded handgun by touching it with the person's hands or
fingers at any time after the law enforcement officer begins approaching and before the law
enforcement officer leaves, unless the person removes, attempts to remove, grasps, holds, or has
contact with the loaded handgun pursuant to and in accordance with directions given by the law
enforcement officer;

(4) If the person is stopped for a law enforcement purpose and is carrying a concealed handgun,
knowingly disregard or fail to comply with any lawful order of any law enforcement officer
given while the person is stopped, including, but not limited to, a specific order to the person to
keep the person's hands in plain sight.

(C)(1) This section does not apply to any of the following:

(a) An officer, agent, or employee of this or any other state or the United States, or to a law
enforcement officer, who is authorized to carry concealed weapons or dangerous ordnance or is



authorized to carry handguns and is acting within the scope of the officer's, agent's, or
employee's duties;

(b) Any person who is employed in this state, who is authorized to carry concealed weapons or
dangerous ordnance or is authorized to carry handguns, and who is subject to and in compliance
with the requirements of section 109.801 of the Revised Code, unless the appointing authority of
the person has expressly specified that the exemption provided in division (C)(1)(b) of this
section does not apply to the person;

(c) A person's transportation or storage of a firearm, other than a firearm described in divisions
(G) to (M) of section 2923.11 of the Revised Code, in a motor vehicle for any lawful purpose if
the firearm is not on the actor's person;

(d) A person's storage or possession of a firearm, other than a firearm described in divisions (G)
to (M) of section 2923.11 of the Revised Code, in the actor's own home for any lawful purpose.
(2) Division (A)(2) of this section does not apply to any person who has been issued a concealed
handgun license that is valid at the time of the alleged carrying or possession of a handgun or
who, at the time of the alleged carrying or possession of a handgun, is an active duty member of
the armed forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification card and
documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the training
requirements described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code, unless the
person knowingly is in a place described in division (B) of section 2923.126 of the Revised
Code.

(D) It is an affirmative defense to a charge under division (A)(1) of this section of carrying or
having control of a weapon other than a handgun and other than a dangerous ordnance that the
actor was not otherwise prohibited by law from having the weapon and that any of the following
applies:

(1) The weapon was carried or kept ready at hand by the actor for defensive purposes while the
actor was engaged in or was going to or from the actor's lawful business or occupation, which
business or occupation was of a character or was necessarily carried on in a manner or at a time
or place as to render the actor particularly susceptible to criminal attack, such as would justify a
prudent person in going armed.

(2) The weapon was carried or kept ready at hand by the actor for defensive purposes while the
actor was engaged in a lawful activity and had reasonable cause to fear a criminal attack upon
the actor, a member of the actor's family, or the actor's home, such as would justify a prudent
person in going armed.

(3) The weapon was carried or kept ready at hand by the actor for any lawful purpose and while
in the actor's own home.

(E)(1) No person who is charged with a violation of this section shall be required to obtain a
concealed handgun license as a condition for the dismissal of the charge.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.801
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126


(2) If a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to, or has pleaded guilty to a
violation of division (B)(1) of this section as it existed prior to June 13, 2022, the person may file
an application under section 2953.35 of the Revised Code requesting the expungement of the
record of conviction.

(F)(1) Whoever violates this section is guilty of carrying concealed weapons. Except as
otherwise provided in this division or divisions (F)(2), (6), and (7) of this section, carrying
concealed weapons in violation of division (A) of this section is a misdemeanor of the first
degree. Except as otherwise provided in this division or divisions (F)(2), (6), and (7) of this
section, if the offender previously has been convicted of a violation of this section or of any
offense of violence, if the weapon involved is a firearm that is either loaded or for which the
offender has ammunition ready at hand, or if the weapon involved is dangerous ordnance,
carrying concealed weapons in violation of division (A) of this section is a felony of the fourth
degree. Except as otherwise provided in divisions (F)(2) and (6) of this section, if the offense is
committed aboard an aircraft, or with purpose to carry a concealed weapon aboard an aircraft,
regardless of the weapon involved, carrying concealed weapons in violation of division (A) of
this section is a felony of the third degree.

(2) A person shall not be arrested for a violation of division (A)(2) of this section solely because
the person does not promptly produce a valid concealed handgun license. If a person is arrested
for a violation of division (A)(2) of this section and is convicted of or pleads guilty to the
violation, the offender shall be punished as follows:

(a) The offender shall be guilty of a minor misdemeanor if both of the following apply:

(i) Within ten days after the arrest, the offender presents a concealed handgun license, which
license was valid at the time of the arrest, to the law enforcement agency that employs the
arresting officer.

(ii) At the time of the arrest, the offender was not knowingly in a place described in division (B)
of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code.

(b) The offender shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be fined five hundred dollars if all of
the following apply:

(i) The offender previously had been issued a concealed handgun license, and that license
expired within the two years immediately preceding the arrest.

(ii) Within forty-five days after the arrest, the offender presents a concealed handgun license to
the law enforcement agency that employed the arresting officer, and the offender waives in
writing the offender's right to a speedy trial on the charge of the violation that is provided in
section 2945.71 of the Revised Code.

(iii) At the time of the commission of the offense, the offender was not knowingly in a place
described in division (B) of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2953.35
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2945.71
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126


(c) If divisions (F)(2)(a) and (b) and (F)(6) of this section do not apply, the offender shall be
punished under division (F)(1) or (7) of this section.

(3) Carrying concealed weapons in violation of division (B)(1) of this section is a misdemeanor
of the first degree.

(4) Carrying concealed weapons in violation of division (B)(2) or (4) of this section is a
misdemeanor of the first degree or, if the offender previously has been convicted of or pleaded
guilty to a violation of division (B)(2) or (4) of this section, a felony of the fifth degree. In
addition to any other penalty or sanction imposed for a misdemeanor violation of division (B)(2)
or (4) of this section, the offender's concealed handgun license shall be suspended pursuant to
division (A)(2) of section 2923.128 of the Revised Code.
(5) Carrying concealed weapons in violation of division (B)(3) of this section is a felony of the
fifth degree.

(6) If a person being arrested for a violation of division (A)(2) of this section is an active duty
member of the armed forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification
card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the
training requirements described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code, and
if at the time of the violation the person was not knowingly in a place described in division (B)
of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code, the officer shall not arrest the person for a violation of
that division. If the person is not able to promptly produce a valid military identification card and
documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the training
requirements described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code and if the
person is not in a place described in division (B) of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code, the
officer shall issue a citation and the offender shall be assessed a civil penalty of not more than
five hundred dollars. The citation shall be automatically dismissed and the civil penalty shall not
be assessed if both of the following apply:

(a) Within ten days after the issuance of the citation, the offender presents a valid military
identification card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or
exceeds the training requirements described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of the
Revised Code, which were both valid at the time of the issuance of the citation to the law
enforcement agency that employs the citing officer.

(b) At the time of the citation, the offender was not knowingly in a place described in division
(B) of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code.

(7) If a person being arrested for a violation of division (A)(2) of this section is knowingly in a
place described in division (B)(5) of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code and is not authorized
to carry a handgun or have a handgun concealed on the person's person or concealed ready at
hand under that division, the penalty shall be as follows:

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this division, if the person produces a valid concealed
handgun license within ten days after the arrest and has not previously been convicted or pleaded

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.128
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126


guilty to a violation of division (A)(2) of this section, the person is guilty of a minor
misdemeanor;

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this division, if the person has previously been convicted of
or pleaded guilty to a violation of division (A)(2) of this section, the person is guilty of a
misdemeanor of the first degree;

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this division, if the person has previously been convicted of
or pleaded guilty to two violations of division (A)(2) of this section, the person is guilty of a
misdemeanor of the first degree;

(d) Except as otherwise provided in this division, if the person has previously been convicted of
or pleaded guilty to three or more violations of division (A)(2) of this section, or convicted of or
pleaded guilty to any offense of violence, if the weapon involved is a firearm that is either loaded
or for which the offender has ammunition ready at hand, or if the weapon involved is a
dangerous ordnance, the person is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree.

(G) If a law enforcement officer stops a person to question the person regarding a possible
violation of this section, for a traffic stop, or for any other law enforcement purpose, if the person
surrenders a firearm to the officer, either voluntarily or pursuant to a request or demand of the
officer, and if the officer does not charge the person with a violation of this section or arrest the
person for any offense, the person is not otherwise prohibited by law from possessing the
firearm, and the firearm is not contraband, the officer shall return the firearm to the person at the
termination of the stop. If a court orders a law enforcement officer to return a firearm to a person
pursuant to the requirement set forth in this division, division (B) of section 2923.163 of the
Revised Code applies.

(H) For purposes of this section, "deadly weapon" or "weapon" does not include any knife, razor,
or cutting instrument if the instrument was not used as a weapon.

SECTION II. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.04 Improperly
Handling Firearms in a Motor Vehicle currently reads as follows:

549.04 IMPROPERLY HANDLING FIREARMS IN A MOTOR VEHICLE.

   (a)   No person shall knowingly transport or have a firearm in a motor vehicle, unless the person
may  lawfully  possess  that firearm under  applicable  law  of  this  state  or  the  United  States,
the firearm is unloaded, and the firearm is carried in one of the following ways:
      (1)   In a closed package, box or case;
      (2)   In a compartment which can be reached only by leaving the vehicle;
      (3)   In plain sight and secured in a rack or holder made for the purpose;
      (4)   If the firearm is at least twenty-four inches in overall length as measured from the muzzle
to the part of the stock furthest from the muzzle and if the barrel is at least eighteen inches in length,
either in plain sight with the action open or the weapon stripped, or, if the firearm is of a type on
which the action will not stay open or which cannot easily be stripped, in plain sight.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.163


   (b)   No  person who  has  been  issued  a  concealed  handgun  license,  or who  is  an  active  duty
member of the armed forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification card
and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the training
requirements described in division (G)(1) of Ohio R.C. 2923.125, who is the driver or an occupant
of a motor vehicle that is stopped as a result of a traffic stop or a stop for another law enforcement
purpose  or  is  the  driver  or  an  occupant  of  a  commercial motor  vehicle  that  is  stopped  by  an
employee of the motor carrier enforcement unit for the purposes defined in Ohio R.C. 5503.34,
and who is transporting or has a loaded handgun in the motor vehicle or commercial motor vehicle
in any manner, shall do any of the following:
      (1)   Before or at the time a law enforcement officer asks if the person is carrying a concealed
handgun, knowingly fail to disclose that the person then possesses or has a loaded handgun in the
motor vehicle, provided that it is not a violation of this division if the person fails to disclose that
fact to an officer during the stop and the person already has notified another officer of that fact
during the same stop;
   (2)   Before or at the time an employee of the motor carrier enforcement unit asks if the person
is carrying a concealed handgun, knowingly fail to disclose that the person then possesses or has
a  loaded  handgun  in  the  commercial motor  vehicle,  provided  that  it  is  not  a  violation  of  this
division if the person fails to disclose that fact to an employee of the unit during the stop and the
person already has notified another employee of the unit of that fact during the same stop;
      (3)   Knowingly fail to remain in the motor vehicle while stopped, or knowingly fail to keep
the person’s hands in plain sight at any time after any law enforcement officer begins approaching
the  person while  stopped  and  before  the  law  enforcement  officer  leaves,  unless  the  failure  is
pursuant to and in accordance with directions given by a law enforcement officer.
      (4)   Knowingly disregard or  fail  to  comply with  any  lawful order of  any  law enforcement
officer given while the motor vehicle is stopped, including, but not limited to, a specific order to
the person to keep the person’s hands in plain sight.
   (c)   (1)   This section does not apply to any of the following:
         A.   An officer, agent or employee of this or any other state or the United States, or a law
enforcement  officer,  when  authorized  to  carry  or  have  loaded  or  accessible firearms in  motor
vehicles and acting within the scope of the officer’s, agent’s or employee’s duties;
         B.   Any person who is employed in this State, who is authorized to carry or have loaded or
accessible firearms in  motor  vehicles,  and  who  is  subject  to  and  in  compliance  with  the
requirements of Ohio R.C. 109.801, unless the appointing authority of the person has expressly
specified that the exemption provided in subsection (c)(1)B. does not apply to the person.
      (2)   Subsection (a) of this section does not apply to a person who transports or possesses a
handgun in a motor vehicle if, at the time of that transportation or possession, both of the following
apply:
         A.   The person transporting or possessing the handgun has been issued a concealed handgun
license that is valid at the time in question or the person is an active duty member of the armed
forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification card and documentation
of  successful  completion  of firearms training  that  meets  or  exceeds  the  training  requirements
described in Ohio R.C. 2923.125(G)(1).
         B.   The person transporting or possessing the handgun is not knowingly in a place described
in division (B) of Ohio R.C. 2923.126.
      (3)   Subsection (a) of this section does not apply to a person if all of the following apply:



         A.   The  person  possesses  a  valid  all-purpose  vehicle  permit  issued  under  Ohio  R.C.
1533.103 by the Chief of the Division of Wildlife.
         B.   The person is on or in an all-purpose vehicle as defined in Ohio R.C. 1531.01 on private
or publicly owned lands or on or in a motor vehicle during the open hunting season for a wild
quadruped or game bird.
         C.   The person is on or in an all-purpose vehicle as defined in Ohio R.C. 1531.01 or a motor
vehicle that is parked on a road that is owned or administered by the Division of Wildlife.
   (d)   (1)   The  affirmative  defenses  authorized  in Section 549.02(d)(1)  and  (2)  are  affirmative
defenses to a charge under subsection (a) that involves a firearm other than a handgun.
      (2)   It  is  an  affirmative  defense  to  a  charge  under  subsection  (a)  of  improperly
handling firearms in  a motor  vehicle  that  the  actor  transported  or  had  the firearm in  the motor
vehicle  for  any  lawful  purpose  and while  the motor  vehicle was  on  the  actor’s  own  property,
provided  that  the  affirmative  defense  is  not  available  unless  the  person,  immediately  prior  to
arriving at the actor’s own property, did not transport or possess the firearm in a motor vehicle in
a manner prohibited by subsection  (a) while  the motor vehicle was being operated on a street,
highway, or other public or private property used by the public for vehicular traffic.
   (e)   (1)   No person who is charged with a violation of subsection (a) shall be required to obtain
a concealed handgun license as a condition for the dismissal of the charge.
      (2)   If a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to, or has pleaded guilty to a
violation of subsection (b) of this section as it existed prior to September 30, 2011, and the conduct
that was the basis of the violation no longer would be a violation of subsection (b) of this section
on or after September 30, 2011, or if a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to,
or has pleaded guilty to a violation of subsection (a) of this section as the subsection existed prior
to  June  13,  2022,  the  person may  file  an  application  under Ohio R.C.  2953.35  requesting  the
expungement of the record of conviction.
   (f)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of improperly handling firearms in a motor vehicle.
Violation of subsection (a) of this section is a misdemeanor of the fourth degree. A violation of
subsection (b)(1) or (b)(2) of this section is a misdemeanor of the second degree. A violation of
subsection  (b)(3) or  (4) of  this  section  is  a misdemeanor of  the  first  degree or,  if  the offender
previously has been convicted of or pleaded guilty to a violation of subsection (b)(3) or (4) of this
section,  a  felony and  shall be prosecuted under appropriate State  law.  In addition  to any other
penalty or sanction imposed for a misdemeanor violation of subsection (b)(3) or (4) of this section,
the  offender’s  concealed  handgun  license  shall  be  suspended  pursuant  to  Ohio  R.C.
2923.128(A)(2).
   (g)   If a law enforcement officer stops a motor vehicle for a traffic stop or any other purpose, if
any person in the motor vehicle surrenders a firearm to the officer, either voluntarily or pursuant
to a request or demand of the officer, and if the officer does not charge the person with a violation
of this section or arrest the person for any offense, the person is not otherwise prohibited by law
from  possessing  the firearm,  and  the firearm is  not  contraband,  the  officer  shall  return
the firearm to the person at the termination of the stop. If a court orders a law enforcement officer
to return a firearm to a person pursuant to the requirement set forth in this subsection, division (B)
of Ohio R.C. 2923.163 applies.
   (h)   As used in this section:
      (1)   “Commercial motor vehicle” has the same meaning as in Ohio R.C. 4506.25(A).

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lorain/latest/lorain_oh/0-0-0-10364


      (2)   “Motor  carrier  enforcement  unit”  means  the  motor  carrier  enforcement  unit  in  the
Department  of  Public  Safety,  Division  of  State Highway  Patrol,  that  is  created  by Ohio  R.C.
5503.34.
      (3)   “Motor  vehicle”,  “street”  and  “highway”  have  the  same  meanings  as  in  Ohio  R.C.
4511.01.
      (4)   A.    “Unloaded” means:
            1.   With respect to a firearm other than a firearm described in subsection (h)(4)B. of this
section, that no ammunition is in the firearm in question, no magazine or speed loader containing
ammunition is inserted into the firearm in question and one of the following applies:
               a.   There is no ammunition in a magazine or speed loader that is in the vehicle in question
and that may be used with the firearm in question.
               b.   Any magazine or speed loader that contains ammunition and that may be used with
the firearm in question is stored in a compartment within the vehicle in question that cannot be
accessed without leaving the vehicle or is stored in a container that provides complete and separate
enclosure.
            2.   For the purposes of subsection (h)(4)A.1.b. of this section, a “container that provides
complete and separate enclosure” includes, but is not limited to, any of the following:
               a.   A package, box or case with multiple compartments, as long as the loaded magazine
or speed loader and the firearm in question either are in separate compartments within the package,
box, or case, or, if they are in the same compartment, the magazine or speed loader is contained
within a separate enclosure in that compartment that does not contain the firearm and that closes
using a snap, button, buckle, zipper, hook and loop closing mechanism, or other fastener that must
be opened to access  the contents or  the firearm is contained within a separate enclosure of  that
nature in that compartment that does not contain the magazine or speed loader;
               b.   A pocket or other enclosure on the person of the person in question that closes using
a snap, button, buckle, zipper, hook and loop closing mechanism, or other fastener that must be
opened to access the contents.      
            3.   For the purposes of subsection (h)(4)A. of this section, ammunition held in stripper-
clips or  in en-bloc clips  is not considered ammunition  that  is  loaded  into a magazine or  speed
loader.
         B.   “Unloaded” means, with respect to a firearm employing a percussion cap, flintlock, or
other  obsolete  ignition  system,  when  the  weapon  is  uncapped  or  when  the  priming  charge  is
removed from the pan.
   (i)   Subsection (h)(4) of this section does not affect the authority of a person who has been issued
a concealed handgun license that is valid at the time in question to have one or more magazines or
speed  loaders  containing  ammunition  anywhere  in  a  vehicle,  without  being  transported  as
described in those divisions, so long as no ammunition is in a firearm, other than a handgun, in the
vehicle other than as permitted under any other provision of this chapter. A person who has been
issued a concealed handgun license  that  is valid at  the  time in question may have one or more
magazines  or  speed  loaders  containing  ammunition  anywhere  in  a  vehicle  without  further
restriction, as long as no ammunition is in a firearm, other than a handgun, in the vehicle other than
as permitted under any provision of this chapter.

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:



549.04 IMPROPERLY HANDLING FIREARMS IN A MOTOR VEHICLE.

(A) No person shall knowingly discharge a firearm while in or on a motor vehicle.

(B) No person shall knowingly transport or have a loaded firearm in a motor vehicle in such a
manner that the firearm is accessible to the operator or any passenger without leaving the
vehicle.

(C) No person shall knowingly transport or have a firearm in a motor vehicle, unless the person
may lawfully possess that firearm under applicable law of this state or the United States, the
firearm is unloaded, and the firearm is carried in one of the following ways:

(1) In a closed package, box, or case;

(2) In a compartment that can be reached only by leaving the vehicle;

(3) In plain sight and secured in a rack or holder made for the purpose;

(4) If the firearm is at least twenty-four inches in overall length as measured from the muzzle to
the part of the stock furthest from the muzzle and if the barrel is at least eighteen inches in
length, either in plain sight with the action open or the weapon stripped, or, if the firearm is of a
type on which the action will not stay open or which cannot easily be stripped, in plain sight.

(D) No person shall knowingly transport or have a loaded handgun in a motor vehicle if, at the
time of that transportation or possession, any of the following applies:

(1) The person is under the influence of alcohol, a drug of abuse, or a combination of them.

(2) The person's whole blood, blood serum or plasma, breath, or urine contains a concentration
of alcohol, a listed controlled substance, or a listed metabolite of a controlled substance
prohibited for persons operating a vehicle, as specified in division (A) of section 4511.19 of the
Revised Code, regardless of whether the person at the time of the transportation or possession as
described in this division is the operator of or a passenger in the motor vehicle.
(E) No person who has been issued a concealed handgun license or who is an active duty
member of the armed forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification
card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the
training requirements described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code, who
is the driver or an occupant of a motor vehicle that is stopped as a result of a traffic stop or a stop
for another law enforcement purpose or is the driver or an occupant of a commercial motor
vehicle that is stopped by an employee of the motor carrier enforcement unit for the purposes
defined in section 5503.34 of the Revised Code, and who is transporting or has a loaded handgun
in the motor vehicle or commercial motor vehicle in any manner, shall do any of the following:
(1) Before or at the time a law enforcement officer asks if the person is carrying a concealed
handgun, knowingly fail to disclose that the person then possesses or has a loaded handgun in the
motor vehicle, provided that it is not a violation of this division if the person fails to disclose that

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-4511.19
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5503.34


fact to an officer during the stop and the person already has notified another officer of that fact
during the same stop;

(2) Before or at the time an employee of the motor carrier enforcement unit asks if the person is
carrying a concealed handgun, knowingly fail to disclose that the person then possesses or has a
loaded handgun in the commercial motor vehicle, provided that it is not a violation of this
division if the person fails to disclose that fact to an employee of the unit during the stop and the
person already has notified another employee of the unit of that fact during the same stop;

(3) Knowingly fail to remain in the motor vehicle while stopped or knowingly fail to keep the
person's hands in plain sight at any time after any law enforcement officer begins approaching
the person while stopped and before the law enforcement officer leaves, unless the failure is
pursuant to and in accordance with directions given by a law enforcement officer;

(4) Knowingly have contact with the loaded handgun by touching it with the person's hands or
fingers in the motor vehicle at any time after the law enforcement officer begins approaching and
before the law enforcement officer leaves, unless the person has contact with the loaded handgun
pursuant to and in accordance with directions given by the law enforcement officer;

(5) Knowingly disregard or fail to comply with any lawful order of any law enforcement officer
given while the motor vehicle is stopped, including, but not limited to, a specific order to the
person to keep the person's hands in plain sight.

(F)(1) Divisions (A), (B), (C), and (E) of this section do not apply to any of the following:

(a) An officer, agent, or employee of this or any other state or the United States, or a law
enforcement officer, when authorized to carry or have loaded or accessible firearms in motor
vehicles and acting within the scope of the officer's, agent's, or employee's duties;

(b) Any person who is employed in this state, who is authorized to carry or have loaded or
accessible firearms in motor vehicles, and who is subject to and in compliance with the
requirements of section 109.801 of the Revised Code, unless the appointing authority of the
person has expressly specified that the exemption provided in division (F)(1)(b) of this section
does not apply to the person.
(2) Division (A) of this section does not apply to a person if all of the following circumstances
apply:

(a) The person discharges a firearm from a motor vehicle at a coyote or groundhog, the discharge
is not during the deer gun hunting season as set by the chief of the division of wildlife of the
department of natural resources, and the discharge at the coyote or groundhog, but for the
operation of this section, is lawful.

(b) The motor vehicle from which the person discharges the firearm is on real property that is
located in an unincorporated area of a township and that either is zoned for agriculture or is used
for agriculture.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.801


(c) The person owns the real property described in division (F)(2)(b) of this section, is the spouse
or a child of another person who owns that real property, is a tenant of another person who owns
that real property, or is the spouse or a child of a tenant of another person who owns that real
property.

(d) The person does not discharge the firearm in any of the following manners:

(i) While under the influence of alcohol, a drug of abuse, or alcohol and a drug of abuse;

(ii) In the direction of a street, highway, or other public or private property used by the public for
vehicular traffic or parking;

(iii) At or into an occupied structure that is a permanent or temporary habitation;

(iv) In the commission of any violation of law, including, but not limited to, a felony that
includes, as an essential element, purposely or knowingly causing or attempting to cause the
death of or physical harm to another and that was committed by discharging a firearm from a
motor vehicle.

(3) Division (A) of this section does not apply to a person if all of the following apply:

(a) The person possesses a valid all-purpose vehicle permit issued under section 1533.103 of the
Revised Code by the chief of the division of wildlife.
(b) The person discharges a firearm at a wild quadruped or game bird as defined in
section 1531.01 of the Revised Code during the open hunting season for the applicable wild
quadruped or game bird.
(c) The person discharges a firearm from a stationary all-purpose vehicle as defined in
section 1531.01 of the Revised Code from private or publicly owned lands or from a motor
vehicle that is parked on a road that is owned or administered by the division of wildlife.
(d) The person does not discharge the firearm in any of the following manners:

(i) While under the influence of alcohol, a drug of abuse, or alcohol and a drug of abuse;

(ii) In the direction of a street, a highway, or other public or private property that is used by the
public for vehicular traffic or parking;

(iii) At or into an occupied structure that is a permanent or temporary habitation;

(iv) In the commission of any violation of law, including, but not limited to, a felony that
includes, as an essential element, purposely or knowingly causing or attempting to cause the
death of or physical harm to another and that was committed by discharging a firearm from a
motor vehicle.

(4) Divisions (B) and (C) of this section do not apply to a person if all of the following
circumstances apply:

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1533.103
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1531.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1531.01


(a) At the time of the alleged violation of either of those divisions, the person is the operator of
or a passenger in a motor vehicle.

(b) The motor vehicle is on real property that is located in an unincorporated area of a township
and that either is zoned for agriculture or is used for agriculture.

(c) The person owns the real property described in division (F)(4)(b) of this section, is the spouse
or a child of another person who owns that real property, is a tenant of another person who owns
that real property, or is the spouse or a child of a tenant of another person who owns that real
property.

(d) The person, prior to arriving at the real property described in division (F)(4)(b) of this
section, did not transport or possess a firearm in the motor vehicle in a manner prohibited by
division (B) or (C) of this section while the motor vehicle was being operated on a street,
highway, or other public or private property used by the public for vehicular traffic or parking.

(5) Divisions (B) and (C) of this section do not apply to a person who transports or possesses a
handgun in a motor vehicle if, at the time of that transportation or possession, both of the
following apply:

(a) The person transporting or possessing the handgun has been issued a concealed handgun
license that is valid at the time in question or the person is an active duty member of the armed
forces of the United States and is carrying a valid military identification card and documentation
of successful completion of firearms training that meets or exceeds the training requirements
described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of the Revised Code.
(b) The person transporting or possessing the handgun is not knowingly in a place described in
division (B) of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code.
(6) Divisions (B) and (C) of this section do not apply to a person if all of the following apply:

(a) The person possesses a valid all-purpose vehicle permit issued under section 1533.103 of the
Revised Code by the chief of the division of wildlife.

(b) The person is on or in an all-purpose vehicle as defined in section 1531.01 of the Revised
Code or a motor vehicle during the open hunting season for a wild quadruped or game bird.

(c) The person is on or in an all-purpose vehicle as defined in section 1531.01 of the Revised
Code on private or publicly owned lands or on or in a motor vehicle that is parked on a road that
is owned or administered by the division of wildlife.

(7) Nothing in this section prohibits or restricts a person from possessing, storing, or leaving a
firearm in a locked motor vehicle that is parked in the state underground parking garage at the
state capitol building or in the parking garage at the Riffe center for government and the arts in
Columbus, if the person's transportation and possession of the firearm in the motor vehicle while
traveling to the premises or facility was not in violation of division (A), (B), (C), (D), or (E) of
this section or any other provision of the Revised Code.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1533.103
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1531.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1531.01


(G)(1) The affirmative defenses authorized in divisions (D)(1) and (2) of section 2923.12 of the
Revised Code are affirmative defenses to a charge under division (B) or (C) of this section that
involves a firearm other than a handgun.

(2) It is an affirmative defense to a charge under division (B) or (C) of this section of improperly
handling firearms in a motor vehicle that the actor transported or had the firearm in the motor
vehicle for any lawful purpose and while the motor vehicle was on the actor's own property,
provided that this affirmative defense is not available unless the person, immediately prior to
arriving at the actor's own property, did not transport or possess the firearm in a motor vehicle in
a manner prohibited by division (B) or (C) of this section while the motor vehicle was being
operated on a street, highway, or other public or private property used by the public for vehicular
traffic.

(H)(1) No person who is charged with a violation of division (B), (C), or (D) of this section shall
be required to obtain a concealed handgun license as a condition for the dismissal of the charge.

(2)(a) If a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to, or has pleaded guilty to a
violation of division (E) of this section as it existed prior to September 30, 2011, and the conduct
that was the basis of the violation no longer would be a violation of division (E) of this section
on or after September 30, 2011, or if a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to,
or has pleaded guilty to a violation of division (E)(1) or (2) of this section as it existed prior to
June 13, 2022, the person may file an application under section 2953.35 of the Revised Code
requesting the expungement of the record of conviction.
If a person is convicted of, was convicted of, pleads guilty to, or has pleaded guilty to a violation
of division (B) or (C) of this section as the division existed prior to September 30, 2011, and if
the conduct that was the basis of the violation no longer would be a violation of division (B) or
(C) of this section on or after September 30, 2011, due to the application of division (F)(5) of this
section as it exists on and after September 30, 2011, the person may file an application under
section 2953.35 of the Revised Code requesting the expungement of the record of conviction.
(b) The attorney general shall develop a public media advisory that summarizes the expungement
procedure established under section 2953.35 of the Revised Code and the offenders identified in
division (H)(2)(a) of this section and those identified in division (E)(2) of section 2923.12 of the
Revised Code who are authorized to apply for the expungement. Within thirty days after
September 30, 2011, with respect to violations of division (B), (C), or (E) of this section as they
existed prior to that date, and within thirty days after June 13, 2022, with respect to a violation of
division (E)(1) or (2) of this section or division (B)(1) of section 2923.12 of the Revised Code as
they existed prior to June 13, 2022, the attorney general shall provide a copy of the advisory to
each daily newspaper published in this state and each television station that broadcasts in this
state. The attorney general may provide the advisory in a tangible form, an electronic form, or in
both tangible and electronic forms.

(I) Whoever violates this section is guilty of improperly handling firearms in a motor vehicle. A
violation of division (A) of this section is a felony of the fourth degree. A violation of division
(C) of this section is a misdemeanor of the first degree. A violation of division (D) of this section
is a felony of the fifth degree or, if the loaded handgun is concealed on the person's person, a
felony of the fourth degree. A violation of division (E)(1) or (2) of this section is a misdemeanor

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.12
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2953.35
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2953.35
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2953.35
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.12
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.12


of the first degree. A violation of division (E)(4) of this section is a felony of the fifth degree. A
violation of division (E)(3) or (5) of this section is a misdemeanor of the first degree or, if the
offender previously has been convicted of or pleaded guilty to a violation of division (E)(3) or
(5) of this section, a felony of the fifth degree. In addition to any other penalty or sanction
imposed for a misdemeanor violation of division (E)(3) or (5) of this section, the offender's
concealed handgun license shall be suspended pursuant to division (A)(2) of section 2923.128 of
the Revised Code. A violation of division (B) of this section is a felony of the fourth degree.

(J) If a law enforcement officer stops a motor vehicle for a traffic stop or any other purpose, if
any person in the motor vehicle surrenders a firearm to the officer, either voluntarily or pursuant
to a request or demand of the officer, and if the officer does not charge the person with a
violation of this section or arrest the person for any offense, the person is not otherwise
prohibited by law from possessing the firearm, and the firearm is not contraband, the officer shall
return the firearm to the person at the termination of the stop. If a court orders a law enforcement
officer to return a firearm to a person pursuant to the requirement set forth in this division,
division (B) of section 2923.163 of the Revised Code applies.

(K) As used in this section:

(1) "Motor vehicle," "street," and "highway" have the same meanings as in section 4511.01 of
the Revised Code.

(2) "Occupied structure" has the same meaning as in section 2909.01 of the Revised Code.

(3) "Agriculture" has the same meaning as in section 519.01 of the Revised Code.

(4) "Tenant" has the same meaning as in section 1531.01 of the Revised Code.

(5)(a) "Unloaded" means, with respect to a firearm other than a firearm described in division
(K)(6) of this section, that no ammunition is in the firearm in question, no magazine or speed
loader containing ammunition is inserted into the firearm in question, and one of the following
applies:

(i) There is no ammunition in a magazine or speed loader that is in the vehicle in question and
that may be used with the firearm in question.

(ii) Any magazine or speed loader that contains ammunition and that may be used with the
firearm in question is stored in a compartment within the vehicle in question that cannot be
accessed without leaving the vehicle or is stored in a container that provides complete and
separate enclosure.

(b) For the purposes of division (K)(5)(a)(ii) of this section, a "container that provides complete
and separate enclosure" includes, but is not limited to, any of the following:

(i) A package, box, or case with multiple compartments, as long as the loaded magazine or speed
loader and the firearm in question either are in separate compartments within the package, box,

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.128
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.163
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-4511.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2909.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-519.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-1531.01


or case, or, if they are in the same compartment, the magazine or speed loader is contained
within a separate enclosure in that compartment that does not contain the firearm and that closes
using a snap, button, buckle, zipper, hook and loop closing mechanism, or other fastener that
must be opened to access the contents or the firearm is contained within a separate enclosure of
that nature in that compartment that does not contain the magazine or speed loader;

(ii) A pocket or other enclosure on the person of the person in question that closes using a snap,
button, buckle, zipper, hook and loop closing mechanism, or other fastener that must be opened
to access the contents.

(c) For the purposes of divisions (K)(5)(a) and (b) of this section, ammunition held in stripper-
clips or in en-bloc clips is not considered ammunition that is loaded into a magazine or speed
loader.

(6) "Unloaded" means, with respect to a firearm employing a percussion cap, flintlock, or other
obsolete ignition system, when the weapon is uncapped or when the priming charge is removed
from the pan.

(7) "Commercial motor vehicle" has the same meaning as in division (A) of section 4506.25 of
the Revised Code.

(8) "Motor carrier enforcement unit" means the motor carrier enforcement unit in the department
of public safety, division of state highway patrol, that is created by section 5503.34 of the
Revised Code.

(L) Divisions (K)(5)(a) and (b) of this section do not affect the authority of a person who has
been issued a concealed handgun license that is valid at the time in question to have one or more
magazines or speed loaders containing ammunition anywhere in a vehicle, without being
transported as described in those divisions, as long as no ammunition is in a firearm, other than a
handgun, in the vehicle other than as permitted under any other provision of this chapter. A
person who has been issued a concealed handgun license that is valid at the time in question may
have one or more magazines or speed loaders containing ammunition anywhere in a vehicle
without further restriction, as long as no ammunition is in a firearm, other than a handgun, in the
vehicle other than as permitted under any provision of this chapter.

SECTION III. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.05 Failure to
Secure Dangerous Ordnance currently reads as follows:

549.05 FAILURE TO SECURE DANGEROUS ORDNANCE.

   (a)   No  person,  in  acquiring,  possessing,  carrying  or  using  any  dangerous  ordnance  shall
negligently fail to take proper precautions:

(1) To  secure  the  dangerous  ordnance  against  theft,  or  against  its  acquisition  or  use  by  any
unauthorized or incompetent person;

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-4506.25
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5503.34


(2) To insure the safety of persons and property.

   (b)   Whoever  violates  this  section  is  guilty  of  failure  to  secure  dangerous  ordnance,  a
misdemeanor of the second degree.

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

549.05 FAILURE TO SECURE DANGEROUS ORDNANCE.

(A) No person, in acquiring, possessing, carrying, or using any dangerous ordnance, shall
negligently fail to take proper precautions:

(1) To secure the dangerous ordnance against theft, or against its acquisition or use by any
unauthorized or incompetent person;

(2) To insure the safety of persons and property.

(B) Whoever violates this section is guilty of failure to secure dangerous ordnance, a
misdemeanor of the first degree.

SECTION IV. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.06 Unlawful
Transactions in Weapons currently reads as follows:

549.06 UNLAWFUL TRANSACTIONS IN WEAPONS.

(a) No person shall do any of the following:

(1) When transferring any dangerous ordnance to another, negligently fail to require the transferee to
exhibit such identification, license or permit showing the transferee to be authorized to acquire
dangerous ordnance pursuant to Ohio R.C. 2923.17, or negligently fail to take a complete record
of the transaction and forthwith forward a copy of such record to the sheriff of the county or safety
director or police chief of the municipality where the transaction takes place;

(2) Knowingly fail to report to law enforcement authorities forthwith the loss or theft of any firearm or
dangerous ordnance in the person's possession or under the person’s control.

   (b)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of unlawful transactions in weapons. A violation of
subsection (a)(1) hereof is a misdemeanor of the second degree. A violation of subsection (a)(2)
hereof is a misdemeanor of the fourth degree

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

549.06 UNLAWFUL TRANSACTIONS IN WEAPONS.

(A) No person shall do any of the following:



(1) Recklessly sell, lend, give, or furnish any firearm to any person prohibited by
section 2923.13 or 2923.15 of the Revised Code from acquiring or using any firearm, or recklessly sell,
lend, give, or furnish any dangerous ordnance to any person prohibited by section 2923.13, 2923.15,
or 2923.17 of the Revised Code from acquiring or using any dangerous ordnance;

(2) Possess any firearm or dangerous ordnance with purpose to dispose of it in violation of division (A) of
this section;

(3) Except as otherwise provided in division (B) of this section, knowingly solicit, persuade, encourage,
or entice a federally licensed firearms dealer or private seller to transfer a firearm or ammunition to any
person in a manner prohibited by state or federal law;

(4) Except as otherwise provided in division (B) of this section, with an intent to deceive, knowingly
provide materially false information to a federally licensed firearms dealer or private seller;

(5) Except as otherwise provided in division (B) of this section, knowingly procure, solicit, persuade,
encourage, or entice a person to act in violation of division (A)(3) or (4) of this section;

(6) When transferring any dangerous ordnance to another, negligently fail to require the transferee to
exhibit such identification, license, or permit showing the transferee to be authorized to acquire dangerous
ordnance pursuant to section 2923.17 of the Revised Code, or negligently fail to take a complete record of
the transaction and forthwith forward a copy of that record to the sheriff of the county or safety director or
police chief of the municipality where the transaction takes place;

(7) Knowingly fail to report to law enforcement authorities forthwith the loss or theft of any firearm or
dangerous ordnance in the person's possession or under the person's control.

(B) Divisions (A)(3), (4), and (5) of this section do not apply to any of the following:

(1) A law enforcement officer who is acting within the scope of the officer's duties;

(2) A person who is acting in accordance with directions given by a law enforcement officer described in
division (B)(1) of this section.

(C) Whoever violates this section is guilty of unlawful transactions in weapons. A violation of division
(A)(1) or (2) of this section is a felony of the fourth degree. A violation of division (A)(3), (4), or (5) of
this section is a felony of the third degree. A violation of division (A)(6) of this section is a misdemeanor
of the first degree. A violation of division (A)(7) of this section is a misdemeanor of the first degree.

(D) As used in this section:

(1) "Ammunition" has the same meaning as in section 2305.401 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Federally licensed firearms dealer" has the same meaning as in section 5502.63 of the Revised Code.
(3) "Materially false information" means information regarding the transfer of a firearm or ammunition
that portrays an illegal transaction as legal or a legal transaction as illegal.

(4) "Private seller" means a person who sells, offers for sale, or transfers a firearm or ammunition and
who is not a federally licensed firearms dealer.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.13
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.15
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.13
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.15
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.17
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.17
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2305.401
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5502.63


SECTION V. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.07 Underage
Purchase of Firearm currently reads as follows:

549.07 UNDERAGE PURCHASE OF FIREARM.

(a) No person under eighteen years of age shall purchase or attempt to purchase a firearm.

(b) No person under twenty-one years of age shall purchase or attempt to purchase a handgun, provided
that this subsection does not apply to the purchase or attempted purchase of a handgun by a person
eighteen years of age or older and under twenty-one years of age if either of the following apply:

(1) The person is a law enforcement officer who is properly appointed or employed as a law enforcement
officer and has  received firearms training approved by  the Ohio Peace Officer Training Council or
equivalent firearms training.

(2) The person  is an active or  reserve member of  the armed services of  the United States or  the Ohio
national  guard,  or was  honorably  discharged  from military  service  in  the  active  or  reserve  armed
services of the United States or the Ohio national guard, and the person has received firearms training
from the armed services or the national guard or equivalent firearms training.

   (c)   Whoever violates subsection (a) hereof is guilty of underage purchase of a firearm, a delinquent act that
would  be  a  felony  of  the  fourth  degree  if  it  could  be  committed  by  an  adult. Whoever  violates
subsection (b) hereof is guilty of underage purchase of a handgun, a misdemeanor of the second degree

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

549.07 UNDERAGE PURCHASE OF FIREARM.

(A) No person under eighteen years of age shall purchase or attempt to purchase a firearm.

(B) No person under twenty-one years of age shall purchase or attempt to purchase a handgun, provided
that this division does not apply to the purchase or attempted purchase of a handgun by a person eighteen
years of age or older and under twenty-one years of age if either of the following apply:

(1) The person is a law enforcement officer who is properly appointed or employed as a law enforcement
officer and has received firearms training approved by the Ohio peace officer training council or
equivalent firearms training.

(2) The person is an active or reserve member of the armed services of the United States or the Ohio
national guard, or was honorably discharged from military service in the active or reserve armed services
of the United States or the Ohio national guard, and the person has received firearms training from the
armed services or the national guard or equivalent firearms training.

(C) Whoever violates division (A) of this section is guilty of underage purchase of a firearm, a delinquent
act that would be a felony of the fourth degree if it could be committed by an adult. Whoever violates



division (B) of this section is guilty of underage purchase of a handgun, a misdemeanor of the first
degree.

SECTION VI. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.09 Carrying
Certain Weapons Prohibited currently reads as follows:

549.09 CARRYING CERTAIN WEAPONS PROHIBITED.

(a) No person shall carry on or about his person any weapon known or designated as brass knuckles,
billy, slingshot, sandbag, blackjack or other weapon of similar character, or any knife fitted with a
mechanical device for automatic release of the blade, opening the knife and locking the knife in the
open position, commonly known as a switch or automatic spring knife.

(b) This section does not apply to any such weapons designated for use by officers of the law.

   (c)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree.

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

549.09 CARRYING CERTAIN WEAPONS PROHIBITED.

(a) No person shall carry on or about his person any weapon known or designated as brass knuckles,
billy, slingshot, sandbag, blackjack or other weapon of similar character, or any knife fitted with a
mechanical device for automatic release of the blade, opening the knife and locking the knife in the
open position, commonly known as a switch or automatic spring knife.

(b) This section does not apply to any such weapons designated for use by officers of the law.

   (c)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree.

SECTION VII. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.10 Slingshot,
bow and Arrow or Air Gun currently reads as follows:

549. SLINGSHOT, BOW AND ARROW OR AIR GUN.

(a) No person shall maliciously or recklessly, by hand or by means of a slingshot, bow, air gun or other
similar device, throw, shoot, cast or sling any stone, arrow, pellet or other similar missile.

(b) A longbow and arrow or crossbow may be used if the bow and arrow or crossbow is used within
the regulations set forth by the Ohio Division of Wildlife and rules and regulations established by
the Chief of Police.

(c) Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the third degree.

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

549. SLINGSHOT, BOW AND ARROW OR AIR GUN.



(d) No person shall maliciously or recklessly, by hand or by means of a slingshot, bow, air gun or other
similar device, throw, shoot, cast or sling any stone, arrow, pellet or other similar missile.

(e) A longbow and arrow or crossbow may be used if the bow and arrow or crossbow is used within
the regulations set forth by the Ohio Division of Wildlife and rules and regulations established by
the Chief of Police.

   (c)    Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree.

SECTION VIII. That Part 5, Chapter 549 Weapons and Explosives, Section 549.16 Concealed
Handgun licenses; Possession of Revoked or Suspended License; Additional Restrictions;
Posting Signs Prohibiting Possession currently reads as follows:

549.16 CONCEALED HANDGUN LICENSES; POSSESSION OF REVOKED OR
SUSPENDED LICENSE; ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS; POSTING SIGNS
PROHIBITING POSSESSION.

   (a)   Possession of a Revoked or Suspended Concealed Handgun License.
      (1)   No person, except in the performance of official duties, shall possess a concealed handgun
license that was issued and that has been revoked or suspended.
      (2)   Whoever  violates  this  subsection  (a)  is  guilty  of  possessing  a  revoked  or  suspended
concealed handgun license, a misdemeanor of the third degree.
         (ORC 2923.1211(B), (C))
   (b)   Additional Restrictions. Pursuant to Ohio R.C. 2923.126:
      (1)   A concealed handgun license that is issued under Ohio R.C. 2923.125 shall expire five
years after the date of issuance. A licensee who has been issued a license under that section shall
be  granted  a  grace  period  of  thirty  days  after  the  licensee’s  license  expires  during  which  the
licensee’s license remains valid. Except as provided in subsection (b)(2) and (b)(3) of this section,
a  licensee  who  has  been  issued  a  concealed  handgun  license  under  Ohio  R.C.  2923.125  or
2923.1213 may carry a concealed handgun anywhere in this state if the license is valid when the
licensee  is  in  actual  possession of  a  concealed handgun. The  licensee  shall  give notice of  any
change in the licensee’s residence address to the sheriff who issued the license within forty-five
days after that change.
      (2)   A valid concealed handgun license does not authorize the licensee to carry a concealed
handgun in any manner prohibited under Ohio R.C. 2923.12(B) or in any manner prohibited under
Ohio R.C. 2923.16. A valid license does not authorize the licensee to carry a concealed handgun
into any of the following places:
         A.   A police station, sheriff's office, or state highway patrol station, premises controlled by
the  bureau  of  criminal  identification  and  investigation;  a  state  correctional  institution,  jail,
workhouse, or other detention facility; any area of an airport passenger terminal that is beyond a
passenger  or  property  screening  checkpoint  or  to  which  access  is  restricted  through  security
measures by the airport authority or a public agency; or an institution that is maintained, operated,
managed, and governed pursuant to Ohio R.C. 5119.14(A) or Ohio R.C. 5123.03(A)(1);
         B.   A school safety zone if the licensee's carrying the concealed handgun is in violation of
Ohio R.C. 2923.122;
         C.   A  courthouse  or  another  building  or  structure  in which  a  courtroom  is  located  if  the
licensee's carrying the concealed handgun is in violation of Ohio R.C. 2923.123;



         D.   Any premises or open air arena for which a D permit has been issued under Ohio R.C.
Chapter  4303  if  the  licensee's  carrying  the  concealed  handgun  is  in  violation  of  Ohio  R.C.
2923.121;
         E.   Any  premises  owned  or  leased  by  any  public  or  private  college,  university,  or  other
institution of higher education, unless the handgun is in a locked motor vehicle or the licensee is
in the immediate process of placing the handgun in a locked motor vehicle or unless the licensee
is carrying the concealed handgun pursuant to a written policy, rule, or other authorization that is
adopted by the institution's board of trustees or other governing body and that authorizes specific
individuals or classes of individuals to carry a concealed handgun on the premises;
         F.   Any  church,  synagogue,  mosque,  or  other  place  of  worship,  unless  the  church,
synagogue, mosque, or other place of worship posts or permits otherwise;
         G.   Any building that is a government facility of this state or a political subdivision of this
state and that  is not a building that  is used primarily as a shelter, restroom, parking facility for
motor vehicles, or rest facility and is not a courthouse or other building or structure in which a
courtroom is located that is subject to subsection (b)(2)C. of this section, unless the governing body
with authority over the building has enacted a statute, ordinance, or policy that permits a licensee
to carry a concealed handgun into the building;
         H.   A place in which federal law prohibits the carrying of handguns.
      (3)   A.   Nothing in this subsection (b) shall negate or restrict a rule, policy, or practice of a
private employer that is not a private college, university, or other institution of higher education
concerning or prohibiting the presence of firearms on the private employer's premises or property,
including motor  vehicles  owned  by  the  private  employer. Nothing  in  this  subsection  (b)  shall
require  a  private  employer  of  that  nature  to  adopt  a  rule,  policy,  or  practice  concerning  or
prohibiting  the  presence  of firearms on  the  private  employer's  premises  or  property,  including
motor vehicles owned by the private employer.
         B.   1.   A private employer shall be immune from liability in a civil action for any injury,
death, or loss to person or property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee bringing a
handgun onto the premises or property of the private employer, including motor vehicles owned
by  the  private  employer,  unless  the  private  employer  acted with malicious  purpose. A  private
employer  is  immune  from  liability  in  a  civil  action  for  any  injury,  death,  or  loss  to  person  or
property  that allegedly was caused by or  related  to  the private employer's decision  to permit a
licensee to bring, or prohibit a licensee from bringing, a handgun onto the premises or property of
the private employer.
            2.   A political subdivision shall be immune from liability in a civil action, to the extent and
in  the manner provided  in Ohio R.C. Chapter 2744,  for any  injury, death, or  loss  to person or
property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee bringing a handgun onto any premises
or property owned, leased, or otherwise under the control of the political subdivision. As used in
this division, "political subdivision" has the same meaning as in Ohio R.C. 2744.01.
            3.   An institution of higher education shall be immune from liability in a civil action for
any injury, death, or loss to person or property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee
bringing a handgun onto the premises of the institution, including motor vehicles owned by the
institution, unless the institution acted with malicious purpose. An institution of higher education
is immune from liability in a civil action for any injury, death, or loss to person or property that
allegedly was caused by or  related  to  the  institution's decision  to permit  a  licensee or  class of
licensees to bring a handgun onto the premises of the institution.



         C.   1.   a.   Except  as  provided  in  subsection  (b)(3)C.2.  of  this  section  and  Ohio  R.C.
2923.1214, the owner or person in control of private land or premises, and a private person or entity
leasing land or premises owned by the state, the United States, or a political subdivision of the state
or the United States, may post a sign in a conspicuous location on that land or on those premises
prohibiting  persons  from  carrying firearms or  concealed firearms on  or  onto  that  land  or  those
premises. Except as otherwise provided in this division, a person who knowingly violates a posted
prohibition of that nature is guilty of criminal trespass in violation of Ohio R.C. 2911.21(A)(4) and
is guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree. If a person knowingly violates a posted prohibition
of that nature and the posted land or premises primarily was a parking lot or other parking facility,
the person is not guilty of criminal trespass under Ohio R.C. 2911.21 or under any other criminal
law of this State or criminal law, ordinance, or resolution of a political subdivision of this State,
and instead is subject only to a civil cause of action for trespass based on the violation.
               b.   If a person knowingly violates a posted prohibition of  the nature described in  this
subsection and the posted land or premises is a child care center, type A family child care home,
or type B family child care home, unless the person is a licensee who resides in a type A family
child care home or type B family child care home, the person is guilty of aggravated trespass in
violation of Ohio R.C. 2911.211. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the offender is
guilty  of  a misdemeanor  of  the  first  degree.  If  the  person  previously  has  been  convicted  of  a
violation of this subsection or any substantially equivalent state law or municipal ordinance, or of
any offense of violence, if the weapon involved is a firearm that is either loaded or for which the
offender has  ammunition  ready at hand, or  if  the weapon  involved  is dangerous ordnance,  the
offender is guilty of a felony to be prosecuted under appropriate state law.
            2.   A landlord may not prohibit or restrict a tenant who is a licensee and who on or after
September  9,  2008  enters  into  a  rental  agreement with  the  landlord  for  the  use  of  residential
premises, and the tenant's guest while the tenant is present, from lawfully carrying or possessing a
handgun on those residential premises.
            3.   As used in subsection (b)(3)C. of this section:
               a.   "Residential  premises"  has  the  same  meaning  as  in  Ohio  R.C.  5321.01,  except
"residential premises" does not include a dwelling unit that is owned or operated by a college or
university.
               b.   "Landlord", "tenant", and "rental agreement" have the same meanings as in Ohio R.C.
5321.01.
      (4)   A person who holds  a valid  concealed handgun  license  issued by  another  state  that  is
recognized by the Attorney General pursuant to a reciprocity agreement entered into pursuant to
Ohio  R.C.  109.69  or  a  person  who  holds  a  valid  concealed  handgun  license  under  the
circumstances described in Ohio R.C. 109.69(B) has the same right to carry a concealed handgun
in this state as a person who was issued a concealed handgun license under Ohio R.C. 2923.125
and is subject to the same restrictions that apply to a person who has been issued a license under
that section that is valid at the time in question.
      (5)   A.   A peace officer has  the same right  to carry a concealed handgun  in  this State as a
person who was issued a concealed handgun license under Ohio R.C. 2923.125, provided that the
officer when carrying a concealed handgun under authority of this section is carrying validating
identification. For purposes of reciprocity with other States, a peace officer shall be considered to
be a licensee in this State.
         B.   An active duty member of the armed forces of the United States who is carrying a valid
military identification card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that



meets or exceeds the training requirements described in Ohio R.C. 2923.125(G)(1) has the same
right to carry a concealed handgun in this state as a person who was issued a concealed handgun
license  under  Ohio  R.C.  2923.125  and  is  subject  to  the  same  restrictions  as  specified  in  this
subsection (b).
         C.   A tactical medical professional who is qualified to carry firearms while on duty under
Ohio R.C. 109.771 has the same right to carry a concealed handgun in this state as a person who
was issued a concealed handgun license under Ohio R.C. 2923.125.
      (6)   A.   A qualified retired peace officer who possesses a retired peace officer identification
card  issued  pursuant  to  subsection  (b)(6)B.  of  this  section  and  a  valid firearms requalification
certification issued pursuant  to subsection (b)(6)C. of  this section has the same right  to carry a
concealed handgun in this state as a person who was issued a concealed handgun license under
Ohio R.C. 2923.125 and is subject to the same restrictions that apply to a person who has been
issued a  license  issued under  that  section  that  is valid at  the  time  in question. For purposes of
reciprocity with other states, a qualified retired peace officer who possesses a retired peace officer
identification  card  issued  pursuant  to  subsection  (b)(6)B.  of  this  section  and  a
valid firearms requalification certification  issued pursuant  to subsection  (b)(6)C. of  this  section
shall be considered to be a licensee in this state.
         B.   1.   Each public  agency of  this State or of  a political  subdivision of  this State  that  is
served by one or more peace officers shall issue a retired peace officer identification card to any
person who retired from service as a peace officer with that agency, if the issuance is in accordance
with the agency's policies and procedures and if the person, with respect to the person's service
with that agency, satisfies all of the following:
               a.   The person retired in good standing from service as a peace officer with the public
agency, and the retirement was not for reasons of mental instability.
               b.   Before  retiring  from  service  as  a  peace  officer  with  that  agency,  the  person  was
authorized to engage in or supervise the prevention, detection, investigation, or prosecution of, or
the incarceration of any person for, any violation of law and the person had statutory powers of
arrest.
               c.   At the time of the person's retirement as a peace officer with that agency, the person
was trained and qualified to carry firearms in the performance of the peace officer's duties.
               d.   Before  retiring  from  service  as  a  peace  officer  with  that  agency,  the  person  was
regularly employed as a peace officer for an aggregate of 15 years or more, or, in the alternative,
the person retired from service as a peace officer with that agency, after completing any applicable
probationary period of  that service, due  to a service-connected disability, as determined by  the
agency.
            2.   A retired peace officer identification card issued to a person under subsection (b)(6)B.1.
of this section shall identify the person by name, contain a photograph of the person, identify the
public agency of this state or of the political subdivision of this State from which the person retired
as a peace officer and that is issuing the identification card, and specify that the person retired in
good  standing  from  service  as  a  peace officer with  the  issuing public  agency  and  satisfies  the
criteria  set  forth  in  subsections  (b)(6)B.1.a.  to  (b)(6)B.1.d.  of  this  section.  In  addition  to  the
required content specified in this subsection, a retired peace officer identification card issued to a
person  under  subsection  (b)(6)B.1.  of  this  section  may  include  the firearms requalification
certification described in subsection (b)(6)C. of this section, and if the identification card includes
that certification, the identification card shall serve as the firearms requalification certification for
the retired peace officer. If the issuing public agency issues credentials to active law enforcement



officers who serve the agency, the agency may comply with subsection (b)(6)B.1. of this section
by issuing the same credentials  to persons who retired from service as a peace officer with the
agency  and  who  satisfy  the  criteria  set  forth  in  subsection  (b)(6)B.1.a.  to  (b)(6)B.1.d.  of  this
section, provided that the credentials so issued to retired peace officers are stamped with the word
"RETIRED".
            3.   A  public  agency  of  this  state  or  of  a  political  subdivision  of  this  State may  charge
persons who retired from service as a peace officer with the agency a reasonable fee for issuing to
the  person  a  retired  peace  officer  identification  card  pursuant  to  subsection  (b)(6)B.1.  of  this
section.
         C.   1.   If a person retired from service as a peace officer with a public agency of this state
or of a political subdivision of this state and the person satisfies the criteria set forth in subsections
(b)(6)B.1.a. to (b)(6)B.1.d. of this section, the public agency may provide the retired peace officer
with  the opportunity  to attend a firearms requalification program  that  is  approved  for purposes
of firearms requalification required under Ohio R.C. 109.801. The retired peace officer may be
required to pay the cost of the course.
            2.   If a retired peace officer who satisfies the criteria set forth in subsections (b)(6)B.1.a.
to  (b)(6)B.1.d.  of  this  section  attends  a firearms requalification  program  that  is  approved  for
purposes of firearms requalification required under Ohio R.C. 109.801, the retired peace officer's
successful completion of the firearms requalification program requalifies the retired peace officer
for purposes of subsection (b)(6) of this section for five years from the date on which the program
was successfully completed, and the requalification is valid during that five-year period. If a retired
peace officer who satisfies the criteria set forth in subsections (b)(6)B.1.a. to (b)(6)B.1.d. of this
section satisfactorily completes such a firearms requalification program, the retired peace officer
shall be issued a firearms requalification certification that  identifies  the retired peace officer by
name,  identifies  the  entity  that  taught  the  program,  specifies  that  the  retired  peace  officer
successfully  completed  the  program,  specifies  the  date  on  which  the  course  was  successfully
completed,  and  specifies  that  the  requalification  is  valid  for  five  years  year  from  that  date  of
successful completion. The firearms requalification certification for a retired peace officer may be
included in the retired peace officer identification card issued to the retired peace officer under
subsection (b)(6)B. of this section.
            3.   A retired peace officer who attends a firearms requalification program that is approved
for purposes of firearms requalification required under Ohio R.C. 109.801 may be required to pay
the cost of the program.
      (7)   As used in subsection (b)(6) of this section:
         A.   "Governing body." Has the same meaning as in Ohio R.C. 154.01.
         B.   "Government facility of this State or a political subdivision of this State" means any of
the following:
            1.   A building or part of a building that is owned or leased by the government of this State
or a political subdivision of this State and where employees of the government of this State or the
political subdivision regularly are present  for  the purpose of performing  their official duties as
employees of the State or political subdivision;
            2.   The office of a deputy registrar serving pursuant to Ohio R.C. Chapter 4503 that is used
to perform deputy registrar functions.
         C.   "Qualified retired peace officer" means a person who satisfies all of the following:
            1.   The person satisfies the criteria set forth in subsections (b)(6)B.1.a. to (b)(6)B.1.d. of
this section.



            2.   The person is not under the influence of alcohol or another intoxicating or hallucinatory
drug or substance.
            3.   The person is not prohibited by Federal law from receiving firearms.
         D.   "Retired peace officer  identification  card" means  an  identification  card  that  is  issued
pursuant to subsection (b)(6)B. of this section to a person who is a retired peace officer.
         E.   "Tactical medical professional." Has the same meaning as in Ohio R.C. 109.71.
         F.   "Validating identification." Means photographic identification issued by the agency for
which an individual serves as a peace officer that identifies the individual as a peace officer of the
agency.
            (ORC 2923.126)
   (c)   Posting of Signs Prohibiting Possession. Each person, board, or entity that owns or controls
any place or premises identified in Ohio R.C. 2923.126(B) as a place into which a valid license
does not authorize the licensee to carry a concealed handgun, or a designee of such a person, board,
or entity, shall post in the following one or more conspicuous locations in the premises a sign that
contains a  statement  in  substantially  the  following  form:  "Unless otherwise authorized by  law,
pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code, no person shall knowingly possess, have under the person's
control, convey, or attempt to convey a deadly weapon or dangerous ordnance onto these premises.
(ORC 2923.1212)   

SHALL NOW BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

549.16 CONCEALED HANDGUN LICENSES; POSSESSION OF REVOKED OR
SUSPENDED LICENSE; ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS; POSTING SIGNS
PROHIBITING POSSESSION.

(a)   Possession of a Revoked or Suspended Concealed Handgun License.

(1) No person, except in the performance of official duties, shall possess a concealed handgun
license that was issued and that has been revoked or suspended.

(2) Whoever violates subsection (a) of this section is guilty of possessing a revoked or suspended
concealed handgun license, a misdemeanor of the first degree.

(ORC 2923.1211(B), (C))

(b)   Additional Restrictions. Pursuant to Ohio R.C. 2923.126:

(A) A concealed handgun license that is issued under section 2923.125 of the Revised Code shall
expire five years after the date of issuance. A licensee who has been issued a license under that
section shall be granted a grace period of thirty days after the licensee's license expires during
which the licensee's license remains valid. Except as provided in divisions (B) and (C) of this
section, a licensee who has been issued a concealed handgun license under
section 2923.125 or 2923.1213 of the Revised Code may carry a concealed handgun anywhere in
this state if the license is valid when the licensee is in actual possession of a concealed handgun.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.1213


The licensee shall give notice of any change in the licensee's residence address to the sheriff who
issued the license within forty-five days after that change.

(B) A valid concealed handgun license does not authorize the licensee to carry a concealed
handgun in any manner prohibited under division (B) of section 2923.12 of the Revised Code or
in any manner prohibited under section 2923.16 of the Revised Code. A valid license does not
authorize the licensee to carry a concealed handgun into any of the following places:

(1) A police station, sheriff's office, or state highway patrol station, premises controlled by the
bureau of criminal identification and investigation; a state correctional institution, jail,
workhouse, or other detention facility; any area of an airport passenger terminal that is beyond a
passenger or property screening checkpoint or to which access is restricted through security
measures by the airport authority or a public agency; or an institution that is maintained,
operated, managed, and governed pursuant to division (A) of section 5119.14 of the Revised
Code or division (A)(1) of section 5123.03 of the Revised Code;

(2) A school safety zone if the licensee's carrying the concealed handgun is in violation of
section 2923.122 of the Revised Code;

(3) A courthouse or another building or structure in which a courtroom is located if the licensee's
carrying the concealed handgun is in violation of section 2923.123 of the Revised Code;

(4) Any premises or open air arena for which a D permit has been issued under Chapter 4303. of
the Revised Code if the licensee's carrying the concealed handgun is in violation of
section 2923.121 of the Revised Code;

(5) Any premises owned or leased by any public or private college, university, or other
institution of higher education, unless the handgun is in a locked motor vehicle or the licensee is
in the immediate process of placing the handgun in a locked motor vehicle or unless the licensee
is carrying the concealed handgun pursuant to a written policy, rule, or other authorization that is
adopted by the institution's board of trustees or other governing body and that authorizes specific
individuals or classes of individuals to carry a concealed handgun on the premises;

(6) Any church, synagogue, mosque, or other place of worship, unless the church, synagogue,
mosque, or other place of worship posts or permits otherwise;

(7) Any building that is a government facility of this state or a political subdivision of this state
and that is not a building that is used primarily as a shelter, restroom, parking facility for motor
vehicles, or rest facility and is not a courthouse or other building or structure in which a
courtroom is located that is subject to division (B)(3) of this section, unless the governing body
with authority over the building has enacted a statute, ordinance, or policy that permits a licensee
to carry a concealed handgun into the building;

(8) A place in which federal law prohibits the carrying of handguns.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.12
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.16
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5119.14
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5123.03
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.122
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.123
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.121


(C)(1) Nothing in this section shall negate or restrict a rule, policy, or practice of a private
employer that is not a private college, university, or other institution of higher education
concerning or prohibiting the presence of firearms on the private employer's premises or
property, including motor vehicles owned by the private employer. Nothing in this section shall
require a private employer of that nature to adopt a rule, policy, or practice concerning or
prohibiting the presence of firearms on the private employer's premises or property, including
motor vehicles owned by the private employer.

(2)(a) A private employer shall be immune from liability in a civil action for any injury, death, or
loss to person or property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee bringing a
handgun onto the premises or property of the private employer, including motor vehicles owned
by the private employer, unless the private employer acted with malicious purpose. A private
employer is immune from liability in a civil action for any injury, death, or loss to person or
property that allegedly was caused by or related to the private employer's decision to permit a
licensee to bring, or prohibit a licensee from bringing, a handgun onto the premises or property
of the private employer.

(b) A political subdivision shall be immune from liability in a civil action, to the extent and in
the manner provided in Chapter 2744. of the Revised Code, for any injury, death, or loss to
person or property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee bringing a handgun onto
any premises or property owned, leased, or otherwise under the control of the political
subdivision. As used in this division, "political subdivision" has the same meaning as in
section 2744.01 of the Revised Code.

(c) An institution of higher education shall be immune from liability in a civil action for any
injury, death, or loss to person or property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee
bringing a handgun onto the premises of the institution, including motor vehicles owned by the
institution, unless the institution acted with malicious purpose. An institution of higher education
is immune from liability in a civil action for any injury, death, or loss to person or property that
allegedly was caused by or related to the institution's decision to permit a licensee or class of
licensees to bring a handgun onto the premises of the institution.

(d) A nonprofit corporation shall be immune from liability in a civil action for any injury, death,
or loss to person or property that allegedly was caused by or related to a licensee bringing a
handgun onto the premises of the nonprofit corporation, including any motor vehicle owned by
the nonprofit corporation, or to any event organized by the nonprofit corporation, unless the
nonprofit corporation acted with malicious purpose. A nonprofit corporation is immune from
liability in a civil action for any injury, death, or loss to person or property that allegedly was
caused by or related to the nonprofit corporation's decision to permit a licensee to bring a
handgun onto the premises of the nonprofit corporation or to any event organized by the
nonprofit corporation. The immunities described in this division apply to an entity that leases its
property to the nonprofit corporation or permits its property to be used by the nonprofit
corporation for any purpose.

(3)(a) Except as provided in division (C)(3)(b) of this section and section 2923.1214 of the
Revised Code, the owner or person in control of private land or premises, and a private person or

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2744.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.1214


entity leasing land or premises owned by the state, the United States, or a political subdivision of
the state or the United States, may post a sign in a conspicuous location on that land or on those
premises prohibiting persons from carrying firearms or concealed firearms on or onto that land or
those premises. Except as otherwise provided in this division, a person who knowingly violates a
posted prohibition of that nature is guilty of criminal trespass in violation of division (A)(4) of
section 2911.21 of the Revised Code and is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree. If a
person knowingly violates a posted prohibition of that nature and the posted land or premises
primarily was a parking lot or other parking facility, the person is not guilty of criminal trespass
under section 2911.21 of the Revised Code or under any other criminal law of this state or
criminal law, ordinance, or resolution of a political subdivision of this state, and instead is
subject only to a civil cause of action for trespass based on the violation.

If a person knowingly violates a posted prohibition of the nature described in this division and
the posted land or premises is a child care center, type A family child care home, or type B
family child care home, unless the person is a licensee who resides in a type A family child care
home or type B family child care home, the person is guilty of aggravated trespass in violation of
section 2911.211 of the Revised Code. Except as otherwise provided in this division, the offender
is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree. If the person previously has been convicted of a
violation of this division or of any offense of violence, if the weapon involved is a firearm that is
either loaded or for which the offender has ammunition ready at hand, or if the weapon involved
is dangerous ordnance, the offender is guilty of a felony of the fourth degree.
(b) A landlord may not prohibit or restrict a tenant who is a licensee and who on or after
September 9, 2008, enters into a rental agreement with the landlord for the use of residential
premises, and the tenant's guest while the tenant is present, from lawfully carrying or possessing
a handgun on those residential premises.

(c) As used in division (C)(3) of this section:

(i) "Residential premises" has the same meaning as in section 5321.01 of the Revised Code,
except "residential premises" does not include a dwelling unit that is owned or operated by a
college or university.

(ii) "Landlord," "tenant," and "rental agreement" have the same meanings as in
section 5321.01 of the Revised Code.

(D) A person who holds a valid concealed handgun license issued by another state that is
recognized by the attorney general pursuant to a reciprocity agreement entered into pursuant to
section 109.69 of the Revised Code or a person who holds a valid concealed handgun license
under the circumstances described in division (B) of section 109.69 of the Revised Code has the
same right to carry a concealed handgun in this state as a person who was issued a concealed
handgun license under section 2923.125 of the Revised Code and is subject to the same
restrictions that apply to a person who has been issued a license under that section that is valid at
the time in question.
(E)(1) A peace officer has the same right to carry a concealed handgun in this state as a person
who was issued a concealed handgun license under section 2923.125 of the Revised Code,
provided that the officer when carrying a concealed handgun under authority of this division is

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2911.21
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2911.21
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2911.211
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5321.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-5321.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.69
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.69
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125


carrying validating identification. For purposes of reciprocity with other states, a peace officer
shall be considered to be a licensee in this state.

(2) An active duty member of the armed forces of the United States who is carrying a valid
military identification card and documentation of successful completion of firearms training that
meets or exceeds the training requirements described in division (G)(1) of section 2923.125 of
the Revised Code has the same right to carry a concealed handgun in this state as a person who
was issued a concealed handgun license under section 2923.125 of the Revised Code and is
subject to the same restrictions as specified in this section.

(3) A tactical medical professional who is qualified to carry firearms while on duty under
section 109.771 of the Revised Code has the same right to carry a concealed handgun in this state
as a person who was issued a concealed handgun license under section 2923.125 of the Revised
Code.

(4) A fire investigator who is qualified to carry firearms while on duty under section 109.774 of
the Revised Code has the same right to carry a concealed handgun in this state as a person who
was issued a concealed handgun license under section 2923.125 of the Revised Code.

(F)(1) A qualified retired peace officer who possesses a retired peace officer identification card
issued pursuant to division (F)(2) of this section and a valid firearms requalification certification
issued pursuant to division (F)(3) of this section has the same right to carry a concealed handgun
in this state as a person who was issued a concealed handgun license under section 2923.125 of
the Revised Code and is subject to the same restrictions that apply to a person who has been
issued a license issued under that section that is valid at the time in question. For purposes of
reciprocity with other states, a qualified retired peace officer who possesses a retired peace
officer identification card issued pursuant to division (F)(2) of this section and a valid firearms
requalification certification issued pursuant to division (F)(3) of this section shall be considered
to be a licensee in this state.

(2)(a) Each public agency of this state or of a political subdivision of this state that is served by
one or more peace officers shall issue a retired peace officer identification card to any person
who retired from service as a peace officer with that agency, if the issuance is in accordance with
the agency's policies and procedures and if the person, with respect to the person's service with
that agency, satisfies all of the following:

(i) The person retired in good standing from service as a peace officer with the public agency,
and the retirement was not for reasons of mental instability.

(ii) Before retiring from service as a peace officer with that agency, the person was authorized to
engage in or supervise the prevention, detection, investigation, or prosecution of, or the
incarceration of any person for, any violation of law and the person had statutory powers of
arrest.

(iii) At the time of the person's retirement as a peace officer with that agency, the person was
trained and qualified to carry firearms in the performance of the peace officer's duties.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.771
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.774
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.125


(iv) Before retiring from service as a peace officer with that agency, the person was regularly
employed as a peace officer for an aggregate of fifteen years or more, or, in the alternative, the
person retired from service as a peace officer with that agency, after completing any applicable
probationary period of that service, due to a service-connected disability, as determined by the
agency.

(b) A retired peace officer identification card issued to a person under division (F)(2)(a) of this
section shall identify the person by name, contain a photograph of the person, identify the public
agency of this state or of the political subdivision of this state from which the person retired as a
peace officer and that is issuing the identification card, and specify that the person retired in good
standing from service as a peace officer with the issuing public agency and satisfies the criteria
set forth in divisions (F)(2)(a)(i) to (iv) of this section. In addition to the required content
specified in this division, a retired peace officer identification card issued to a person under
division (F)(2)(a) of this section may include the firearms requalification certification described
in division (F)(3) of this section, and if the identification card includes that certification, the
identification card shall serve as the firearms requalification certification for the retired peace
officer. If the issuing public agency issues credentials to active law enforcement officers who
serve the agency, the agency may comply with division (F)(2)(a) of this section by issuing the
same credentials to persons who retired from service as a peace officer with the agency and who
satisfy the criteria set forth in divisions (F)(2)(a)(i) to (iv) of this section, provided that the
credentials so issued to retired peace officers are stamped with the word "RETIRED."

(c) A public agency of this state or of a political subdivision of this state may charge persons
who retired from service as a peace officer with the agency a reasonable fee for issuing to the
person a retired peace officer identification card pursuant to division (F)(2)(a) of this section.

(3) If a person retired from service as a peace officer with a public agency of this state or of a
political subdivision of this state and the person satisfies the criteria set forth in divisions
(F)(2)(a)(i) to (iv) of this section, the public agency may provide the retired peace officer with
the opportunity to attend a firearms requalification program that is approved for purposes of
firearms requalification required under section 109.801 of the Revised Code. The retired peace
officer may be required to pay the cost of the course.

If a retired peace officer who satisfies the criteria set forth in divisions (F)(2)(a)(i) to (iv) of this
section attends a firearms requalification program that is approved for purposes of firearms
requalification required under section 109.801 of the Revised Code, the retired peace officer's
successful completion of the firearms requalification program requalifies the retired peace officer
for purposes of division (F) of this section for five years from the date on which the program was
successfully completed, and the requalification is valid during that five-year period. If a retired
peace officer who satisfies the criteria set forth in divisions (F)(2)(a)(i) to (iv) of this section
satisfactorily completes such a firearms requalification program, the retired peace officer shall be
issued a firearms requalification certification that identifies the retired peace officer by name,
identifies the entity that taught the program, specifies that the retired peace officer successfully
completed the program, specifies the date on which the course was successfully completed, and
specifies that the requalification is valid for five years from that date of successful completion.
The firearms requalification certification for a retired peace officer may be included in the retired

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.801
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.801


peace officer identification card issued to the retired peace officer under division (F)(2) of this
section.

A retired peace officer who attends a firearms requalification program that is approved for
purposes of firearms requalification required under section 109.801 of the Revised Code may be
required to pay the cost of the program.
(G) As used in this section:

(1) "Qualified retired peace officer" means a person who satisfies all of the following:

(a) The person satisfies the criteria set forth in divisions (F)(2)(a)(i) to (v) of this section.

(b) The person is not under the influence of alcohol or another intoxicating or hallucinatory drug
or substance.

(c) The person is not prohibited by federal law from receiving firearms.

(2) "Retired peace officer identification card" means an identification card that is issued pursuant
to division (F)(2) of this section to a person who is a retired peace officer.

(3) "Government facility of this state or a political subdivision of this state" means any of the
following:

(a) A building or part of a building that is owned or leased by the government of this state or a
political subdivision of this state and where employees of the government of this state or the
political subdivision regularly are present for the purpose of performing their official duties as
employees of the state or political subdivision;

(b) The office of a deputy registrar serving pursuant to Chapter 4503. of the Revised Code that is
used to perform deputy registrar functions.

(4) "Governing body" has the same meaning as in section 154.01 of the Revised Code.

(5) "Tactical medical professional" has the same meaning as in section 109.71 of the Revised
Code.

(6) "Validating identification" means photographic identification issued by the agency for which
an individual serves as a peace officer that identifies the individual as a peace officer of the
agency.

(7) "Nonprofit corporation" means any private organization that is exempt from federal income
taxation pursuant to subsection 501(a) and described in subsection 501(c) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

(8) "Fire investigator" has the same meaning as in section 109.71 of the Revised Code.

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.801
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-154.01
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.71
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-109.71


            (ORC 2923.126)

(c) Posting of Signs Prohibiting Possession

Each person, board, or entity that owns or controls any place or premises identified in division
(B) of section 2923.126 of the Revised Code as a place into which a valid license does not
authorize the licensee to carry a concealed handgun, or a designee of such a person, board, or
entity, shall post in one or more conspicuous locations in the premises a sign that contains a
statement in substantially the following form: "Unless otherwise authorized by law, pursuant to
the Ohio Revised Code, no person shall knowingly possess, have under the person's control,
convey, or attempt to convey a deadly weapon or dangerous ordnance onto these premises."

(ORC 2923.1212)   

SECTION IX. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of Council concerning and
relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that
all deliberations of this Council, and any of its committees that resulted in such formal actions,
were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including §
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code; and

SECTION X. That this ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure immediately
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety and property and to enable the
City to immediately hold offenders of the ordinances described herein to a higher degree of
accountability. Therefore,  this ordinance shall  take effect  immediately upon passage  and
approval  by  the  Mayor.

PASSED: ____________________, 2025

_____________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST: ___________________, CLERK

_____________________________    
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: ____________________, 2025

https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-revised-code/section-2923.126

	Agenda
	3.a.__10.6 Minutes
	       ATT_Minutes
	6.a.__180 Place
	       ATT_Correspondence
	6.b.__180 Place LLC
	       ATT_Liq Control 
	7.a.__Halitzka
	       ATT_Correspondence
	9.a.__Finance Committee
	10.a.__Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Resolution Documentation
	10.b.__Oct. 2025 LPD Vehicle Purchase
	       ATT_Ordinance and Exhibits
	10.c.__Ordinance Request 
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	10.d.__Printing Systems Lease
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A 
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	10.e.__Printing Systems 
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A 
	10.f.__ORD GIVING CONSENT FOR ODOT TO PERFORM ANNUAL MOWING OF STATE ROUTE 2 CORRIDOR
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	10.g.__AN ORD WAIVING UTILITIES AND ENGINEERING FEES FOR PORT AUTHORITY AMPHITHEATER PROJECT
	       ATT_Ordinance
	10.h.__AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE NORTHEAST OHIO AREA-WIDE COORDINATING AGENCY
	       ATT_Ordinance - TLCI Application
	10.i.__Land Reutilization Program Update
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Track Changes
	10.j.__Ordinance - Amend Ordinance 111-25
	       ATT_Amended Ordinance
	       ATT_Agreement
	       ATT_Original Ordinance
	10.k.__Appropriation
	       ATT_Appropriation
	       ATT_Appropriation Attachment
	11.a.__Issue 21 & 22 Reso
	       ATT_Resolution
	11.b.__Polish Reso
	       ATT_Resolution
	11.c.__Breast Cancer Reso
	       ATT_Resolution
	11.d.__Medical Mutual Annual Contract
	       ATT_ORDINANCE
	       ATT_Addendum
	       ATT_Stop Loss
	11.e.__Ordinance Request 
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Award Document 
	11.f.__Ordinance Request 
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Award Document 
	11.g.__Ordinance Request 
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Award Document 
	11.h.__Ordinance Request 
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Contract
	11.i.__El Centro Roof Replacement
	       ATT_Ordinance
	11.j.__Rotar License CIP
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Agreement
	11.k.__ORD AMENDING ORD NO 016-25 TO MODIFY AGREEMENT NO. 25-015 611 PROJECT AND DECLARING EMERGENCY
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Scope of Work
	       ATT_Change Order 1
	       ATT_Proposal
	       ATT_ORC 5517.03 Closing Highways
	11.l.__Ordinance - Street Patching
	       ATT_Ordinance
	11.m.__Ordinance - 2026 Chemicals for Wastewater & Water
	       ATT_Ordinance
	11.n.__Trash abatement
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	11.o.__Then and Now
	       ATT_Then and Now Ordinance
	       ATT_Then and Now documentation
	11.p.__Appropriation
	       ATT_Appropriation
	       ATT_Appropriation Attachment
	       ATT_Appropriation Attachment
	12.a.__Superlative Group: naming rights for Campana Park
	       ATT_Campana Naming Rights ordinance
	       ATT_Campana agreement_Exhibit Ait
	12.b.__ CHAPTER 509 OF LCO BY CREATING SECTION 509.19 "PARENT OR GUARDIAN RESPONSIBILITY FOR MINORS" AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
	       ATT_Ordinance- Amended 10_6_25
	12.c.__AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 549 OF THE LCO WEAPONS AND EXPLOSIVES
	       ATT_ORDINANCE

